AGENDA FOR LIBRARY BOARD MEETING

DATE: Monday, July 15, 2024 at 6:00 p.m.
LOCATION: In Person: White Salmon Valley Community Library,
77 NW Wauna Avenue
White Salmon, WA 98672
Virtual: Zoom Link - https://us02web.zoom.us/j/3852820936
Meeting ID: 385282 0936  Passcode: 070150

Call to Order
Agenda Approval
Chair Announcements
Public Comments (limit 2 minutes each person)
Consent Agenda
a. Approval of May 20, 2024 regular meeting minutes
b. Approval of Claims — May and June 2024
6. Reports
6.1 FVRL Organizational Report: Jennifer Giltrop
6.2 FVRL Foundation Update: Rick Smithrud
6.3 White Salmon Valley Community Library Report: Ruth Shafer
6.4 Financial Statements — April & May 2024: Catrina Galicz
7. Business
7.1 Facilities and Finance Committee
a. 2024 Budget & Reserve Allocation Amendment — Staff Report 2024-07
b. Resolution 2024-07 — 2024 Budget and Reserve Allocation Amendment
7.2 Policy and Nominating Committee
a. Purchase Card Policy (1** Reading)
b. Purchase Card Policy Attachment A: Purchase Card Agreement
c. Purchasing and Procurement Policy (1** Reading)
d. Resolution 2024-06 MRSC Rosters (1% Reading)
7.3 Board Meeting Location Change — August 19, 2024 & October 21, 2024
8. Executive Session: RCW 42.30.110 Litigation
9. Board Comments
10. Next Regular Meeting: Monday. August 19, 2024 at 6:00 p.m. at the
Goldendale Community Library and Zoom

I O R

11. Adjournment

I b ra rl e S ' Serving Clark, Skamania and Klickitat Counties, and

FORT VANCOUVER REGIONAL LIBRARIES |  Woodland and Yale Precinct in Cowlitz County

ACTION
INFORMATION

ACTION

INFORMATION
INFORMATION
INFORMATION
INFORMATION

INFORMATION
ACTION

INFORMATION
INFORMATION
INFORMATION
INFORMATION
ACTION

2018 Grand Blvd, Vancouver Washington 98661 ¢ 360-906-5000 e furl.org

Liorary locations: Battle Ground, Cascade Park, Goldendale, LLa Cenler, North Bonnevilie, Ridgefiald, Stevenson

Mhree Creeks, Vancouver, Vancouver Mall, Washouzal, Wiile Salmon Valley, Woadland,

facalt, Yale

Page 1 of 98



Board of Trustees Meeting Minutes Kristy Morgan, Chair, Clark County At-Large
May 20, 2024 - 6:00 PM Regular Meeting Penny Love-Henslee, Vice Chair, Clark County At-Large
Stevenson Community Library Marie Coffey, Secretary, Clark County At-Large
120 NW Vancouver Ave; Stevenson, WA 98648  Mary Ann Duncan-Cole, Skamania County
Gallery-Stevenson Vikram Kotwani, City of Vancouver
Hybrid/In-Persan Olga Hodges, Klickitat County

Mary Williams, City of Vancouver

Present Board: Kristy Morgan, Penny Love-Henslee, Marie Coffey, Mary Ann Duncan-Cole, Mary Williams, Vikram

Kotwani (virtual)

Absent: Olga Hodges
Present Staff: Jennifer Giltrop, Executive Director (virtual); Justin Keeler, Outreach and Community Partnerships

Director; David Wyatt, Branch Manager; Catrina Galicz, Finance Director; Kelsey Hudson, Program and Outreach
Coordinator-Youth; Rhonda Kay Calkins, Executive Assistant; Mike Smetana, IT Specialist; Lynne Caldwell, Collections

and Technology Services Director; Ruth Shafer, Interim Public Services Director; Dave losephson, Facilities and Fleet
Director; Lee Strehlow, Human Resources Director

Remote Access: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/3852820936 ¢ Meeting ID: 385 282 0936 e Passcode: 070150 e Phone

Access 206-337-9723

Fart Vancouver Regional Library Business Meeting Minutes

AGENDA:
1. CALLTO ORDER - Chair Morgan called the meeting to order at 6:00 pm.

2. AGENDA APPROVAL — At 6:00 pm of the recording Mary Ann Duncan-Cole made a motion to approve the
agenda. Marie Coffey seconded. Motion approved with 5 out of 5 votes.

3. CHAIR ANNOUNCEMENTS - At 6:01 pm of the recording Kristy Morgan welcomed Mary Williams to the Board
of Trustees. She represents the City of Vancouver and we are excited to work with her.
Mary Williams shared that she is a librarian by trade but now is a small business owner. She has been a
business coach since 2016 and is excited to be involved with the community and continue to be a librarian.

4. PUBLIC COMMENTS — At 6:02 pm of the recording Quil Onstead of Portland made a public comment about
Drag Queen Story Hour.
Gary Wilson of Vancouver made a public comment about library programs.
Eunice Ingermanson of Clark County made a public comment about diversity and inclusion.

5. APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS — At 6:07 pm of the recording Penny Love-Henslee made a motion to
approve the Consent Agenda. Mary Ann Duncan-Cole seconded. Motion approved with 5 out of 5 votes.

6. REPORTS
6.1. ORGANIZATIONAL REPORT — At 6:08 pm of the recording Jennifer Giltrop highlights:

Urban Library Council CEO Roundtable: Currently in Los Angeles attending this conference. The topic of the
session is serving customers without homes.

Three Creeks: In January, the Three Creeks building experienced damange from a vehicular impact, and has
now been repaired. The repair was just over $22,000 which our insurance did cover all but our $5,000
deductible. Unrelated to the car incident, we have had issues over the years with the building having water
intrusion into the staff area. This is due to the fact that the building is built on top of an aquifer. A new swell

was put in and pressure testing was completed.

2018 Grand Blvd, Yancouver Washington 98661 * 360-906-5000 e fvrl.org

Library wions Battle Gr 1ef o wl= Park, Goldendals |La rt Morth B syilie Rircafisld

Page 2 of 98



= U
Woodland: The FVRL Foundation and the Woodland Friends held the last Love Your Library event which was a
fundraiser for our new Woodland Library. They raised over $35,000 this year. Thank you to Kristy and Marie for
attending.
La Center: The La Center Community Library celebrated its 20" anniversary with hundreds of people and Jack
the alpaca visited the library. Thank you to Marie and Penny for attending.
Statistics: The April visitor count is up by 7.44%. Circulation is up 3.94%. Cardholder rate is up 2%. There were
over 25,000 new cards issued in April. Mary Ann Duncan-Cole asked, of the new card holders, what percentage
were under 18. Jennifer replied she would get the information for her.

6.2. BRANCH REPORT: STEVENSON COMMUNITY LIBRARY — At 6:14 pm of the recording David Wyatt provided
an update on library activities around the Stevenson Community Library.

Staff: 8 staff, 6.8 FTE, 3 of which regularly drive the bookmobile. 8 flexible substitutes from across Skamania

and Klickitat. Approximately 68 public service hours each week spread across three service points. Providing

service from Washougal to Glenwood.

Service Area: Skamania County has 7.3 inhabitants per square mile, the lowest population density county that

FVRLibraries serve. The bookmobile spends about 25 hours a week on the road with 1/3 of its routes in Carson.

North Bonneville has a 30% growth increase since 2010.

Friends of the Library: The Friends will host Artists of the Gorge, entering its 45" year. They will fundraise with

Friendship products, and participate in community events like Christmas in the Gorge. They had over 2,000

volunteer hours in 2023,

History: Originally founded by the Stevenson’s Woman’s Club, the Stevenson Community Library’s first

purpose-built location was opened in 1938. The current building was opened nearly 60 years ago and was last

remodeled in 2017.
Operations: Open 48 hours per week. Circulation: 52,636. Visits: 41,265. Residents with library accounts:

56.8%.

Skamania County Bookmobile: Open 14 hours per week over 4 days. Circulation: 10,918. Staff checkouts: 10
per hour. Visits: 6,142, Residents with library accounts: 25.7%.

North Bonneville Community Library: Open 6 hours per week. Circulation: 4,458, Visits: 932. Residents with
library accounts: 27.2%. Highest holds as percentage of checkout in district at 70%.

Winter Crafts: The annual winter craft programming series had about 300 participants. Community Art Studio
of Skamania (CASS) hosted the sack gnome event.

Jeff Kinney Prize Winners: At the Jeff Kinney event, four local students from Carson Elementary won a
combined $1,100 in donations for Stevenson Community Library.

6.3. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND HIGHLIGHTS: At 6:28 pm of the recording Catrina Galicz highlights the

month ending March 2024.
Statement of Cash: Cash balance in March decreased 1.3 million over our February decrease. The year-to-date

March decrease of $5.3 million which represents the net impact of expenditures through March being at $7.8
million. This is more than the $2.5 million revenues. Year-to-date expenses are currently exceeding revenues
through March at a 2.5:1 capacity. We are not within the operating reserve target of 60 to 90 days of our
annual operating budget, however, with our property taxes coming in April and October expect this decrease in
the revenue balance before we see an influx of revenues in April. There was an adjustment for the accrued
expenditures of $61,000 on the statement of cash. This represents expenditures that are being paid now from
previously incurred.

Statement of Revenue: Property taxes and other taxes are the primary source of revenues representing 87% of
our total revenues budget. April and October are heavy receding months for these revenues. We received just
over $2.2 million, and 77% of that was received in March. We realized 43% of other taxes through March. We
have some charges for services that we've received that are slightly over budget at 35% and budget being at

MAL LIBRARIES

2018 Grand Blvd, Vancouver Washington 98661 * 360-906-5000 « fvrl.org

Page 3 of 98



FVRL|brarles

25%. We will incur expenditures for which that Friends of the Library will reimburse us. We have some
miscellaneous revenues from that as well as reimubursements from the Foundation through April. We have
invoiced the Foundation for operational reimbursements of just over $14,000. Interest revenue continues to be
above target at 33%.

Statement of Expenses: Payroll and benefits are the largest operating expenditure those are at 23%. Supplies
are under budget at 20%. The only line item under supplies exceeding the 25% budget target is Professional
Collection and Technology. We had software renewals in January and March. Other charges and services
continue to be under budget at 21%. Our professional service budget of about $2 million has expended
$188,000 in March with custodial services being 77% of this. Training and Travel is slightly high based on 2023
expenditures that were paid in 2024. Repairs and maintenance remain slightly over budget at 29%. The main
capital project is Woodland. We have paid $1.2 million through March on the Woodland Library project. The
other capital has about $25,000 worth of expenditures.

RECEIVE AND FILE MARCH FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — At 6:35 pm of the recording Mary Ann Duncan-Cole
made a motion to approve receiving and filing the March financial statements. Penny Love-Henslee seconded.

Motion approved with 6 out of 6 votes.

6.4. SUMMER AT YOUR LIBRARY: At 6:36 pm of the recording Kelsey Hudson highlights the Summer at Your
Library 2024.

Goals: Nurture learning, strengthen communities, and encourage library participation by encouraging patrons

to explore, create and share together. Support children who are most likely to need learning support over the

summer but be the least likely to receive it.

Basics: Challenge: Read, learn, create and explore all summer long. Programs: Educational, entertaining, and

hands-an programming in library and online. Qutreach: Bring SAYL and library information/resources to families

and children in our communities.

2023 Numbers: 10,005 challenge participants. 705 programs. 11,202 program attendees. 2,230 children

reached through outreach. 17+ community partners. 23 libraries and departments. 115 volunteer hours. 6,865

incentive books purchased. 300 grand prize pieces purchased.

Summer Goals for Patrons: 1. Read for 30 days. 2. Learn one new thing. 3. Create something new. 4. Explore

some part of your world.

Programs: We have presenters and performers like Tao drumming, OMSI and Wolf Haven. We have a few

online events, pre-recorded and live. We have hands-on activities to help kids explore their creativity.

Summer Outreach: Prioritize events and partners that reach families who may not be using the library. Also, to

work with kids and families who may need the greatest support.

Mary Ann Duncan-Cole asked do you have any issues ar way to target those children where both parents work

and left at home for a few hours a day? Kelsey replied: Qutreach is helping to work with some partners that

might be reaching those folks. It is tricky if it is a kid but it is something we are looking to expand on. We do

work in different areas with some Parks and Recreation to help provide some free or reduced care for those

kids who are not ready to be left at home.

BUSINESS
7.1. FACILITIES AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
PORT OF RIDGEFIELD: TAX INCREMENT AREA RESOLUTION — At 6:51 pm of the recording Jennifer Giltrop

discussed the Port of Ridgefield tax increment financing area that was approved to move forwad by the Port of
Ridgefield board. The impact on our district is approximately $2.7 million of growth of lost revenue growth over
25 years. Those are estimates and as we move forward, we will understand the actual implications. As a junior
taxing district, we have no authority to opt in or out of the tax increment finance areas. We will cantinue to

track on this particular topic and the impact to our district,

2018 Grand Blvd, Vancouver Washington 98661 « 360-906-5000 e fvrl.org

¢ lacations: Battle Grourd, Cascadz Park, Goldzndals La Ceatar, Marth Bannay e, Ridzafis bayansg

Page 4 of 98



10.

11.

12.

;;‘j ."; ; F\/RLibrar]e Seiving Clark, Skama
Jrmngm ‘}% & FORT YANCOUYVER REGIONAL LIBRARIES Woodiand and Yals |

EXECUTIVE SESSION: Pursuant to RCW 42.30.110(1i) and RCW 42.30.410(4b) Collective Bargaining at 6:53 of

the recording.
At 6:53 pm the Board of Trustees go into Executive Session for 30 minutes.

At 7:25 pm the Board of Trustees announced needing an additional 7 minutes.
At 7:32 pm the Board returns.

WPEA CONTRACT: RESOLUTION 2024-04 WPEA CBA RATIFICATION — At 7:33 pm of the recording Kristy

Morgan presented Resolution 2024-04 WPEA CBA Ratification.
At 7:35 of the recording Penny Love-Henslee made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda. Mary Ann

Duncan-Cole seconded. Motion approved with 5 out of 5 votes.

BOARD COMMENT - at 7:35 pm of the recording. Kristy Morgan said the Love Your Library event was awesome.
They were impressed by the hard work put into each event. Thank you for and for hosting us today.

Penny Love-Henslee loved the operational report. Each individual branch of the library has different and unique
communities. | like to see the way programs are created for each branch. The needs for each branch are

different and | appreciate it.
Marie Coffey appreciated the clip about the Bookmaobile. The other branches don’t have the Bookmobile

experience and the information is appreciated. Thank you.
Setting for next regular meeting: Monday, June 17, 2024 at 6:00 pm at Goldendale Community Library. It will be
a hybrid (in-person/online) meeting.

ADJOURNMENT — At 7:36 pm

2018 Grand Blvd, Vancouver Washington 98661 ¢ 360-906-5000 * fvrl.org

= | i Marth Bon  CBideafiaid taye

Page 5 of 98



FORT VANCOUVER REGIONAL LIBRARY DISTRICT
Approval of Claims
As of
July 15, 2024

As required by RCW 42.24.080 and RCW 42.24.090, vouchers audited and certified by the Auditing Officer of the Fort
Vancouver Regional Library District and those expense reimbursement claims which have been certified as required, have been
racorded on a list and made avaitable to the Board of Directors for approval.

As of this date, July 15, 2024 The Board of Directors, by a vote does approve for payment the following vouchers, warrants,
voids, and electronic transfers issued

May 1, 2024 through May 31, 2024

Accounts Payable Warrants lssued Numbers 119664 Through 119860 $1,695,127.86
Accounts Payable EFT Payments EFT02050 Through EFT02081 $ 172,218.13
Accounts Payable Veids Numbers 1196766-119778 $  (41,454.71)
Subtotal FVRL General Fund Warrants, EFTS, Voids $1,825,891.38
Payroll Electronic Fund Transfers Numbers 20240510 Through 20240524 $ 962,166.66
Other Electronic Fund Transfers (Manual Payments) Completed
Vendor Date Amount
ADP 5/20/2024 $ 4,673.19
KAISER HSA 81302024 $ 16,025.33
KAISER HSA 5/29/2024 $ 52.00
WASHINGTON DEPT OF REVENUE 5/23/2024 $ 1,271.64
FNBO Visa 5/16/2024 $ 32,207.18
EMPLOYMENT SEGURITY DEPARTMENT 52412024 $  831.29
WASH DEPT OF RETIREMENT SYSTEM 5/28/2024 $170,671.17

$ 225821.80
Total Transactions for Approval $3,013,878.84

DISTRICPLIBRARY - ?cunyﬂaecfoﬁ:’_)
U neraeen

DISTRICT LIBRARY-X BOARD PRESIDENT

Page 6 of 98



686l
188
so'ey
0STI9RT
21008
ooeL

0T FEe’)
PESEE
S6°8F5
08°¢8y
0ES0E
0Z168
SZBILZ0%
8L°G8
5/
000l
ey
¥3880%e
057eeR's
LLBBEY
2T a8’
15'92¢
LEGLLL
[Fagiral
B2l ara
006y
8Z°86
20PLEEL
S ¥OLLT
€628
JECrL
20°192°s
SCLLE
goile
FoB0ST
FEVETL
11°068°)
La'LRS
[ls)rrac:
ESBISLLL
588G
£6'202°81
SLLr

(e C T g

oy

SRIVAMTEYH 30V NOWTYS J1UHM
SSVID QLMY NOLJWYH
NODTHOZH

SNIAIT HO0GLN0 QU
ITFENSTTIOD 40 ALD

AWOD 30 HIgWVRD TIaNTIT 0D
dNOYD VO

OT1'SLONTOYd AVMYAY 1d
Z00E# ON] 'SASTHSHI NG NOSND YIS
brequs Ausuuol MNMAMALNID
oo = s

Gid ALNNOD ZIMNMOD
SHHOMITN TYNOLLNLLISNI LSYONOD
TYSODSIO HaA YIaNn1o0
SIVNAMES IOVADNYT VISNNTOD
ANYLWOS ZON0STH VIEWNT00
d3= NIVIN OTECM N30

VA - LNIVIN QTHOM NYSTD

D1 - INIVIN OTHOM NVETD

DH - INIVIV GTHOM RV
DE-INIVA TTHOM NYT10
VAM-LNIYIN T1H0M NYITD

QA -INIYIN TIH0M NV

151 NIFIW (T THOM NYITD
SA-LNIVIN GTHOM NYTD

SANYT P SV ALNNOD Mev1s
UEMILSYM DT MVID

and Muvi13

I8V T MQ dNOND 113

HILNZD NOLENBRLESH] OSVHT
MNITAMENTS
ONIENAWNYIACD AaD

TYA - OT1 SWALSAS Na)

VA~ DT SWILSAS NED

WA -1 SWALSAS 8D

AS - OTTSINTLLSAS a0

R - 07T SWZLSAS NaD

07~ 0TI SNZLSAS NS0

AdONYD

TN NOLLOMMISNOS MiNTxHg
ANNOXD TLLLYYG 40 A LD
HOTAYL S ¥=ivg

131y

OTTIRLEDTTE MOHONY

o suep Jopuap

JSOLEAN Juswnosqg

Z0£814 ¥202/SLIS
S0LEL) FTOTISUS
S0.8)) ¥edT/aLis
POL811 FEDE/sL/e
E0LBLL ¥2OT/SHS
COLELL ¥ZOZ/GLIG
L0L61 ) YE0/sUHS
002613 YZOZSLS
669611 Faoz/sL/s
86951} VZ0T/SLS
169511 FCOE/SH/S
96YEL1 YTOTIS LIS
G696 FE0Z/SL/S
vEOEL) VeSS
€695 FEOT/SLIS
<B9EL FTOTISLS
L€961 ) $0ZGL/S
06961 | ve0e/sie
680611 PEZOZ/SES
8BOGL1 ¥EOZISLIS
289611 vE0ZSLS
985611 FE0a/GL/c
G961 1 VZOZ/GLG
8611 YZ0Z/SL/S
88611 ¥ZOE/SE/S
€296 ¥E0Z/51S
L2S6LL ¥TOZ/SLIE
08981E ¥Zhz/sl/c
BiBELE PZ0Z/CL/S
BL9B1L ¥Z0T/SL/S
LIGBLL FECTICLIG
929811 FEOZIELIS
sS85kl velZiBlLe
wiGELL FEtZiells
€L95L1 venTieig
LBl FeDeiSLe
L4861 - vTOES1G
0486L ) ¥20Zi5LS
69861 | ¥IOTS1S
889611 V0SS
129611 VZOTS LS
889611 ¥TOTGMG
S296L 1 FZ0TELS
P96l L FE02/STS

e ewmosq

WalAEA
wewdey
walied
wewied
WBUIAR
JusAEd
ARz
wWsLie g
wisted
wewieg
Lsieg
Weswied
Weukeg
wefed
WsWAeg
wswied
p:H TR
RISWARY
LR
Tstlie 4
USAES
wswied
stiied
watikeq
ustied
stukeg
WBUAR S
wWalRey
USURE
JusLieg
swAe]
usfed
e
JuswAeg
Wswieg
UsWAEL
UBLARL
IUSWIAE
Az
LAz
neshzd
Wwouwidzd
JUBUIAZA
weuied

eodf] Jusumseg

LOOCOEIH
LOOOdINWH
FEOOXQEH
E6000CHD
0000700
€000a308
s le= pi i
LOCOANIA
3OO
LOD0YENT
10000N=a
LOSOIAMQD
Z086ON00
CEN0MIQO
Yeoon103
E00CITI00
0200w 10
2100v30
Li00v3T10
L0010
LLOOVITO
QLOOVIO
6U00v3I0
8000V IO
200070
EFO0IYIC
SZ00MV IS
OOy 1o
Z060s10
FOGODIHD
8000.LNID
FOCOMAaD
SI00SWED

SO00SWED
FOO0SNGD
£000SNED
TCO0SNED
L000sINgD
010008v2
HGOWIHE

LODOLLYE
[ACA I
Loociwly
SOO0HINY
Qi Jopusp

Page 7 of 98



ooace
05°Zst
25°65¢'}
02607l
58°618'61
96'812"1
90002
at"eve
250
8TLLL'E
08'66L's
{11594
00801
18PSY
0000
51002
89°€0T
00"005°1
1441758
sl'si
SLUi0L
£9°8SLL
FEGE IR
G080
8BTS
20E6R'T
851982
DL 295%
POTFS
Or092'1L
syl rd
229LT
05°9¢1
au'000's
BO¥EL'S
FBLE'L
BL20E
098
987281
£9'L0L
00esy’L
=g 1T
BL'es'ss
¥LLLE
86'0ee'L

AIAYA UDITYM

SHSTINNTIOA ONFTHZLS
SILLLLN HAANOINTA S0 AHD
YORITWY S0 0D SNI 30 WANA
ONI NOLLOMYLSNGD HaNHCD NCIND
3NN

LIOOWA 20 NAROL SHL

WOoT13AL 8Ai

NOSNIAZLS 40 AL1D

TN O NBIS YHOS

T AQTd3A1INYAS

HSHYINS

HEENOId ALNNOD VINVINYYS

1 Ofid ALNNCD YINVIWDIS

HRVIN VNYIO ‘ZLHOS

02 INIVd vaaGos

30 ALD 'T3HIDaH

SHIV.INYA

195 SIOANTS DMENgTY
AddnS QRLDT T LIv1d
DNIANRID N[NV

NOLLYNOINY 201550 D10
HAMOHIND

ANVANOD HOLYAS TS SILO
ONIANVANOD LNENINTT NODIHOo
NYTId QYVD 10d3ad 391440

2130

ANVIWNCD SVO TYHNALIYN ISIMHINON
DN LNZAYnD

3dv.L ISSAMAIN

FOIALES AVHEN 1SIMaIN
HITIW-TTYNOUDYA

VAYNOND

JDRVIN ARVEE

HIINID L, GYARHDS 5T

OMI SNOLLV2ITENd WANOETT
dROHS DNHLIYIA SIS

HIINID V140 ALID

aNd ALNNGS LY LD

ONI STNAEIS TYLNIWNOMIANT ¥ TH
T ASONYY

ONI TYOINYHOIW 19r

ArEON

NOLLYHOJH0D INSNSRELL T VAL
SIDIAMES LIGTHD 10430 INOH

52611 YebaigLis
15i61E F2OESLS
OSL6LE PROZSLS
EPIBLL ¥TOTIS1
8vLaLl PTOZiELS
LriBLl FeOeisliS
8F26L1 Fele/s1is
SPigLl Febeislis
¥rigll YTl
1611 YEOTISLG
cri6LL YeQzielis
Ipi8LL Felzialis
OF281 1L YEO0Z/ELIS
6E45L1 VEQT/SLS
BELBLI F0C/ELG
LEIGLL FECZ/CHG
SEI8LL PO/
el Fe0zZiclie
¥ei51L VE0TELE
£€461L ¥202/ELIG
ZeiG1 Yooeislis
2611 FEOZ/ELS
(EI51 FT0TSLG
62161 FEOZ/CLSG
871811 $T0T/SLG
ZCi6E1 VeogisLie
8TI8LL YEOTSLG
SZLBLL ¥2OEUSLS
FCIGL1L FTOTHS
EZLBL) FEOESLS
CELBLL PTOTALS
(YALREE FAVA N
0ZI6LL $2OTIGLIG
8161 FEOESLS
BLIBLL F2ZOZSLS
LLIBLY FEOTISLG
L4811 vEoT/SLe
SLI6L) FEOE/BLS
FLIGLL TE0EicLS
ELIGY) YZOSIGLS
ZLiGLE ¥TOTRELG
LLIBLL F2OTELS
CLiBLL YEOEIGLS
80461 FeoEiGLS
BOLELL PEOTILIG

JUBLIARY
ualied
JuewAed
USR]
JBLWAEd
JuSUEH
WSWARH
IouAEy
JudLried
Sy
JUBUKES
Jueusz
jusued
WBLAR
Jueluied
ULl
Wauked
JBWied
WatAed
e
JUBUAES
pRwAEd
WRwied
Juauied
Jusllied
RBwieg
weuksg
wawied
UDWARd
JetiEd
WAy
unieg
SRR
WesUtie g
WeWieg
usuIfe,]
MBS
wswied
EITCTRIIACH
wawAeq
usuied
JusLAzH
weLled
Jusuifzy
suAeg

100 TV
FOO0RI=A
LOBQONYA
€0GOMNNN
Z0QCOINN
FBOONITIN
AJ0ONMOL
FO00LSaL
LoASES
I0QVHOS
SOCOYYING
SOCUEYAS
SOMONVAS
LOOOWYMS
Z000NHSS
100eaacy
00000
FI000STH
Looond=x
L0001V 3d
CO00dNVS
LODOIOVa
F00E=A0
HO00SILO
C000STHO
Ho00I440
0000430
S000IH0M
Z000d0OIN
ZOO0AAGIY
LBOOMCTIA
£00000vIN
SO000SNIT
8L00xdan
1008SET
F000.1097
FOO0S2v]
00030V
200001 B
L0031
LOCOONYH
LeoopEr
LOROUDON]
LOGOYINDI
LOODIWCOH

Page 8 of 98



Li'ggl
£1ge8
ool
ZE'963'0ET
¥EECGET
£8'824'6
1SZF8EL
00°C0s
DOCOL'Y
B8C°006'S
11’698
TLORI'E
0002
PRZRDL
ZE PR L
o eos's
Zeipa'oL
000002
TIEEL
¥LL
06699
T5ie0'z
00002
Fiars o
899y
g0z
DSEPEC
SIBE 1T
18TLE
EPLL
00988
9E8TYe'L
o0'sT
00°ee
Q0°GL
L1852
£THOZ'E
j7agt 1 vA
02081
00082
£58Lp'g
ILTLEY
il
851LLL
£e5)

SIVIEALYIN DNINYYET FHOUSTVE
"Ld2 YU ALNDOD 1VLBISIT
AEIID0S IYOMOLSIH ALNACO 1YIDIDITL
NY1d HLTYaH NOILYANNGS HISIVH
WIS

NOUVHOJEOD INSWNSELTH YWD
DNIAIN HOOOLNO 0D

VIO "RIOINOS

ONI (ST S0V ALLSD
NOLEVHOCSHOD M LSTHINVIA 89
JNOHD TTVD

STRIOLS H3IATIN O
NOLLYANNG TEAS

T BLONACEDS AYMYAY 1d
brequig AppuLoy JNTANNLNID
YAV ISV

ONI E01L3INGT

SHEGAMITN 3DG3

AT4NS TOOHIS INNODSIA
TIYMOINVH YISO

21 - INIYAW TTHOM NV

and yis

SNMHS NOLTY

QNI "SNSIS 3LNIOd H2INID
ONIHSANd LNICd YZINTD

ONI LNTIRINSIADD AGD

"ONI 'BNIESTL NOSTIYD
HOIAYL 2 HDiva

SAULA VLSIAY

AHE0R [21Y

JADSIY

T SHEOM 1MIT 038

NNY AT BT T

ATTVS 1504

AVSONI ‘NOSNDLY

¥IG AldiZ

O 'dN0YS OAVZ

ANYIGOOM H30 ALID

NOWTVYS JEIHAM 20 ALID

"IN GIANLS X0 TN=ITHM
JAYA AT G330 ONYEOYOUE ANMOLSY
ONI SNOLLOINNGD 21SYM
TVONOHSYM 40 ALID

OTEMN Lidym

ANYAAICD NOST2N I ¥ 1vm

181611 yr0Z/msee
86/611 ¥T0ZBTSS
S6.61} vegekeLs
YB.LEL] ¥E0eiB6es
261611 FZOTBLS
6611 ¥ZlZeTie
LB8l81L yeoeieess
0Bl81L ¥eazieers
P LN A A A
881811 vZ0Ziec/s
18181 vEOTIBLIS
98811 ¥EOTIETS
8781 vEZoz/eTis
V8611 VEOE/ETS
£8181| vIU/Ee/s
281811 TelTeels
18iBEL veneisers
08i811 YZ0S/E)S
BLISLL YZULIBEIG
8LI6L1 YEOTBER
LLIBLL ¥ENT/ETS
87611 ¥COLBT/S
2178} YOTIEs/s
YLI8LL OIS
ELIBLL Y2OZIETIG
CLLIBLL FEOTHHLS
LLIBLL ¥Z0T/RZIS
OLIGLL ¥#TOZBLS
894611 FEOTHTIS
89461 FEBTETS
L9LBLL FEOTHTIS
99481 VZ0T/6e
F9L6L L F20E/SLIS
POLELL VEOTISLIS
€851 YE0TmLS
TRLELL PERTSLS
L8811 P2OZSLS
03/8L) YZOZTISLIG
62LGL) VZOTIGLIG
84811 YOG
L9761 vEOZ/SLiS
SSL61E VZOZ/SLIS
Selelt ¥eozisls
VSL6LE YEQZIGLIS
6B ¥e0TiSLiE

Wwawied
JBAE
Jewied
wated
JusuAey
Wweaied
Juswied
wswieg
JUBLWAES
Justufey
ARy
Efeyg
JuSLARH
USWARY
ISUAEY
wsuiied
sLfed
JRuhed
oL
wewAeg
eukey
JaLie
jusuieg
wewhed
JuBuAE
usiifed
1stiEAzg
wswAed
uswAzd
Wiz
mewieg
Juswieg
WsLABg
Wawieg
waludeg
BWARY
u2fey
usuwhzg
usuifeq
wslifeq
jusuied
wauked
PRLUAE
aLfey
Welkey

LOTODT
0021
8000DITH
LOCOSTYM
LoocEeN
LODOWIND]
£00000HD

FOODOAIGSY -

L0001 1=
1a00vINED
CO00=TVE
20000=Tyd
20001404

Laceand
LO0OvENa

LOGOvINE -

£0002NG3
L0003DHTR
Z0202sI1a
2000M1Co
PARL AL
F000UVTD
FOGONNHS
OLOOINTD
LOQOINTD
10000MAaS
000V
2000Tx{vE
LOOBRIAY
gconLely
LOCGOSSY
Lo00caces
SSV0ZZLZ
CEYUELLE
VeVOLIZL
HGOTdIZ
L0000AVZ
LOO0JO0M
HIOOLIHA
BGA03THM
LCOOIAVIA
LOQCLSVAA
GFICHSVAM
LO0DITAA
LOOGIIVAA

Page 9 of 98



B8LZ¥
0c'osl
01’868y

| e

BLBLLE
05 ¥alL
00°GaL
00'2S
SeFLL
02'1ai
SO'BIE'Z
85108
103G
g1'6El
oraYa
08022
6¥1g
25592
lgole'se
19007
26281
00000l
31796}
8LZ8L'LT
BL¥He
or
£0'096°1
TGHE' AL
B86°0ET
$.999°2
J1'geE
9z 08
syl
29e8z
=g
065
6o0ss
eeg
¥FeLL'e
iz
90721

Q0 0SY
€789
907%9L°)
1Zol

ONYTIGOOM 20 ALID
TTYNOLLYNEILNI NEAYH FT0M

ON] ONLLNRIG B SOI1SY1d 1004DNIM

ITT'MN LY M

ANYSWOD NOSTIN I HI1TYM

SYIILNMTOA SNITH=LS

WYEOCHA NOLLONOT Wy TV 38TV H3ANOINYA
SADIANIS “IVIDNYNIZ “HBANCONVA Z0 ALIS
Alddns g 1708 HEANOINYA

SIALLMLLN HIANOINYA S0 ALID

TWOINVHOT VSt

3NFIN

ONI SMGOd DNOH Ivs1

. VLOAOL HIANODNYA

JHOD SNIHSMEN ISTM-SHI1NTH NOSWOHL

ONE 'SAJIAYES A3OVNYIW LEVAYNT

VANMENT HE3aMISNINS

“ONE'SNOLLMIOS ALIMADIS INTDHMAANOD ATINVLS

"ONI "S18ITVIDEdS WIAYSIOVLS

¥ GnNid ALNDOD VINYIWIS

090 INIWd vaaoy

STVHENINF SHOO0M 0 WSS AN IO
AR AlISULICH MNIT AXNLNZD
183NDoYd

Alddns SRUDTIE LI

UYL N F/EHYMONVH IS0V
SNLNRSG NITdiNvd

BATMAYIAD

GNY1LY0d 40 02 400 GvIHYIAD
NYId QY3 1Od=0 301440

2130

STLOEGLDUHS DS - ONEDT00
ANVANGD SYD TVHILLYN 1STAHLINON
DNICFIOH WAINTEd SAIANCLLIYN
{SHO0} S1:vd SNINNTS VdwN
SO3TIA T OO TyHNLINDIINN
VS DNISNIDN AON

YNLLSIEM ‘NYSHOW

IdY1 LSTMAIN

TOINKES AHVHETT LSTMAIN
STISNSHEAOT ANNTL

ITIXX04 IN0T

VAYIONI

ONI SNOLLYDI 1N WS
dNOUD SNILTHHVA ISID

SPRELL ¥20Z/62/5
L¥B6LL ¥202/6Z/G
CPBELL YEOZ/EZ/S
8e8ELL F20Z/5T/S
9ERELL PI0Z/EL/S
L8881 ¥YZOT/RT/S
92861} ¥elz/6e/s
SEeELY ¥e0z/se/s
FERELL ¥EOT/6C/S
£E8ELL ¥Z0Z/8Z/S
Ze86LL $202/62/5
LEBE LY ¥Z0Z/8e/s
0EBELL FEb2/ae/s
629611 Feue/aefs
828611 ¥ZhZ/edis
L28BLL yeoeses
828611 ¥E0Z/EEls
GZ86LL FEOT/ETSS
veRaLl ¥elzTi6els
EZ8ELL YDTI6CS
TZea1l FelZisnie
LeB6LL #E0T/BEIS
28611 PTOTIBTIS
GLBBLL ¥e0Z/6a/S
BLBELL FE0THTG
LL86E] FZ0Z/EE/S
9I86E Fe0diEe/s
SI86LL VPO0TEES
¥i86LlL vEOEee/s
£186LL vE0TIeZ/S
Z1856]1 ve0T/eTis
L1881l ¥e0areeis
018811 YEOT/ET/S
BOSBL) +Z0T/BE/S
80861} FOZ/EElS
L0861 ¥ZOEEE/S
S0BELL ¥EOZ/BE/S
S0BELL ¥C0C/BE/S
FoBELE ¥TOTIBES
085 P
coes Ll Fedzisais
Le961L FeoemsEis
QcesLL Fagziseis
86781 VIOTIBTS
BELBLL FTOT/ST/S

welied
UsWARS
uswied
1usLAEA
usWiEy
usied
Juswiey
ke
WBLWAE,
WsLWAR
ke
juewAed
Jualfed
Juaured
swAey
uafed
pLE=TES -1
usueg
JUBLARA
WSWAEA
jusLEd
JUSWARY
Weiufeg
swAzg
stufeg
Juswiied
Jewizyg
Juswieg
Juswied
uswARg
sy
reiEg
BLBS
SRR
s g
Wauied
TUSUAES
Wsliey
UStAE
Jusutied
JusuKEd
Jusliey
WSUKE
uswAed
usREg

LOC0QOOM
Q00 10M
LOCODNIM
L00BISY M
LODDLTYAA
FOOOR3A
ZEC0ONYA
SZCAONYA
ZOCOONVA
LOGOONYA
cU0UNYSN
LOOONMN
L0O0IvS L
LOOOOAOL
SLOCWOML
10001031
LOOONIAGS
ELONYLS
10003V HS
LOOOWAYIS
[Balceiwlate ]
10003383
OOIS3AD
L00000Md
LHoaoLYd
000X Y4
Z0C0dINYd
FOOOH3AD
LODOM3AO
1000140
LGOC3130
200037300
SGOOLMON
ZE00LL YN
LOOOY YN
LOOGLINW
LCODIACI
FOOCDHON
ZO00AROEA
LOGOARCTA
80003A07

20001001

SCO0DNI

L0001037
FOOUTZY]

Page 10 of 98



00°06Z AIHSHIYI T HLNDA GNLLY T ALNROD M0
poaoy AT3NOD ¥TMvg LLVYW
00891 ONI STAYIS VHEOD IONVIOSI TV
00T HL TYNOLLYMEZ NI IHNLINNME ASYHEN
58'ES9E6 JOYdST1d03d
ST ITE'L afig H2nUsH SeM JOMNNOSTIE FOVIRMOM
00°00L T NI T TTHAVZ
SYEPaE VM
00°00% d NOMVY "LOOST1IHM
TR Y ANYE X3
00005 MTHANY AHLOWIL ‘NOL2T
£0"009 LIDI0Nd "S N
00S5EC) LNIWZDVNYIN DIH10Vd HIMON
80052 OTI AdVEFHL VOOA NISTIN HYHvS
BI6I8 AVY AL102S 57T "HOSITUOIN
s HAIFVZITE ‘NLLYYW
1662 NVSNS "NIMET
92011 HINLIHAM 1 NET LY ~ TR0 LN SAHLYM
00ZET Kyeo0ud 139
8071 NOQNYHE 'ZOH0
T9EET OTi'SIID3G 89
i3:74 ONI SEYAYNTS YHADD SONVIOITIY
SZTO0L $334 ~ IS NV Id LIENIT SONVIDITIY
L% T HINOD - UNSI NvId LTINS S0NVIOI TV
HpowNy SIIEN JO0PUSA
LA R 3 SIUBEA [RICIGNS
L SHYMIHVH VISANI0D
05699 OF - INIVA GTH0M NV
TELE0T and o
007004 ONMHD NOATY
Fogol ONTSNDIS SIMIOCE BIINID
80°0ZF SNHSIIEd 1INIOd ¥3INSD
g DNELNTANMZADS AAD
0SBFLT “ONI 'DNILESTE NOSTHYD
S0/66°1E HOTAYL 2 ¥
18T SALMLLA V1SIAY
LETLL ALTNGOW 121V
009852 INISIY
SETYEL I SHRIOM 1810 098
sz VHOLOIA ‘WIS
00'sT NYIMSH (A 'NIHD
00sz WAMYD "AZ0
#0288 SNOLLMSSENS X0 1M
kgl ITTVA Il AONYTOO0M

JaqIuny JUSLLNSOG

£4020143 FZoe/ezis
&1080143 ¥e0z/eT/s
VA020143 ¥Z0Zfeers
04020143 ¥Z0Z/sL/S
68020149 ¥Z0Z/ALG
88020143 205l
18020143 $Z0Z/LLS
29020.d3 ¥Z02LLIS
S80201Ld3 YEOSLLG
PR0201dT vZ0TILLS
£9020.143 YZ0TL 1S
TR0 FROE/LLS
18050149 ¥g0ellLis
09020143 FEOTL LS
85020143 veoT/LLie
8502013 v20E/ 214
£5020143 Y202 LIS
95070143 ¥Z0T/LUS
SEOCULAZ FEOTLLS
(S ARE R ZAVAPAN
EE0C01d3 FeNe/ LS
28000143 ¥Z0T/LLIS
LE0Z014= ¥20e/LLE
0802013 YeOL/LLig

098611 ¥E0T/MCHs
BSEELL Fold/uems
898611 yEUTLS
ISBEBLL FEOLI0E/S
89951 ¥TOTAER
S8861] PElzines
Pee5LL EEE/S
£9881 | FE0goge
8851 L PEOZI0TIS
VS86E | FEOZOES
0S8611 ¥20z/os/s
6Fasl ) ¥Z0Z/0g/s
SF8BL1 vZOT/0e/S
I¥8BLY ¥T0T/6E/S
8¥BELE FZOT/BT/C
SYBBLE ¥20z/eTie
Froell ¥20Z/62/5
eFeBLE ¥20Z/6T/5

ajeQ UL WNTO(]

Walied
wotked
Uswifed
usAed
JewARy
WEAR L
wswied
waABg
wawhed
Waded
usAe
Jewdey
waltied
UBWAR S
WswhAed
wswAeg
Wswieg
sfied
UslAeq
ustuAEq
USRS
SWARS
ustfed
Wslhey
odh | Twuwinsog

JuBWAEd
JuaLhed
Jewded
weued
usuLied
TsWAzS
wewhsg
Jswhzg
Wawhag
nswieg
WUBWAR S
wBUAed
slfed
JDWABL
ke
WAL
wawieg
WBEAE]

0GRV D
CLO0DAVE
SLOO3TTY
LOGOOIAT
€Z003INI
FOO0WHAH
10ocunYZ
O00YIdAR
LZD01IHAK
HILOEmEM
LI00LdIL
ZC00oNd
9S00LH0ON
10005 1AM
E00CHDTIN
SH0INVIN
LOGOAMESA
FQOCH I
L0004 135y
S000ZNYo
IGO0
SLOCETY
FLOOSTTY
OGN
ariopuag

2000Moo
L0vI1D
FOOOMY 1D
LQOONMHD
GLOOINID
FOCQLINZD
LO002ANGD
L0007V
[AEAlEED ) =
LOCOSINY
£00DLR1Y
H000SSY
Loooauss
SEV0IZZZ
SeFZIZ
VEYOZZIZ
G003 1A
FOCOOOOM

Page 11 of 98



081 28'92T

FARWET AN
BT LER

91" IBZ'ZE
O LIE L
[V1HFAS]
£85za'al
Bl B0

Junouny

LpsyLy)

FeLs)
(05 609}
{eg 1500
{ooroal)
reesl)
(o5 9Zi}
(1e702)
(osar1'2
(80r268"12)
(1g211)
LerLs)
(oo9es?)
{ssz38 L}

Junouny

£121TTLL

Qo000
FTLOLE
607/89°C
2186
05 LLS'S
9¥az
g0
050L)
gg'RYe
B51Z9
a00ss
8108
o0FZT'L
00GoT
515574
=04
l01ecrd
e

WA LSAS ININTHIS HC 1430 HEVAL
INEFAIHYEA ALRNDIAS INSWASISINE

BSIA QENd

FANNIATH 40 1430 NOLDNIHSYA

WSH H2GTM
YSH HISNA
day

BRIEN JOPUSA

(PoDIOA)} SjUBLIER, [R303qTS
TAYAMINYH VIENNI0D
O1 - INIYW OTHOM N0

and Muvio
DNNHD NOLTY

ONI "SNDIS 2UNIOd w3 1NED
DNIHSENd INIOS ¥TINID
ONI INSWNEIACD MAD
ONI 'DNILSTL NOSTIVD

HOTAVL B YvE
SHELLNUN VEISIAY
ALIMSON L3 1v
NSV

TTISHE0M 1] 098
SR JOPUDA

S,1:31 [ezogng

O VO ATIYT HN0A

MDIN YZdMm
Vd

OT1 TIVYIN BRANCONYA TYINNIINGD SN

dT1S3AN 1B0Ls
NHOf "¥NY1INS

Q7T LSIMHLIHON OZHHS

VYIEHONY “HIEHOR

HHLIVIHL MOTVHS NOD=HE0

ISWO
3N 'OavIHaN
€800 JINNOg

HINLHAM 1 NETHIVY - TVRIOLINYG SAHEVH
SONIIEYS 3H L ONY TIRSIWYD vSSEr

YOINCRSA ‘STHDNH
NYSNE ITISH
WYHDOXNd 199
AJSJ00 TN

002E1LOCO0CO0CAND #T02/FLiG
668211.00000000000 FEOZHLS

BEEL 00000000000 FRTIFLIS
JBSEL LB0COC00GA00 FZOZRLG
SBSEL L0COCCO0000 ROV LIS
SBSEL LOO0ACGH0000 PZOTFLIS
FBSELLBACOCOO0NAN0 FEOEk LIS

IBquINN JSWIRICQ Sy WSN6g

8LI6LL vEOZ/Beie
LLISLY YEQZ/E/S
81161} YEOTIBZIS
SilalYy veozieZis
VLLBLE vEOT/EZIS
SLLBL) PEQZ/6E/S
CLiBl) YE0giaeie
LLIBLY Y202/6215
QLI61% Y2OEBTIS
B9/611 vZ0Z/BTR
88611 veGe/eTia
19811 FEOTMHTIG
S2.UB1L Feoeieers

IquInk Jusumsog ajeq juswmnoog

160Z0143 ¥2072/6¢/S
0802C1=40 FelZiee/s
BB0Z0.L43 VZ0gBe/S
8BUZ0LI3 FZOZBTIS
12020143 vEQLELISs
98020143 vEdT/eZ/s
98020143 te0Z/eZ/S
PROENI43 VEOZ/ETSSG
8020143 PE02/eC/s
28020133 ¥20T/5255
LROZOL3S $20E/5T/%
(802013 +#T02/62/S
62020L33 veoEses
802011 peoeiseis
L0201 17 vE0zeeis
SLO201:S veOz/eTis
SI0E01d3 PRUZ/EE/S
VvZ020142 vZ0Tiee/s

HRWAR
wsiuieq
JUSLUAZ
JUBUILR, L
ambeg
wewAed
Wiz
Sdi] wswnsog

Tusle L
P =L
USRS
JuseuAEd
usiey
Wwalfef
Jzewie
Wwistidey
welded
weuded
WSWARS
WwaLfe
pECTTIZNC

adAl pwwnaog

Walife
waukzg
awied
Wauag
melieg
TustIAed
JUBLUAR]
s
UL
jualied
TUSLEAE
Juslitieg
Wwewizg
Wewieg
mewfeg
wewieg
euied
WSWARY

ELOOHSYN
LOCOHSYM
ZO00VSIA
SC00ST¥
L00GIAaNT
20001434
1000daY
Qartopusp

L600MI02
2100vID
PO00HY 1D
OCONNHS
CHIGLNGD
FROOINAD
LOC0DMAD
ZOOFTIND
<000TMve
LCO0SIAY
20008y
10000849
Losoaoee
) JopusA

Z000UN0A
£000V3dM
1000¥3dM
FO00LSIM
LOCOACLS
CCACLING
LCOB3BHS
S000aHOS
BE0CDTHO
LO00ISHIO
LIDOTYEA
€0000a0N
LOOOH Ly
LIQ0RSAT
FOROHSNR
£00GT13H
L0019
200000

Page 12 of 98



¥e6igEL0e $

99°991°796 $

£9'v 0058 $

Tk
108l
FECLY
Zyo6L'e
LLIBLT
aroce'ell
SB'6Z9'85E

2029 Ly 3

7% 4
BZ¥SET
AT
056842
06268711
L¥'686°2a8
$unouny

Teaclddy 1o) SpusItAey ANpUO jeIet

R a0y Joifed pyo)

Popad A24 puz - [Houmg
RCARUIT (o]
sBuipouLw a0

59XB] PUN SA1E0 VALY
SENE] TWEd-daY

@] [[0ahed uoBap-day
saxey, [josed Repes-day

. sebepy Jjaskeg N-day

pouad fed 131 - EICIGRS
XE] JIsueld| W

SOMBL PUNJ S3I2D VA-dAY
SOXE} TWdd-day

soxe| jeukeg uobBan-gay
sexe) [[oihed eRped-day
sabep |oiAed BN-daY
JWEN JopuUsp

Y0 e S sjeg Aud oufag
YEOEFES Sie(] fed osded
POT VTS f1e) fed lioufed
VENL VTS eTe@ Aed mided
Yeoe v § 2520 ARd Hoxiad
V20T FZ S 2201 g [loikey
Y022 G areg feg oy

FZOZ LG S1eq Aed goiieg
VEIE0V'S Sl ABd fosfeg
YZ0Z0L'S 2120 A2d [01fEy
¥202701°G s1ea Aed [oufeg
¥ZOZ0L's |eg A2d [lokey
PZOZTOL'E S Aed IoiAeg

uﬁnEaz u:mE_.._UOQ

VEOETIEIZ
voZlrels
f AN AEA
YeoEiveEs
Ve
veneivers
YEOTFESS

FEUE/GLS
YCOEioLG
pATA R
A
YEOZiCLS
FeOTIOLS
sJe( WRtuNsog

wswAsd
stuieg
REaUAng
AR
pH TN
JBAE
BWARL

JusLAE-
Jusuey
awied
JsAe
Justhed
Wewie
atf) wswnosog

CdayY
aCday
LoGday
HO0daY
Hooday
LGSOV
LOD=aY

$00dav
L0040V
00dav
100daY
Lo0dav
[Real o\
] Jopuss,

Page 13 of 98



FORT VANCOUVER REGIONAL LIBRARY DISTRICT
Approval of Claims
As of
July 15, 2024

As required by RCW 42,24.080 and RCW 42.24.090, vouchers audited and certified by the Auditing Officer of the Fort Vancouver
Regienal Library District and those expense reimbursement claims which have been certified as required, have been recorded on
a list and made available to the Board of Directors for approval.

As of this date, July 15, 2024 The Board of Directors, by a vote does approve for payment the following vouchers, warrants, voids,
: and electronic transfers issued

June 1, 2024 through June 30, 2024
Accounts Payable Warrants Issued Numbers 119861 Through 120028 $1,723,628.33
Accounts Payable EFT Payments EFT02082 Through EFT02128 $ 50,509.27
Subtotal FVRL General Fund Warrants, EFTS, Voids $ 1,774,137.60
Payroll Electronic Fund Transfers Nurmbers 20240810 Through 20240625 $ 1,257,674.22

Other Electronic Fund Transfers (Manual Payments) Completed

Verndor Data Amount
ADP 6/20/2024 § 4,865.79
ENDICIA 6/24/2024 $  8,000.00
KAISER HSA 6/28/2024 $ 15,836.08
FNBO Visa 6/14/2024 $ 18,040.85
WASHINGTON DEPT OF REVENUE 6/24/2024 § 2,037.82
WASH DEPT OF RETIREMENT SYSTE 6/26/2024 §$216,366.12
$ 265,848.66
Total Transactions for Approval § 3,207,558.48

” '- . /
DISTRIET LIBRARY %S:ICUT?&E‘&TOR [,

I/JMIT?MJ/‘)

DISTRICT LIBRARY - BOAKD PRESIDENT

Page 14 of 98



0UveLL
BRLGILIL
SESEY
oLFEL'L
BOTRET
OLELYL
S¥DS
6¥I8ET
81662
8LPOLY
$6QLE'L
9528
oFasL
o5zEz
00959
OR'E9Y
856
85022
8L6¥E
SZ9LZ'0L
598
&Z0LL
PBLEY
PRy
05TEET
LLogey
87680%
LSOZE
IE06E
LOErE'L
oTes
ORZZEDL
6P
SLTLL
foy )
5.g29
E0LIE
FlE8eL
PLTIOL
Lo’
[L'65€
L¥FESS
9LEBLZL
CEE0L
15008
20BLLE
19EL

0L 6YgE
S0 HLE098

JUNOE

DT AJONYH BO66LL

WYHON] 206611

IM) A¥QOL NOHYWHOINE 196611
NOLEQRAOD ININTY LT vINDE 06611
SEOIAEES UGTD L0430 INOH 506511
INIINAHIS AT SAHEVH ¥06611
NOSIYOZH £06B11

DNIAIT BO0ALN0 0¥ 06611
JIVANZTTOS 40 ALD 106611
NOLLYECLI0D HA1SFHINYIA 49 06611
diICYD TVD 569611

371 3NING SACOS HONFuS 968611

317 'S12NG0Yd AYMYAY1d 2169611
AlddnS SN DV NOSNDE SE26L1
ANIHSO! VYA NOISNS SEGLL
Bregeug Apsusog NNITAHNINTS ¥686LL
NNYASYIN FI02-NeINNA £626EL
O2Ia 2686L1

SSANISIIE 1SYDNOD 1686E1

SROMIIN TYNOELMLLSNIASYDINDD 068BLE
TES04SIa ¥IAN VIEWMIOD 582611
ANYLIHOD IDUNCSTH VIRWNIOD 88961
d3 - NIVIAl GTHOM NYTTY Lge5L1

WA - INIVIA JTHOM NyIT o8e5LL

21 - ANV JTIOM NYITD Sg85Ll

OH - INIVIA ATUOM NYT1D PRIELL
SEINIVIA QTOM N3 £R6LL
VAA-LNIYIN CRIOM NYTTD ZBg6LL

M -IKTIVIN TRICM NYT 1D L9511
SAA-LNIYIA ROM NYT 1D U896LL
LLMILISYM ST VD 619611

and MDD 98611

ISV MA -4NOYD 1D LIZGEL

Y3INID NOUNGNISIE ODv0RD 918611
N ANNINTD SZBBLL

TWA - D1 SNELLSAS WD PI06LL

WA - D17 SINTISAS INED £286LL

WA - JT1 SWAISAS D 228511

15 - DT SIALSAS WED L8511

T - 2T1 SWALSAS WD nzasLL

- D71 SWELSAS NaD 595511
QNNOYES TLLYE 40 ALD SO8ELL
BOTAYL 2 ¥Tyve L9961

ALTHIOW IRy 398611

Lz 999611

UATED NOFNOZYWY 93611

WEINID ONIJTING SNATIV £986LL

DN SIDIANIS IINVHENSNI INVITTY 2935LL
3N NCIDMLSNOD MINTug 13261
DR LOPLUSN, IR JUSEED T

PROTIPLIS
bmsrsy Wi
FROerLa
LW}
yoozrLR
P202TLR
YZOTrLI
YZ0Z/rLIe
FeierLa
yeozivLia
PRO2TLA
YECTIVLIS
¥2ITELIS
¥202/71A9
YE0EYLIG
YZ02/vLSe
PRI
rasrdia W]
PEOZ/LIG
FEOEALIG
FEQE/TIIG
T 7L
FEOTrLI
FEOTLO
Fe0TALe
F2OLYilfa
Y2021/
F20E/1/9
PZOR/L/O
YZOz/rL/0
YZ0R/TLIS
FEOL LG
¥eozivl/e
¥e02/pLie
yeue/yLie
¥R rlie
VesE L
enzivL/e
YEQETLI
h i dvel
YTOTHr LD
YZoz/vL/a
YROZHLO
PO
FEOZIFL/D
YIOTHLSG
FeO/riie
FeOErL/o
YOS
S HRn>oa

Wvweg
wewAey
JuawAed
WRLiEg
UIWAEY
Wawed
USWAR
Wawdzyg
wauie
Juslzied
JUBLLIAR]
wattieg
Juauifeg
JuBLARY
JuRAEg
Wawheg
Justiiey
wsuied
Wolifed
Jemied
wewfzg
Wewieg
IUSWAEG
uawileg
BT
wewles
uBWAES
JuswAiey
s
wowhed
Wi
ARy
uamiey
Jusiifed
JUBLIAZY
wewded
nELieg
weunleg
Wrwideg
yuswieg
usLWAeg
PEWAR]
Juawied
wsuileq
WA
wolhed
WBULARf
uawled
ey
cif) zuaturoog

LO0QONYH
LOTOMEN]
FOOOCHNI
LOBOVINDI
LO003INOH
LOGUEYYH
1000802H
£8C0UD
£000dT0D
LOOCVINED
2000TTVD
Z000NTSd
LG30aNH
$G005434
1O0GISNT
Lo0aveEng
LO0OZNNG
LGGHMIT
E0D8DINCD
20080
ZE0OMGD
£000MCO
ZHYEAD
8locvIo
L10CvTD
EHOCYITD
LwogvaD
otoovs 2
00010
1000v1D
SZO0EYID
FOOOTYTD
20005112
FOOODHHD
S0COLNTD
Elilpainglieg
SO00SINED
YOOOSINED
E000SIND
0005
LCS0SWgD
LO0OLLYE
Faiivp s
£000L8LY
1ooaialy
LOO0ZYINY
LAagATIvY
00T
LOCONTHY
al iopusp

Page 15 of 98



S1ETL
BLog
060¥9
05596l
OB LB0'SL
6845
ZIPBLL
bugsrd
d=ad
9L082

i ¥a 14
SELLLT
oosl
ool
B6'6EL
T d
[Blratid
SFTYY
erisls
PELSL
00'508
00sS
TOCo0E
ZT1807L
S6'E8PY
SFYET
(53108
D00z
8509671
SLeRE
EFSFZ
850OYE
2EELL
s 2N
86T
96'859°9
LT
¥ise
EZB50F
SELINLS
057465
SOPEL L
£7BESE
FEFE
88'5ZLEL
SLTPL
000S1
0wl
05059°L
£F18L

YAUNI) NCLLNEEISKI OSYOIHD
SNIHSTTEN LNIOd HIINID

TYA - DT SINAISAS I8ED
TNUDNILSIL NOSTHYD

HOAVL 2 HINvE

SALLFLT VISIAY

ANYANOD THEIIW DULTIHLY 3HL
SINA -vTY

LIERD WO NCZYINY

YALNID DNITINE SNATTY

INDSIY

NOILYHOJHOD WOD0ad

AININ TIATIVD

NEOM TIOHNYD

¥3dH AdIZ

SHOLLARISENS X0D 1M

NOWIVS SUHM 30 AL

JNI SNOLLDEINNOD 11SYM
ANVAINGD NOSTAN 3 ¥arvm
NOZI¥IA

INIZYIVIAL ATTINYS YAANODINYA
STOIRES TVDNYNE “¥IANOONVA 40 ALID
TYIINVHDIN VSN

VOMINY 90 02 SNIL 31 WAND

DN STDIAEIS LN DVNYIAL INDING
annm

VLOAQL ¥EANODINYA

1TCOVA IO NMOL IHE

JUOD HOLYATTS ddriddMNISSAHL
DNISTIAYIS AIDYNYIN TLVAVNG
WooTIzLsaL

NOSNIAILS 30 AL

ONISNOILTIOS ALRINDIS INISWIANGD ATINVIS
WODNOLLDANNDD-JdWVIS

HSavIeS

STORINOD NOSNHOT

09539V

2274 SIS SNandT

DMLUNRId NOdYd

FARGHIAD

ANVANCD SOLYAST SILQ

NYTd QD 10d3d 39140
ANYHNOD SYD TVHALYN 1STMHIB0N
DN SNOLLITIOS XN

34V 1S3MAIN

TOYLINGD 55303V QHIaN

BYHIIA CINNAT

YN V140 LD

aNd ALNACD EVLADTE
INISIDIATES TY.LNSVNOYIANT ¥E1TY

BG66L1
2a66LL
256611
o566l
£56511
96511
56511
256611
156611
117 8
BPERLL
Sre6lL
iFEBLL
avesll
SkEGLL
¥r6ell
EpeELL
Zreoll
iveELL
OFesL1
GeeGLL
BEEBLL
{EEGLL
52EsLL
SEBELL
PEEGLL
EEBBIL
ZEB6LL
1e66LE
nEB6LL
5266LE
BZ66LL
LBELE
926810
SZEELL
FeB6LL
[T71N
ZLB6LL
LZE51L
CZG6LL
GLEGLL
8LesLL
L165L1
215511
SLESLL
YLGGLL
ELG5LL
<LEELL
LIGsLL
OLE6LL

veoe/eTre
PROeeTR
vEGZ/gTS
zozieTie
Ve0ziszis
veoeisTie
VEQR/R2IS
YECZIALIS
YEOTRTe
vEOZ/RTIS
YEOERTS
Fele/gess
veoeirLe
TEOET LIS
Yol
PG LIS
veoTivlie
YeEirla
Rgardian)
PSS
FEOETLA
FEORM LD
PEOLT LS
PERFL/S
hordidve
¥2oeLe
FEOUT L/
PUTYLIS
PEOLTLG
PO
PEOTALI
PO/
FIOLAL/G
¥Z0Zrife
Y0z YIS
FROT/PL/S
¥0T/PL/S
YEOTTLIG
FeoZrL/S
F2OT/rL/G
Ye0e/rL/e
Ye0e/rL/9
FTOTAELIG
POl
POz Lio
YZOeAL/e
PENELA
veoziFLia
FEOTFLAD
FTOTAH LS

wawiied
wawsieg
JuBLARd
wawked
WBWARY
sweg
WBUAzS
RLfeg
yuswAeg
wawfeg
JuBLAed
sied
TIBLIARA
swieg
wawfed
WBWARg
wawied
awheg
WswAeg
1ustuAeg
1uELARy
Jawied
e
WwswAeg
WwawWheg
Justkeg
Wwawhed
nawAed
kel
wRuied
JUSWARE
wskeg
Jealuheg
JuLiAeg
Jusufeg
JuzAeg
JBLUARS

- weudey

umufzg
wmwieg
WBWARg
wswhed
LTI
Wawdeg
swdeg
WoswiAeg
WRLLARS
wsuwieg
riswied
JBIARY

POO0DIHD
LOBOINTD
SO00SINTDY
LOQOTREVD
2000=4vd
LEOOSIAY
LOBOTHLY
L1003V
LOCOLIINY
LOO0ATTY
L000DS4Y
LOGOIN TS
REVOTZZL
Le¥07777
L3001dEL
1008001M
LOOOTIHA
LOQO1SYMA
LO0OLTVAL
COU0NISA,
FEOONYA
ETOOONYA
ZOOOANYSN
Z00DINANN
Z000TINN
LO0ONMN
LOJ0OACL
LO00NAAOL
LOOOSAHL
00aL331
LG00LSTL
100CGAZIS
EL0ONVLS
CODDINVLS
S000YINS
LO00AINTS
S000NDIS
HOO0NdTY
Z006dWVd
FOOOEEAD
LOOOSILO
LOGOIAO
SO000.LAGN
HIG8CSAW
Z000MQIN
LI0ONESN
LO0ZNINNT
E0003DYY
2000
LC2LTH

Page 16 of 98



[sapTi- 4
oL'962
[>T
00052
£5'896'E
00008
BSELR
OF8ELL
DUEsLL
B5SF R
/syl
BY166
(0.3 4
ogerroL
Z9'E8e
[y 4

B REZ
0oors
oFeeTL
EiNe:]
£9C0SEY
oresL
06712
FELVL
DEYSE
BS06Y
15881
YEYIL'EET
GE2EYBL
LEpal's
0oL

LT ETTY2
o0pss
SUE
o0¥95°L
oEsLe
0SZ5E
CUDLFL
0goLg’L
PRESLTL
oooz
S6'S00'Z
OE0SToE
LBV
0866
PEBEL
FirLar
S§'L26
SILET
STSO0E

AFHDLE QRVHOR

N1 WCDAZY

£8P# SADIAMAS DIENTY
HOLOFT13

1S9 AUBLLIOE MNTT AYNINTD
ALZID0S NCISNYN MO 11
JNIEYSO NCOLLYOENd NYISY NYd
AN Y3NLLHD T

NOUYWOLNY THE20 DHDV
IAMTUEAC

ANYANOD YOLYATTE SUC

N1 Tev2 10430 30130
ANYIINGD SV TYELYN LSZMHINON
SINLL OA MSN

DNEITOH MNIATId 3AWMWNOLLYN
(4 CD) SLxVA ININNID VdYN
SOFIA % SHOOE TRINLITED-1IN
oI ONISNIDNE JIAOW

3], LSAMTIA

IATIAEIS ABVHENT LSIARaiN

TN SFLSAS 30SONKT

TEVHIA OIANM

YAYNONI

dNOYD DNILDNIYI 1S9
SARLLSNNI GNY HOTY1 20 130
“Ld3Q ¥ ALNNDD WYL
VORIFANY S0 STIOLSHO0a VAINTIONT
N¥1d HETYSH NCLLVANNOS M55
YOI

NOLLFEOdE0) INSNFELLE YINDI
ONNOYDAY T S3dvH

UTAOVH

NOSIVISND 9THD

ANEWINT] NV DI YHACHD
IOMAYIS 13T13 SNONTED
JTHNVINOSNYIN ATIDS ST NOGEOD
TANLLNES 3TWaNIT100
NOUVIOSIOD ¥ISIHINVIA 89
4I0¥D FIVD

OT1'dN0YS SABCIONEDA L ANFILNOYS
NOLYANNCE TEAS

J71'SIDNCON AVMYAY TS

DNI YINNYANE VIGIVEOTIADINS
breques Areuue; XNFASNIND
QaNd ALNNGS ZUTWOD

SSANISNE 1SYINCD

SOIANIAS FDVITDNYT VIRWAICD
JL - INIVIA JRICM NvITD
SHC-LNIVIA GRa0m NeT D

and Mdvo

00Tl
0C07L
oozl
S000ZL
S000ZL
+O0OZE
£00021
2W0e0eL
LOGOZL
Gogo7L
GEE6LL
SEEELL
LE661L
S666LL
$8861L
PEEBLL
EGGGLL
266611
LEEELL
OeGel L
636610
8EGGLL
LBBBLL
986511
866LL
FAGELL
£8661L
288611
LRGSLL
0866LL
6488L1
BLES5LL
LiBSLL
346611
SIGALL
FIEELL
£/EELL
cLBell
LEEaLL
QLe5Lt
GIEELT
ROBEL L
£96511
598611
98611
¥I66LL
E9R5LL
ZIEELL
L9gaLL
095511

¥20z2/82/0
PZ0T/RT9
VEOZITZI9
A rra)
YR0L/BT/S
PEOT/82/2
VEOZ/RE/9
Yeuz/ee/s
YROR/RT/9
YEOR/T/D
yeoz/ee/a
Yeoz/sz/a
FROZ/RE/S
FROZ/EZIS
Ye0Z/BT/9
¥e0e/ee/s
FEUEIRElS
YEOT/8Z/S
Ye0z/eT/e
Yoe/8e/
¥e02/92/8
e se/e
YECE/82/e
FEUL/E/G
yeCE/gR/S
Pee/eT/e
FEUE/SE/e
¥zoe/se/s
yzoz/se/e
veoT/eT/e
yeoe/ee/s
ye0e/se/o
yeoe/szfe
¥e0z/azo
Yeoe/8e/9
¥eoz/ee/o
¥roz/ee
FE0E/82/9
FTOT/8T/
reie/eeie
PEUE IS
YECZIBTIS
PEOTARTS
¥Z0z/82/e
FEQZ/G2/S
¥Z0Z/82/9
yeacsazse
YTO/8T/8
¥eQz/az/o
v20Z/82/a

BCTH A
JuswAe
TeswAed
FUCTHCE
JuaLedey
Justuhey
Juaiey
wauzAeg
atey
Jatied
WsLded
usuzfey
weLARg
P
ey
JusLthey
WBAR]
wdwAzg
Jusied
watAey
pUETHESR]
sz
n=wdzg
wswhzd
plsCTHZCK]
uBiAeg

. nmwAeg

wwked
wewhed
sz
wswled
uswieq
quswieg
mawied
quswdeg
TuswWied
wouiey
suswied
e
wewieg
1usules
yuauwkes
uRwAeg
wawiey
RWARY
Ewied
pUEITH AN
Jususie
Wauifey
JusLIARY

1000200
LO000A3Y
Lo0DNGTY

1000733

LBOOSIMD
£000LUS
1000w NYd
f200IDvd
100010V
YOODEAAD
10G0SLLO

10001340

SOOOTHON
FOO0AMIN
ZECDILYN
LOOGY TN
L0aLN
LOOGIACIN
CON0MAIA
LOOOAAIN
LOODONAT
L0NIAINT
£0009NIT
FOBOIZV
1002021
SHOMTA
LO0BOND

LOBOSIV
LO00YONI
LOBOTIDI

E000JdvH
E0DOHIYH
Z0001sne
LOOTACHD
TOGINTHS
hgiltilarles]
SO0HTI0D
1000y ED
20803TvD
E00ONQOHES
20005 0d
LCOCONI
LO00ASNE
Lo00vara
Catilien)
00000
¥Z00N700
LLO0YI I
000V
POOHY D

Page 17 of 98



00°S2E
0588
0ses
AN <4
0588
o0vsLE
ZETLF
YLyl
0541
A3
85758
oO'sL
TIET
009
L9 wigY
oTLEDY
QFs51°ZL
el
897
0052
00051
ZETUY
iy ]
sl
i rd
000Es
STO0L
216287
umonny

£E8Z9's2L’L $

oose
00'sg
98051
o001
6F¢
0000
ESPEL'Y
¥9'E98
eo'sre
00r999'E
95%0z's
Flg=r4
FLSL
ELERE
6C8LY
orss
L87ELE
498768
Lozl

HAANCGd A¥d3A

¥il3d ‘DONAYE

STV NOLESINDSN

HiFEVZIE NIYIA

H3S ANFNETR

WINLHM T NZTTHLYY - TYRHOLNYT SAHIWE
WVHD0Nd 13D

NOGNWYE ‘ZndD

INVIG YD

IATIAINID NMOEE

YAOLYT LLTDVag

DNISIDIAMTS YHE0D IDNYIDITIV
VI

SHIVITIM AUYIN

ANVE XEM

DNE YD NOSNHO! ‘G YSIaL
ANTNIDYNYIN DIV HIBON

T AdVEHL ¥YO0A NISTAN HYYYS
NITTHLV ‘ZINIW

AF1ST] EETUN

¥XE1 Vo3

WYdsCHd 139

amya siTEs

THIN "AHINNA

2T ’sHds3a 88

AONYD

S - IWOW NYTd 1133N3E IONVIOTTTY
UINGD - LNDIN NYd LIZ3NZg IDONVIDITTY
suiep 1opusy

suRleM (2I01InS
AT ‘DNCULSIAY

HYHYS ‘MUISNIM

SNOILARDSANS X0 1M

TYNOUYRNERINI NSAYH T10M

LongiZt

VIQZHOHM

DN SNOILDINNOD 3L5vMm

ANYAINGD NOSTIN 3¥3LIVM

SUITINMICA SNFEALS

WINCD 0 YEEINVHD INVA H3LYTED
TWIINYHIIN ver

NI

NI S3008 DNGA IvSL
YICAGLYIANCONYA

100 SNIHSNEN [STM-SHILNTY NOSWOHL
WO NOLTINNGD-NYLS

STOUINGD NCSNHO!

SHAINTD SNIGNNG AYM-YNHS

SASYISNOHS

[ZATAARE]
2LLE1-3
ZL120143
G11L20143
SL1Z01d3
FL1L20143
[3ANIIEE]
2llzola
LL12al43
oLLZ8143
60l28153
0120153
L0lEgla
el EC|
PRz |
FOLECIST
T0LEgI=a
[{tiEHEE]
[GLZg1s3
[HERAEE]
660c01a
ge0etlH
JidvuHEE|
96020153
56020043
FE0Z013
£e0Z0ia
26020143
BEWINN Wsinzog

820021
L20cgL
920021
SZTOOZL
¥e0czL
2002t
TeaeL
leogzl
0021
GLo0ZLE
gLo0ZL
LIGOZL
SLo0zL
SLO0ZL
TLOUEL
gLoogt
ZLooEL
LioozL
oLoagL

YECE 8Ll
FEQE/BE/G
PZOZ/BESG
vEGEfRefe
ece/aels
YZOT/RE/G
Yeoe/ee/s
¥0T/5T/e
F207/82/9
¥eoe/ge/e
FEUT/GL/Y
POZ/ET/e
FeOe/FL/0
Yenerr/o
Y0z L9
FEOZLrLia
YE0E L9
yZ0e/rL/9
TIPS
¥eoz/rli9
YEOEFTLA9
Y209
vZ0EfvLie
FEOTELD
¥e0evL9
v20T/YLA9
FeEOe/rIio
FEOTFL/O
Sje[] Jualundag

Y20z/ee/a
Felesenio
PEOZT/RE/e
vegeraeso
vegefeeie
¥Z027/82/9
PEDEfTfe
vege/ez/a
¥Z0T/eefe
YZOTIRTS
¥20eee/s
¥R
FE0TRZ/
¥eoTfRE/a
¥EOTRES
YeOEmse
renefaesa
¥e0T/aen
YeOeieess

WHUAEY
JSWARL
wELAEg
WeluAE
wawed
WRAE
mufzg
FUBAZ]
wwARg
usuieg
JUSIARZ
wamieg
Jueutley
JUSWAEH
wahed
Juswided
Wewtled
juswieg
TsAed
Juawiag
Juatuieg
akeg
Juatuked
Justifed
JuBluieq
WAz
JusLfed
usWAed
adi] pawmog

usWAeg
usWAEg
WBWABD
usufeg
uswikeg
ERC VLG
Juswieg
Tuswieg
Juswieg
TuBUIAE]
swied
Tuswieg
awdeg
WSLIAEY
eswieg
TRUSEL
JuRwied
rsuwieg
FUBWAEY

Z000MOd
L000UdYd
1006A0OW
SLOBLYYIN
LOODITTH
1000HLY::
10004
£000ZPD
SE00UVTD
QHICMOEY
10000vu8
SLOBITIV
LOOOVIdM
LECOTTIMA
L000DEM
LOOEOTaL
9500LH0N
L000S1EN
SOO0ININ
2E06THN
[Evialii s cpl
1600139
£B0GTED
LOBO4NNA
LODONGD
QLo0asSYD
FLODITIY
LLOGITIV
ariopuap

BEFULZIZ
QLT
LO0H0D LM
soood1oMm
[ deitisn i
LOQOAGCHM
L0DOISVAA
LOCOLTYM
FOOGISA
EOBODNYA
2O00NYSN
LEOGNIIN
LOOMVSL
LOS0CACL
SLO0MOHL
ZOOQWYLS
LeDOdINIS
LOUGYNHS
LOOOMOHS

Page 18 of 98



BIBSSL6TE $

ZTFLSISTL $

LL'CGZ'92Y 3

gLy
Qreoe
yireoee
SPERlE
STLTHT
95ZL1RLE
B6TPEBSE

FELl9Tse $

ITEL
LEQSE
BLEIYL
SE6LETL
T ]
LEBOFLS
LSERS002

LEZI9'R05 $

[SHrs 4
SI66E
PETZ6'T
£T556'E
Y1282
1595121
96°C1'vIE

99'apg'saz 5

21'99€917
eRLERT
SEOrORL
B0gERSL
o00o0o'e
BLESSY
FUROWEry

160505 s

L6502
LLBELT
L2ELS
005y
oFgl
bl
ov'osy

fenciddy 10 spuatnfes Apuont EloL

sunp 10} [0s4Rg rI0L

polied Keg puz - Bogang
xe1 Jsue) HO
sBupioyum 180

SEMR L PURd S220) Y-daY
sXEL TAEd-a gy

saxe] {josded uoBCay
sexe | ([Biied |REE3-dqy
safiepy, |joufed BN-dAY

fizd - pusdis vadm

el jsuer] Yo
SBUP[OYRIM JBUED

SSXE] pUny S21RD Y-day
SSKE] TINAd-dav

sexe] [[omey voBaIg-4ay
$EXEL |jolARd J2apad-day
safep ||2heg 18N-dav

pound Aug 15). - EI0gNG
XB| JsUR1] ¥QO
sBupoyMm Jey0

SSXBL PUnd ST YAAJOY
Saxe] TNI4-daY

soxe] [jonfieq uoBa10-day
s2xz joseq (esapes-dav
saBepm floufeg IBN-day
urepy hﬂ—u=0>

(suawied HOY) [eozgng

WZLSAS INZNTHLIT A0 143¢ HSYA
INNTABY 20 L1430 NOLDNIHSYM

* ESIA ONS

¥SH YISy

YDIANS

aav

aSwen Jopuex

5,003 [B30gng

AN Y3

vIdm

OTETRSIN MEANODNYA TVINNILNGD 5N
INLSEVES 9O &N

1 MCTHRILS

371 1SIAMHLNON EHHS

JTHYNNIH 3SHOR OMIADY

PZOTETC AR ARy (1A
YZOTGTQ o1Rq Aed (Ic1ked
YT0T ST oieg Azd 0y
FTOT G0 SRa fedg hag
VE0E 29 #1eq A licihed
20T G2 e e Aed |IuAed
Ye0T5T8 2yBQ Aug (luded

Y20T5Z'9 eleq el (oukag
$20T52°0 21R( fed Az
¥20Z'sZ D 8120 fed AR
VE0E ST MRQ Aeg iy
YEOT'GT'S MR feg Ioafeg
FZOTSE'0 R Ao Todfeg
VEGE 5T'e R Ard rolfed

¥E0ZTLg 998 Aed uAeq
YZLTUL'e 28 Aed loiieg
¥Z020L's Meq Azd osed
PEOT G0 e feg [jokey
YROZUL #1ea A2y [loifed
YZOZ0L'a He A2y [|osheg
YZAZOLD 310 A2y (jokey

JBCIUNN JULWRSAG

ZLEELLO0000000000
{LESELLB0000000G00
ELEELLOGDOA0ODEAN
FL8ELL0000DG00800
J(L2EL 100000600000
&£08E 1 000000000

BN HBUIRGA

AR
SZLE01H
FZleala
£2120)43
ZeLTo 143
Llz0i43
02120443

LA
VEBEIScio
VEUTISE/9
Al
VEOZ/SE/
fgAiraic]
eherser

PEEVES
VEQCiFTS
VEOEVT
VeUErTS
A A
PEASATIS
YeOTHrTis

Vel
VEOTIoLg
LA ]
Fe0zT/OL
VEQTIQL
FTOLOL9
Yeoz/oL/a
3380 juswnaeq

¥I02/8e/9
reoesserie
Vel
Fene/gele
YeoTivzle
¥eoz/ozfe
I3 JuILTIRg

¥E0T/qe/9
v ue/e
Yenz/ee/a
FEGE/BE/9
e ed/e
Yeoz/ee/e
FI0Z Be/e

weufeg
JuswAed
el
usfed
JauAed
Wolfeg
UAUARA

wawdeg
weuieg
aWARg
WaWARS
suatufe s
ey
wawhzg

Jusuiied
ek
HIECTELCE |
Iufed
Jusuifed
pmuE
Tuatied
2d4] ysmnoseg

JuBLAEY
uBAzg
uswieg
JueLfeg
walieg
Juswied
BUA] WEumTog

Justufey
stifeg
AstuAEg
UBUAR
REwAzS
WanAzg
Wweallfzg

L002av
Le04aY
G02aV
H303aV
10020v
10020V
1500y

1304y
LO0dCTY
L0y
LWoday
L0040y
HOday
L00daY

10Cdav
10040V
L0040
100day
[Sei 1oy
[Jea=la) g
L00daY
gjsopuap

ELOOHSYM
LO0GHSTM
CEOO¥SIA
SGO0SIVA
LGO0IaNT
[BusliSlasy
{i] 10paeg

£000V3dM
LO0OYSdM
FOUOLSIM
OLQ0NOHL
TOROTHLS
LegoTeHS
<0003A0Y

Page 19 of 98



FVRLibrari
% \ I ra r l e S Serving Clark, Skamania and Klickitat Counties. and

FORT VANCOUVER REGIOMAL LIBRARIES Woodland and Yale Precinct in Cowlitz County

May & June 2024 Organizational Report:

Battle Ground Community Library
Battle Ground staff hosted a Star Wars/Superhero Trivia Night at Prairie Tavern. They

had over 40 people attend, including some kids. The Friends of the Library provided
prizes for the evening and the tavern donated two $20 gift cards.

The Battle Ground staff also hosted a Bridgerton Social
complete with about 25 people wearing their Regency-
style best!

Summer At Your Library has been extremely successful so
far. Battle Ground Library had 962 sign-ups during the
month, up 30% from last June. Our busiest day was the
18th with 176 sign-ups. The branch has been brimming
with activity and staff have risen to the occasion
beautifully. Staff have received several compliments from the community about our
programs and diverse book displays.

Creature Teachers was the first big summer
program at Battle Ground and 250 people
learned about reptiles and amphibians with
Shanti. Shanti showed lots of patience with
the large, excited group (who were also
pretty warm) while providing lots of
educational facts.

2018 Grand Blvd, Vancouver Washington 98661 ¢ 360-906-5000 e furl.org

wrary iocations: paltiz Ground, Cascade Park. Goldendale, La Center, Morth Bonneyille, Ridgefield, Stavensor

A

7 Cirsialess . et % = e e Miliks o TR \ il o N
bres Crazks, Vanoouver, ¥a e Mo wWasnougal, Yhita iman Vallay Woadlang, Yacol Yera

Page 20 of 98



L ] a
/ \ FVRLibraries

y | Serving Clark, Skamania and Klickitat Counties, and
FORT VANCOUVER REGIONAL LIBRARIES Woedland and Yale Precinct in Cowlitz County

in the Reflector! Seven teens
learned from Makenzie of MAK
Leather Goods how to stamp
designs on vegetable tanned
leather. Teens showed impressive
artistic skills.

Cascade Park Community Library
LibraryCon was a successful series of events related to comics and graphic novels. There

was a nice turn out for the Careers in Comics lecture with Diana Scutz, and Star Wars
movie night w/ the 501st legion making a visit.

Cascade Park also hosted a Trashion Show which
included a runway for models to share their
“trashy” wearable creations.

21,517 patrons visited Cascade Park Library in

June.

The worm
compost bin

program (part

of our Conscious Consumption Series) had an
amazing turnout. 84 people came to learn about
composting and make a worm bin.

108 people registered to attend the Clark County
Repair program at Cascade Park.

I orary locations Baifie Grounel, Cascads Park, Goldendale La Center Morth B

Threa Creaks, Yancouver Vancouver Mall Wasaougal Winte Saimon Valley Woodland, Yacolt, (a =

Page 21 of 98



i jj | F V L I b ra r e S ! Serving Clark, Skamania and Klickitat Counties, and
FORT VANCOUVER REGIOMNAL LIBRARIES Woodland and Yale Precinct in Cowlitz County

Goldendale Community Library

The Centerville K-1 class visited the Goldendale Library as part of their “community field
trip” The branch staff have been working closely with the Centerville Schools, finding
== - 1| creative ways to encourage reading and improve literacy
=2 | in the community.

The Branch Manager attended the first job fair held in the community since the
pandemic. She reported that there were well over 30 attendees and just about 20

organizations represented.

The Goldendale High School Jazz Band ended
their school year with a concert in our
amphitheater. The wind made it challenging,
but they still
put on a great
show.

The Oregon R/ o e 61‘ S
Reptile Man has once again brought a large audience to
GD, with almost double the attendance of last year!

2018 Grand Blvd, Vancouver Washington 98661 ¢ 360-906-5000 e fvrl.org

wary locabors Battie Ground, Cascade Park, Geoldendale, La Centar, Morth Bannzwile R

Three Creeks. Vancauyar, Vanroovee Mall, ‘dasnougal, White Salmon valley Woodiand, v [, Yale

Page 22 of 98



F V I : L I b ra r’ e S Serving Clark, Skamania and Klickitat Counties, and

FORT VANCOUVER REGIONAL LIBRARIES Woodland and Yale Precinct in Cowlitz County

The Klickitat Bookmobile visited the Alder Creek Fair &
Rodeo, which saw almost 100 visitors throughout the
day!

WAGAP (WA Gorge Action Programs) organized a local
resource fair and the Boockmobile made good company
with the DSHS mobile office and the mobile food

bank. We were able to
share resources and our
summer schedule to many
local people, meet a few
new people/organizations,
and strengthen
established partnerships.

In preparation for Community Days and the annual
scavenger hunt, we've put our 3D printer to good use
creating many miniature jackalopes as part of the
community prizes in partnership with the City of
Goldendale and Holcomb’s Market.

The Goldendale reading deck
has received its long-awaited
repair, thanks to the facilities
team making the trek over a
couple of weeks to ensure
we will have no more leaks!

2018 Grand Blvd, Vancouver Washington 98661 ¢ 360-906-5000 e fvrl.org

Li'brary soratans Battle Grouna, Gasrade Park Goldendals, 1a Caniar, harth Bonn Ridgehetd. Stayznzon

nrae Cresks, vanoouver, Yancogwer fal, YWwashougal Winte Samns Vailey facolt Ya'a

Page 23 of 98



iy F V ! I— I b ra rl e S Serving Clark, Skamania and Klickitat Counties, and
i FORT VANCOUVER REGIOMAL LIBRARIES Woodland and Yale Pracinct in Cowlitz County

La Center Community Library

Celebrating 20 Years with the District:” La Center Library celebrated its 20th anniversary
in conjunction with our Bookmark Contest Celebration. Featured at the celebration
were the Vancouver Community Jazz Band, face painting, balloon twister extraordinaire
- Joe Mishkin, and Jack the Alpaca. They were fortunate to have our Bookmark Contest
Grand Prize winner present, Thatcher. Overall, we had about 200 people join in the
fun.”

TR
0 [

LA Center also hosted a teen/tween crossover Tile Painting program and a Books &
Ceramics program, both well attended.

La Center staff visits schools in June, seeing almost 700 students, to promote Summer
Reading. Many of the students have come in to sign up for Summer Reading already.

2018 Grand Blvd, Vancouver Washington 98661 * 360-906-5000 * fvrl.org

wary locanans Battle Ground, Cascads Fark, Golgerdals, La Center, North Bonne silie, Ridegenegld, Stevensn

Thizs Crezs)c:

Page 24 of 98



FVRLIbrari
i .f % .'“. I ra r I e S Serving Clark, Skamania and Klickitat Counties, and
RSy g s FORT VANCOUVER REGIONAL LIBRARIES Woodland and Yale Precinctin Cowlitz County

La Center Library had about 70 attendees despite the
rainy afternoon for the summer reading “Wizard of
0z” themed party. There were two craft projects, a
tornado bottle science activity, a tornado "l Spy"
game, a water relay, a bean bag toss, and Pin the
Heart on the Tin Man. Many kids showed up in
costume, signed up for Summer Reading, and checked
out books.

Ridgefield Community Library

Ridgefield partnered with the local fire
department, inviting them to join storytime to
introduce the children to these valuable
community helpers. The fire trucks were a big hit
with kids of all ages.

In addition to
fire trucks
Ridgefield staff also arranged for a kayak to be placed
in the branch for the children to play with as a way to
help promote the upcoming community event known
as The Big Paddle, which was the first weekend in

June.

The “First Saturday” in June was busy in Ridgefield with The Farmers’ Market at Davis
Park being open for the first time this year. There were enough vendors connected to
First Saturday that the city closed Mill Street between the Ridgefield Library and Davis
Park. The Friends held their book sale from 9 AM-3 PM. The library offered a kid’s craft
activity. Approximately 750 people came into the library that day!

2018 Grand Blvd, Vancouver Washington 98661 ¢ 360-906-5000 » fvrl.org

oraty lecatens: Batti= Groung, Cascade Park, Goidendaie, La Cantar, North Bonnawile. Ridgehald, Steyenss

Creeks, Yarcogyar Y or fashougal Wihets S5al Vallay VWoediand, Yazoll. Yale

Page 25 of 98



F v I : L I b ra rl e S Serving Clark, Skamania ancl Klickitat Counties, and

FORT VANCOUVER REGIOMAL LIBRARIES i Waoodland and Yale Pracinct in Cowlitz County

Ridgefield held their Bookmark Contest
Celebration June 8, serving cake provided by the
Friends of the Library. The Community Room was
packed, and about 450 people visited the library
that day. It was exciting to see people come in
with bouquets of flowers for their children,
grandparents tagging along, and to have lots of
photos taken.

Stevenson Community Library
The Stevenson team made many outreach visits connecting with the following partners:

e Health and Wellness Fair at Henkle Middle School in White Salmon.

® Wind River Middle School in Carson, and stocking a Read Return Repeat
collection on a shelf in their empty library space.

e Recovery Cafe hosted at the United Methodist church in Stevenson

e Rock Cover Assisted Living to restock their Read Return Repeat collection.

Skamania County Bookmobile began its 2024 summer routes, with the yard game
traveling kit at the Rhine Village Apts. in White Salmon, an affordable housing complex.
24 attended and 4 signed up for new library accounts.

The first Summer at Your Library events are off to a promising start. Reptile Man drew
85 patrons the afternoon of June 15, making it the best attended SAYL event since 2019,
and about 30% higher attendance than the same presenter last summer.

Staff took the bookmobile to the second annual Skamania Pride event at Teo Park on
the Stevenson waterfront the morning of June 15. A couple hundred people attended. It
was the first time several community members had been on a bookmobile!

2018 Grand Blvd, Vancouver Washington 98661  360-906-5000 e fvrl.org

s Battis Groand, Cascade Para, Goigendate, La Centar, Martn Bonaswille, Ridagstizid Sieyznsol

e Va uver Fall, Washoagal VWite Saimon Valley Waodiand, Yacoit Ya

Page 26 of 98



FORT VANCOUVER REGIONAL LIBRARIES |  Woodland and Yale Precinct in Cowlitz County

| FVRLibraries
A?’;"? ‘-"‘ 1 Serving Clark, Skamania and Klickitat Counties, and

Three Creeks Community
Everyone loves a live animal program and this past month Three
Creeks hosted “Goat Happy Hour” which had no cocktails but

did have several goats.

The Homeschool Hangout is always very popular, This month the
families learned about outer space while playing with goop and
enjoying other activities. The families also got to learn about our
upcoming Summer at Your Library, which homeschool families
tend to take full advantage of.

Three Creeks hosted a
Dia de los Ninos
program, partnering
with The Folkloric Ballet of SW Washington.

Three Creeks staff tabled and handed out
free books to the Vancouver School District’s
e e Battle of
the Books event on Saturday, June 1st, 2024. Seven
public elementary schools (Eisenhower, Hazel Dell,
Lakeshore, Minnehaha, Ogden, Sacajawea, and VITA)
participated in the event with 4-person student teams
for 28 students. In attendance the event had about
125 people. Staff got opportunities to share
information on the upcoming SAYL program and
events with the students and their families. Each
student got to choose a free book when their team’s
battle efforts concluded for the day. All of the
students were excited to receive a book.

This summer, we are partnering again with the Vancouver and Clark County parks to
hold weekly outreach programs. Staff took FVRL’s Outreach Van to Hockinson Meadow
Community Park on Thursday, June 27th. Staff offered a Kaleidoscope Craft Kit, a
storywalk, and a nature scavenger hunt featuring the SAYL Bigfoot character. We had

2018 Grand Blvd, Vancouver Washington 98661 » 360-906-5000 e fvrl.org

Lirary igrations: Baltie Grouna, Cascade Park. Goldendale, La Canter, varin Bonnawille. Riagefial

Three Craaks Vancouvar, Vanooaver Mab, Washaugatl, white Satimaon Yalloy

Page 27 of 98



‘t’;’.i’l F V I : L I b ra rl e S Serving Clark, Skamania and Klickitat Counties, and
W FORT VANCOUVER REGIONAL LIBRARIES Woodland and Yale Precinct in Cowlitz County

about 68 participants, some came specifically for this event, others - including a
homeschool co-op group - happened to be in the park and stopped by to join in the fun.

Three Creeks staff visited 9 public schools and 1 private preschool over eleven days and
reaching approximately 4,149 students. They shared about the SAYL program and
upcoming events at the library that will help kids complete the SAYL program. They
included information and applications for volunteering to the teen audiences. Kids were
most excited about receiving a free book, bubbles, popsicles, and Reptile Man.

ﬁ‘:w.
't 3.

Three Creeks had a
SAYL Kickoff
Bubble Festival at
Three Creeks
where patrons
could participate in
STEM activities
involving bubbles,
eat ice cream, and
sign-up for SAYL.
We had over 300
attendees.

2018 Grand Blvd, Vancouver Washington 98661 ¢ 360-906-5000 » fvrl.org

Library tocatuns: Battle Ground, Cascade Park. Goidendlaiz. La Center forth Bonnzville, Fidgsheirt Stavensar

Creeas, Vancouver Varcouvsr Mail, Washougal, Wmte Salimon Vallsy, ‘Woadiand

Page 28 of 98



i & F V I : L I b ra rl e S Serving Clark, Skamania and Klickitat Counties, and

\-f &
IE—“’:’W ‘ FORT VANCOUVER REGIONAL LIBRARIES Woodland and Yale Precinct in Cowlitz County

Vancouver Community Library
The Vancouver Community Library participated in a Small Business Resource Falr They

were thrilled to share “the success of the Small Business
Resource Fair, done in partnership with the City of Vancouver
and Fourth Plain Community Commons. The energy in the
room was palpable as entrepreneurs accessed crucial
resources, expanded their professional networks, and
connected with fellow small business owners. This was the
first time the fair was held at Fourth Plain Community
Commons which provided an opportunity to interact with
business owners unfamiliar with FVRLibraries' business
resources, many of whom left with library cards.”

Vancouver Community Library is partnering with SHARE to offer free lunches to kids all
summer Monday-Friday from 12p-1p. The lunches are served in the Columbia Room
where we have music playing and flowers on each table to create a warm and
welcoming atmosphere We served an average of about 50 lunches per day in June.

In June, Youth Services wrapped up their programming
break with a final 5 end-of-school-year tours, reaching 201
additional students (after the 13 tours and 461 students in
May). We also provided outreach at Roosevelt Elementary,
Washington Elementary, and VITA Elementary that reached
a further 455 students and family members, plus providing
youth-focused outreach to 375 people at the Multicultural
Resource Fair and Juneteenth events.

The large display window on C St. featured a dress designed
by staff and made of various book titles highlighted during
Pride Month.

We have a new staff member at the Vancouver Community Library that speaks Russian,
which will be great is serving the customers who speak Russian!

2018 Grand Blvd, Vancouver Washington 98661 ¢ 360-906-5000 * fvrl.org

Page 29 of 98



/ \ FVRLibraries
i ;j | Y | Serving Clark, Skamania and Klickitat Counties, and
W FORT VANCOUVER REGIONAL LIBRARIES l Woodland and Yale Precinct in Cowlitz County

Vancouver Mall Community Library

The Vancouver Mall Community Library was thrilled to be part of "Library Con" on May
the Fourth and Free Comic Book Day. The event featured exciting Star Wars cosplay and
photo opportunities outside the library, courtesy of the 501st Legion members
Attendees enjoyed engaging in lightsaber crafting, Star Wars coloring, button making,
and even a fun game of Star Wars cornhole. It was a day filled with creativity,
exc1tement ancl commumty splrlt

Il TN
= 1 =2l

The Vancouver Mall Library kicked off Summer
at Your Library with a bang by doing the SAYL
kaleidoscope-
making
program.

The Reptile

Man was our first of three large summer presentersin
Junel! Per usual, he was a big success, with bystanders
taking up most of the Mall’s Center Court to see and
interact with his scally friends.

2. La Cantzr, Maith Bonnawtae, Ridgshislid, Stevensan

[hres Crasle Vancouyer, Yaneauqge Ma wiashouza!l Whnoe Ssanen Yalley Waodiznad, Yacolt, Yale

Page 30 of 98



Serving Clark, Skamania and Klickitat Counties, and
Woodland and Yale Precinct in Cowlitz County

g5 Tinlomnes

Washougal Community Library

Washougal also got in the Star Wars spirit for

May the 4th and Free Comic Book Day with craft &
activities for patrons of all ages.

Additionally, they had a lively ! g;

group of tweens at the F Ef
monthly STEM program g F
building vehicles that were = ‘(
able to self-propel.

Zoe attended multicultural family night put on by the Washougal
School District. Zoe connected with Spanish speaking families and
provided books in Spanish and information about summer
programming and the library. Attendees were excited about getting
a book to take home to keep.

Creature Teachers was the
first performer of the
summer at the Washougal
Community Library and it
was a hit. Kids and families
got to meet and learn about
different reptiles.

The Washougal Friends of
the Library held their first
Bingo fundraiser in June at
the Outpost and were able
to raise about $600in a
couple hours. Many new

members came out to help - SEENF SEFORR,

on the night as well as secure bingo prizes.

2018 Grand Blvd, Vancouver Washington 98661 * 360-906-5000 = fvrl.org

Linrary locafhians. Battie Groynd Cascade Fark, Gowlandale, LLa Cantar, North Bonngwille, Ridzeheid

Sf3yenson

Thrse Creeks, Vancouysr Vancouyst Mail, Wazhouazal, White Saimon Valley, Woodiand, Yacolt, Yais

Page 31 of 98



/W FVRLibraries
¥y s Serving Clark, Skamania and Klickitat Counties, and

&t@w FORT YANCOUVER REGIONAL LIBRARIES Woodland and Yale Pracinct in Cowlitz County

White Salmon Valley Community Library
s White Salmon Community Library had the
opportunity to participate in a community
event on financial literacy, which brought
together many community organizations
across the county. This event was held in the
small community of Klickitat. Next month the
. Goldendale Community Library will attend
the same event when it is hosted in the town

of Wishram.

White Salmon staff hosted several storytimes in the park as
pop-up programs. These are advertised on our local White
Salmon Facebook page, and always well attended.

The teen summer kick-off featured Roving Horse henna,

video and board games, ice cream and lots of fun. It was

well attended, and brought in a lot of new middle-

schoolers. Staff is hoping to recruit some of these teens to

the Teen Council/book group.
A~

Y

June gave White Salmon Valley Community Library a great opportunity to highlight
artwork done by the local LBTGQ+ community, working with the Gorge Pride Alliance.
They hosted an opening reception, which was attended by about 40 folks.

2018 Grand Blvd, Vancouver Washington 98661 » 360-906-5000 » fvrl.org

ihors Battle Growsd, Cascade Park Golnendata La Canter, Morth Bonnawille, Ridgsbald Steyensos
ralt Yala

ry e
fhrae Cree Jancadyer Yarcouyar Mall

Page 32 of 98



‘ F V R L l b ra r I e S Serving Clark, Skamania and Klickitat Counties, and
W FORT VANCOUVER REGIONAL LIBRARIES Woodland and Yale Precinct in Cowlitz County

Woodland Community Library

The Woodland Community Library continues
to provide outreach and in branch services
and programs while they watch the
construction of their new library.

They recently attended the Woodland School
District Kinder
night, allowing

the incoming s
kindergarten famlhes and share mformatlon Wlth them

— about ways the library can support their students’ needs
FVRLibraries throughout their school career.

POAT wAmCOUTER RECSAL | R

The annual Woodland Planter’s Day Festival was rainy this
year, but the sky cleared for part of the parade. The
library van was in the parade and the Friends of the
Library held a book sale, raising over 51,000. It was
wonderful to hear all the shouts of “I love the library!”
along the parade route and the exclamations of delight at
the bubbles pouring out of our bubble machine attached
to the library van.

The Yacolt Express Library
Yacolt staff visit the local Head Start as well as the Yacolt Primary

School Kindergarten Open House.

sbrary locations: Ballle Ground, Cascads Park, Galdan S fays

[hrse Cresks Va wanyer Vanrogyer Ma Wasnodzal, Wihite Sair

I
w

Page 33 of 98



J FVRLibraries ‘
i Serving Clark, Skamania and Klickitat Counties, and

o
&T’W FORT VANCOUVER REGIONAL LIBRARIES _ Woodland and Yale Precinctin Cowlitz County

The Yacolt Library welcomed over 2,400 patrons for the month of
June and Summer at your Library is in full swing. They have already
signed up over 100 patrons, despite having to relocate staff twice
due to high temperatures in the building.

On June 29th the library hosted the Creature Teacher event in
Central Park. Well over 125 people attended. It was also the kick
off of Rendezvous Days for the town of Yacolt so it was a very busy
day.

Yale Valley Community Library

Yale celebrated two of the branch bookmark winners during a school visit to the library.
They also hosted the Girl Scouts this month, doing a simple stem project as well as a
paper flower craft.

Yale Valley welcomed 946 patrons for the month of June and Summer at Your Library
2024 is in full swing. On Thursday June 13th the Friends of the Yale Valley Library hosted
an Open House event at the library. It was very well attended by Yale Valley Library
District board members and community members. Several great discussions were held
and an ice cream social event is in the works for August.

2018 Grand Blvd, Vancouver Washington 98661 ¢ 360-906-5000 e fvrl.org

Liorary fdacabons: Battle Grzund, Cascade Fark, Gaigenadaie. La Canrar, Morth Bonnauille Ridgefies. Stavanson

Taree Cregas Vancouver Vancouser Matd Washougal Wints Salmen Yailey, Woadian:

Page 34 of 98



0@ LoorE

00009 00005 00u0r

N0O00E [B[RISIA Y 00aot 3

£99FS
1
¥PBLFE

950 HIM pue daindwo)

SCETT
ELRLT

020'C LS. €TET LV8'T VIV'T L¥ST |e10L
610¢ 0¢0¢ TZO0C ¢c0T €T0C veoce

:
000t
005’1
anp'e

005°C

2

=

non's
aunr uj PeppPY Sjunodoy Ma N

LruR ]

[SRI0F 0649 0ooy onng 000 oo oant 0
/619
£559
ave
TrE
Swietgold

%8¢
POE'EST
sispjoypied
Wwapisay

(F70Z/1/¥) Wwawadeue jeraueRu 1O 9210 210)S U0IFUIYSLAR

GS9°0SS - paAsss uone|ndogd

9SM Y23] pue ‘swes3oud ‘s1ap|oypied-4zoz ung

Page 35 of 98



<oz NNT

v<0g sunr

€202 NNOT

NOILVINDYID 1VLiO0l
%9T°T L69'THY LI8‘OVY |elol puein
%C9'ET 2’091 040281 suo1323|j0) [e}sIq
%TIET- %¥6°S- LITVIT ESP'I8T | LT9'TTT LYL'V9T |e101 uol3eI07
SIOUSIA ON|%Z8°SZ- | SIOMSIA ON | /SP SIOMSIA ON | 6€€ 171/491ua) suonesadQ
SIOUSIA ON|%6E0°ET- | SIOMSINON | €7T'T SIOMSIN ON | 9/6 lleIN Ag syjoog
SI0MISIA ON|%ZS'6- SI0SIA ON | 89T SIOUSIA ON | ZST UIBIUNOIA] UB3.D
%¥S St %EY'0Z- | 059 v86 96 €8/ A3||ep aleA
%T0'S- %85°C- GL9'C 080°'s ST 6v6'Y 1|00\
%886 %90°8- TTT'9 66£6 SI.9 198 As||eA uow|es ayym
%9C0E-  |%LT'ET- | 888°C 0S0°‘S 10T G8EY puE|poo
%6E 6" %8Y'CT- | LESY €86'L 1Tt £869 |eSnoysem
%SS'T %80°L- 189°S vIS0T | 69L°S 0LL'6 TEYEELGESTEN
%ET'S %S6°0- 67092 87609 |zTv'LT 15£°09 19AN0dUEA
%LT°8- %6E"L- 97SeT LOE'LYy | TEv'e I8'sr S EEIRECITT
%EE"L- %SE'E (443 188 9T’ TT0'V IHTEVENTS
%C9'ST-  (%IBTT- |Sby 128 1€¢ veL d[lgounjoog ejueweys
%80°'C %IT €~ 607", LEOTT [ €952 ¥69°0T SEITEETIY
%LOVE-  [%6E6I- [SL 33 6% 997 3||IAsuuog yuon
%ES'9- %8¢ €~ YAl 7z8's 126'C 579’'s Jaua) e
%85G8 %8TTI- | vOT TSP €61 T0¥ 3|lgounjoog 1eInjipy
%L6°T %0T 6- LOL'E €€6'S 08L°¢ €6€£'S 2|epuap|on
%€’ L~ %86~ v6T'ce 66079 | LTIS'TZ 02085 Hed apedse)
%8T 'L %<0 - 6TE0T S80°0¢ | 0/0'TT 89t'3¢ punoig sjeg
SIOMSIA |241D |BYOL| S4OMSIA 2D |el0L| SAOUSIA 241D |e1O0] uoiled’o’

a3uey) €20z unf vzoz unf

SIOMUSIA pue uone|ndIId [e10] — $Z0gZ sunf

Page 36 of 98



00o'ce

SINOY2eyD @ SIONUSIA =

DON'GT

vc0c¢ aunr

ooo'nt

onn'g

-

a|jiAsuuog yuoN
3|lqowoog 18Iy
3oL 00g BlUBLIRYS
As|jep w_m>
UOSUIAIIG
PUBPooM

Jo3EA

8|epuap|oD

J3ua) e
|esnoysep

[leIN J2ANDIUEA
A3jjeA uowies axym
p12yadpry

punoJo 3j1eg
s3@a4) aaJy )
Jannosuep

yded apease)

Aleiqim Aq siousip pue sinoyday) (AlALDY Aselql —vyzoz mc:j

Page 37 of 98



"a1snw Suiweal)s pue sauizedew sapnpul [eUSIg 12410

"SWIa} SNOQUE||IISIW pue ‘soogawoty)
o1snw ‘s1j ‘sawesd ‘sauizeSew sapnjpul |edisAyd Jayi0

696'0TC TS6'CT 6T9'7ZT TOT'SST LLL VYT 0Z9'TET |edishud @

%TC %1
s)00g2 syooqoipny

%vc
sjooqoipnya

STZ'TTT TLE'SYT 9LT°0PT ¥99'FET vFC'0OT 040281 (2SI =
610 0707 1Z0Z ¢¢0Z €207  ¥ZoT o
000'05 b
sana
%9¢
S)NOoo
oo0'001 v_ d
%€
09pIA Bujwealls
afalapela|
tzoz aung %0T R
BaIs BETTR]
— v89°CTE | €T€T9T | S6L'79C | 994687 | TTO'SOE | 069°¢TE | S|eaoL
o vTO'€C | SST'ST | 098'€ | /SZ'RT | ve¢'vz | €Ov'62 [endig 18y10
2609 0z 765°E 639°c €91’ 897'¢ [ea1sAyd 413410
000'00E 9L | TL2'6 | 26v'6 | S/S'® | SSS'8 | S7L'6 03pIn Julieans
Lb8'zE | 1vE'Z 66T'CT | ¥TL'ST | 2LV'vT | 8/9CT sand
T9.°L€ | 918'9% | 0EZ'0S | S6T'PS | L65S9 | 9£8'S/ sjooqoipnys
NO0'NGE 058’8 TOS ST6'E 06V 80Ty 995'¢ s)ooqoipny
v9T'9¥ | 0ET'L9 | ¥65°9S | £E9°€S | 898'T9 | 90T'Z9 $jooga
v20Z-6T0T sin0xy29y) uonds||o) |eusiq g |eaishAyd 08T'E9T | S06'6 | €T6'E0T | 6SL°0ST | ¥eZ 22l | BOT'€1T syoog
6102 0202 TZ0T 20z €202 veoz sallodale)

Page 38 of 98

jewo4 way| Ag s1nox3yD g0z 2unr — asn uonds||o)




- vz0T NNT
€£Z0C NNT
s1noy3ayd jemisiq s|lemaual [edIsAyd i SInOaaLyd [edISAyd M@

%C'T %C€- | %L'E L69TY Y SCE'9ET | TLE'SOE L1891 966'TET | TZ8'VIE |e10] pueln

%9°€T %9'ET 09t 0 ‘091 0£0°28T 0 0£L0°28T suo3||0) [ensiqg
%6°G- %C€" | %S'8- €182 GZE'9ET | 8ZI'SYT LvL'79T 966'TET | TSLCET jeaisAyd - |ejoy
%8'SC- %S°ST %86t~ LSy 86 65t 133 €Ctr 91¢C T11/483u8) suonesad
%L ET- %8Vl | %L €711 YA 8vL 9.6 8¢ 69 [1eln Ag syoog
%t'0C- %9°€E- | %09- 86 SIS 69 €8L re |8y JleA
%9°C- %T°8- %6°'T 080°S LSTT £28'C 6V6'v €L0°C 9/8'¢ R1{en]cy
%1°8- %L L- %E"8- 66€'6 Py 8s¢C’'s 179'8 128°¢c 08y AS||ep uowies auym
%CET- %8'L- %S°LT- 0S0'S SST'T S6L'T 98V 080T SO0ET PUEIPOOA
%S'CT- %L ET- | %PTT- €861 0zL'e €97y £86'9 602'¢c 8LL'E [ednoysepn
%T L~ %' T %t'ST- 180T 822'S 987's 0.L'6 00g’s LYY llBIAl 48AN0OUBA
%6°0- %1°C %9 - 876'09 820'cE 006°LT TSE'09 8ELEE €19'92 49AN0DUEA
%V L- %8 17- %S'6" LOE LY 890'1¢ 6€C'9¢ [A%:R7 £50°0C 6SL'ET S EEYSEEIITE
%E'E %1 el %6’¢E- 188'¢ 7791 652't TI0'Y 6€8'T 41T uosuanalg
%1 €- %EE % 8- LEOTT 006t LET'9 ¥69°'0T 790°S 7€9's playa3dpiy
%V6eT- %L TE- | %8L- 0Oge 79T 991 99¢ E€IT EST 9||Irsuuog yHonN
%t - %S°S %8°6- 778's 8EV'? ¥8€’s G79's €48°C z50°'c d2]ua) BT
%576~ %S 6- %0°0 89T 89T ¢ST ¢St UlBIuUNo|A Uaaun
%1'6- %9°9- %0'TT- €€6'S 1197 Tee's €6€'S BEV'T GS6°C 9epuspj|on
%5°6- %L°G- %L €T~ 66079 118'LE 887'¢E 0z0'8s 786°6T 8€0'8¢ Jled apedse)
%8 TT- %8'ST | %L'6Z- 128 €ze 861 vTL VLE 0S¢ d|lqounjoog elueweys
%ETT- %167 | %L'8E (457 ECE 61T T0v 5S¢l S9T 2|Iqowo0g 1e1oIy
%0 - %S°S- %L T S80'0F 047'6T S18°0¢ 89v'8¢ 90z'8T 79707 punou9 ajneg
D |BIOL | Mauay | 1noydayd | i) |elol Mauay noyoayd 21D [e10L Mauay noyayd

23uey) ggoz unr vzoz uns

uoyBeIN2ID [BI0L — 70T 2unf

Page 39 of 98



January —June 2024: New Accounts Added by Cardholder Age

Number of Accounts Added

3,000
2,500
2,000
L5030

1.000

JAN MAR APR MAY JUM

B Adult B Minor

Percentage Added for Cardholders Under Age 18

305

5%

15%

104

2Mlinor

Page 40 of 98



Vol. 16.6: June/July 2024

Foundation Update

(SUMMER|

1 JUNE" 15-AUGUST 15

FVRLibraries’ 2024 Summer at Your Library is under way!

The program runs from June 15—August 15, 2024. Participants of all ages can
track their reading and other activities for a chance to win prizes.
Read, create, explore, and learn all summer long!

Many thanks to our fabulous sponsors for making this program possible.

Great News!

e The Foundation received a check in the amount of $50,000 from Fibre Federal Credit Union for
the new Woodland Community Library's Children's Area.

¢ Two long-time supporters of FVRL Foundation made unrestricted donations of $7,896 and
$1,250.

» The Foundation was awarded a $6,000 grant from Umpqua Bank to be used for the 2024
Summer at Your Library program.

e The Foundation’s partnership with ThriftBooks generated $2,755 in revenue in May from online
sales of used books.

Page 41 of 98



Upcoming Events

Thursday, June 27
EVRL Foundation Board Meeting
FVRL Foundation Office
3:00pm—4:00pm

Thursday, July 4
All libraries will be closed in
recognition of Independence Day

Monday, July 15
FVRL Trustee Meeting
Hybrid: White Salmon Valley
Community Library and Zoom
6:00pm—8:00pm

*Note: FVRL Foundation’s July
board meeting will be combined
with the August board meeting—

date to be confirmed

Saturday, August 10
Washougal Friends Art Sale
Reflection Plaza, 1703 Main St,
Washougal
9:00am-3:00pm

Monday, August 19
FVRL Trustee Meeting
Hybrid: Ridgefield Community Library
and Zoom
6:00pm-8:00pm

Upcoming Book Sales

Goldendale Friends Book Sale:
Friday and Saturday, July 12 and 13,
Goldendale Community Library
Friday 1:00pm-7:00pm,
Saturday 10:00am—4:00pm

Washougal Friends Book Sale:
Friday and Saturday, July 12 and 13,
The Qutpost: 573 30th St, Washougal
Friday and Saturday 9:00am-5:00pm,
$5 bag sale Saturday 4:00pm-5:00pm

La Center Friends Book Sale:
Saturday and Sunday, July 27 and 28,
La Center Community Library
Saturday 9:00am—4:00pm,
Sunday 10:00am—-12:00pm dollar bag sale

FVRL Foundation is honored to have
been awarded a $10,000 grant from
OnPoint Community Credit Union
in support of FVRLibraries’

2024 Summer at Your Library program!
Thank you, OnPoint!

Building Campaigns and
Cornerstone Pledges

Washougal has 45 Cornerstones,
2 Stepping Stones, 3 Keystones,
1 Capstone, and 1 naming
opportunity.

Woeoedland has 38 Cornerstones,
5 Stepping Stones, 9 Keystones,
4 Capstones, and
14 naming opportunities.

*Please note: some Cornerstones have
graduated to Stepping Stones, which is why
some Cornerstone totals have decreased.

How Board Members Can Help

—Spread the word about the Fred
Meyer Rewards program:
fredmeyer.com/i/community/communi

ty-rewards

~ Ten Hugssd iy

Do

E@ﬁ-j’@”;‘m’nﬁgm( (jhmﬁ/ ADptg—
L5

|

W
—IE

5

1000CONDCOE 473058 757w

2 . | {
From left: Judy Musa, April Weissert (OnPoint Vancouver Waterfront
Branch Operations Supervisor), Amy Reeves (OnPoint SW Washington
Area Manager) and Rick Smithrud.

Page 42 of 98



sopeiquing W77
2o AInr
Ateiqi7 Apunwiwo)
Asjjep uowijes auym

SOLEIqITIAS



ssneiaring W71

(480Nnpoud pue Jsjum uedLBWY */00Z-/16L) uopjaysg Asupis

. 8411 Jo Ayjenb
ino Buiaoidwi 0y 8INqUIUOD pue ‘8AsIyoe pue alojdxs o] sn m__amc__ucmczo%m%.

0} smopuim dn uado Asy ] -uoneuibew ay) sjeny jeyy ABisus sy ai0)s saueiqi,

Page 44 of 98



Ml

SaLIRIGITYA 4 /4.»14

181U MIEWNoOg
#Z0Z N0 JO sIauUUiM youelg

uawewinog
Hey ouepy Buiping
Alunwiwos e u swues)
U Bunjiom susal

abion

B} Ul swoolysnw
3jqIpP8 U0 UOHELLLIOJU]
saieys Bang [peydin

Alnnesin

aousuadxg

abpsjmouy]

:ybnoJyy ssiiunwwos ino usybusng

Page 45 of 98



Page 46 of 98

saieiariing 77

Aaipny

puey

ST




|

soneiaring W7

Page 47 of 98

‘padidsul pue'painsul ‘pawttoiul ajdoad Jn

™~ e
L\ =

SGee) OUM Sa21n0say ueWni-

"adeys poob
Ul SSI0IY3A UNO JO ||e sdasy pue ‘sploy JnoA noA siaaljep ‘Buiyifiens saxi oum saniioe e

‘shkem mau
Ul SaIUNWIWOY UNO Ypm Joduuoo sn sdigy oym sdiysiauied Aunwwo) pue yoesino

0]
UalSl| pue yolem ‘peal 01 m«HQDm:u.m J0] SWU31l w.h.umu_}ﬁ_,.ﬁ S90IAISS |BOIUUD3] |

DUEB UOID3||00) e

&1 11le] Tala \ ilaleni=Ta Bl 1 \ ~ 1~ SR ~1 111~ - 1 ~ v - ~
L i1 1\ AL €1l (W L L | JLALAN ) N1 111 Vi M Il M =L

| J | - 1L 1 )

Buipiing Aydwa ue jsnf aq pjnom em seLIGITH AL INOUIA



SSLBIQITHAS

d3d1HOMEdE dTIOM UNO IAVYIAN NOA

431
NOAXMNVHL

(001 'as]o auohians
pue) 1je1s 99JA18s oljgnd ||e 10 Jjeyaq uQ

1UNOD 03 sNoJaWINU 00} SABM Ut sn pad|ay
SBY oYM MOJyans 827 01 noA yuey) |e1oads




Page 49 of 98

soLeIqITYA 4 ,]

18lus) aAneaidiaiu] abliog) ay|
Jajuan A1anooasiq ay|
WN8sSN|A [BOLIO)SIH J9AIY POOL
'slayeadc

swepy
JUNOA JO [euoljeuIalU| SISILINAOIOS

IOUN0D SUY UOWIES SHYA BY]

Areiq7 Alunwwor
As|leA uowles slYpA 8y} JO SpudL-

Aeiqi Aunwwior
As||ep uowes anypn 8y

|1 806109 8y} JO JSIy UBWOAN




ssieiariing T

SENTLTT

uasusr aApuey
AQ 1e JO SHIOM

86# abueig mainunoyy ay |
uim diysseunied uj

IX ®INjEN 1N0qy PIIAA




mm:mb_w_m_i_ /A.uulﬂ

aP
w

LR

T

| [ wveeat VAN Nive
A . Ta_lu\l;..u\.li.(
ongnd jetsusb

LA 10 G 1sn6n

M €7 oo SISIle 10) G AR
qu:Hu uonnguisip s)oog

A

‘_mnoguo
Ul SJUaAT

rc0c¢
spesy Alunwwon

Page 51 of 98



seieici g 7

sAem 1ay]o JO SLIoS ||y

ainieN 1Noqy PlIAA Alelqi] Anunwiwio) AsjieA
uowl|es a1y @yl 1o spusii

spesy Ajunwwo)

SU88] R SUSOM] JO) SJUSLIYSSI}eY
1S8jU0) MHieunjoog

yseg usesmojjieH s.uaipjiyn
Joddns uoissnoasiq Yooy YINoA

uondsosy D Aepijoy JajuiAn

[E100S WieaJ) 89|

S[es Xoog

210]S Yoog Rre. N

Page 52 of 98



Solle

Iy SIANTDNEA D4

arnd N

ysng eine’

. P1ed Ateuqi| Aw st jejiem Aw ui Buiy) ajgenien 1sow 9U] punoj aAey |,

Page 53 of 98



Fort Vancouver Regional Library District

Statement of Cash
For the Menth Ending April 2024 (With yeer-to-date totals)

December 31, 2023 Ending Cash Balance 19,066,206
Yeaar-to-date Revenue Reocelved 13,168,734
Year-to~-date Expenditures (10,561,523)
Adjustment for accrued expenditures {251,997)

Cash Balance April 30, 2024 $ 21,411,510

Overall Cash Balance

$ 19,056,296

Operatienal Net Operatlonal Year-to-Date Operational
Reservices as of Activity April Totals thru April Rasarves as of
January 1, 2024 2024 2024 April 30, 2024
Oparational Reserve (Unassa
P ! (Unassigned) 5 8315870 8,285,173 2,051,065 $ 11,266,935
Target: Oparafional Fund * §0 to 90 days of anhual
operational budget
Year-to-Date
Reserves as of April 2024 Totals thru April  Cash Reserves at
April 1, 2024 Expenditures 2024 April 30 2024
Ob] 1 - Capital repairs and maintenance $ 1,000,000 § - % - 5 1,000,00¢
Ob) 2 - Replacement Vehicles 148,380 “ - 148,380
Ohj 3 - Capital Projects
Washougal 4,492,678 - - 4,492,678
Woodland 4,021,932 (441,382) {595,851) 3,426,081
Grand Bivd Rematdlal - - - -
Brush Prairie “ “ - -
Unassigned Capital 677,436 - - 677,436
Obj 4 - Innovation 400,000 - - 400,000
Ohj 5 - Budget Stabilization Fund - - - -
Cash Resarve Fund Expense Total $ 10,740,426  § {441,382) § (595,851) $ 10,144,575
Baginning Ending
January 1, 2024 Apill 30, 2024

§ 21,411,510

Page 54 of 98



Property Taxes
Property Taxes - Clark

Property Taxea - Skamanla
Property Taxes - Kilckltat
Properly Taxes - Cowiliz
Total Property Taxes

Other Taxes
Other General Tax
Leasehold Exclse Tax
Total Other Taxes

Intergovernmental, Grants & Contracts
Faderal In-llau of Taxes
State Forest Boards
State Grants
Yalo Valley Library Dist
Confracts - Clark County Jail

Total Intergovernmental, Grants & Contracts

Charges for Services
Equipment Use Fees
" Mon-Ras/dent Borrowar Fes
Lost f Damaged Materlal Fee
Total Charges for Services

Miscellaneous
Invesiment (nterest
Rental Income
Gifts/CGontributlons

Library Frlends Groups' Refmbursements
Library Feundation Reimbursements
Foundation Reimburssments (Grants)

Insurance Relmbursements
Miscellaneous

Private Grants

Olher Miscellanesus - E-Rate
Sale of Asgats

Total Miscellaneous

Total Operating Revenua

Usa of Cash Reserves

Total Revenues and Use of Cash Reserves

Jan.-Dae. 2024 Fiscal Year

Fort Vancouver Reglonal Library District

Statement Of Revenus - Calendar Year 2024
For the Month Ending April 2024 {WIth year-to-dale totals)

Year-to-Dafe Year - o - Date
2024 Budget April 2024 Totals thru Annual Budget
{Adopted 12/2023) Revenues April 2024 Percent

26,100,000 10,328,470 12,555,370 48.10%
715,600 48,708 80,373 11.24%
1,360,000 167,750 223,60 16.43%
326,000 838 25901 7.97%
28,500,000 10,548,767 12,885,152 45,21%
25,000 - 20,136 80.55%
95,000 204 32,102 33.78%
120,000 294 52,239 43.53%
25,000 - - 0.00%
- BO,0CO 218 8,749 17.50%
25,0600 - - -
186,000 - - 0.00%
500 " - 0.00%
285,500 219 8,748 3.06%
40,000 3,632 14,653 36.83%
8,000 25 3,744 46,80%
32,000 1784 15,096 AT A7%
80,000 5,451 33,493 41.87%
400,000 42,118 181,033 45,26%
2,000 - 1,650 82.50%
10,000 - 51 0.51%
600,000 - 1,625 0.25%
80,450 - 80 0.16%
2,449,550 - - 0.00%
2,500 - - 0.00%
2,500 @ 1,678 63.04%
50,000 - - 0,00%
120,006 - - 0.00%
10,000 73 3,188 31.88%
3,897,000 49,188 189,102 5.12%
L] 32,682,600 10,600,918 13,168,734 40.29%
L] 4,000,000 441,382 545,851 14.90%
36.682 11,042,300 13,764,588 28%

Aptll Is the 4th month of the flscal year,
Year-to-date budget percentages
ghould be at 33%, representing 4/12

monithg.

Page 55 of 98



Fort Vancouver Reglonal Library District
Statement of Expensas - Galandar Yoear 2024
Far the Month Ended Aprll 2024

Yeaar to Date

2024 Budgat Year-to-Dats Annusal
{(Adopted Aprit 2024 Totals thru Budgat
Opsrating Expenditures: 12/2023) Expondituras Aprll 2024 Parcentage
Pargonhel|
Wagas $ 13,323,760 3 1005404 $ 4,116,604 30.90%
Baneflt - Medloa! 2,622,000 104,429 790,246 30.14%
Banaflt - Dental 249,600 19,681 80,524 32,26%
Beneflt - Lifs, LTD, AD&D 78,750 12,212 48,350 62.67%
Bensfit - PERS 1,387,972 92,347 81,394 28.51%
Benefit - FICA 1,019,287 75,285 08,218 30.24%
Berallt - L & I - Workers Compensation 101,000 6,467 24,871 24.43%
Benedit - PFML 29,035 2,126 8,706 : 28.98%
Unemployment Expense 10,001 - 908 9.09%
Persannael Subtotal; 18,771,375 1,407,952 §,760,616 30.60%
Suppiles
Supplles 458,000 29,085 110,210 24.06%
Emall Equipment (FF&E) 250,000 11,737 17,024 6.81%
Tachnology 462,000 3,156 68,182 21.25%
Professlonal Coflestion / Tach 309,000 10,269 118,689 39.56%
Supplies & Small EquipmbTach Subtotak 1,470,000 54,248 344,106 2341%
Library Books / Materials
Library Books & Matetlals 1,828,800 112,020 519,844 2851%
Electronlc Resourcas 1,896,500 108,640 676216 30,33%
Library Materlals Subfotal: 3,720,000 220,560 1,095,060 29.44%
Other Services / Charges
Professlonal Sewvices 2,080,000 - 130,692 471,956 22.69%
Communications 428,200 . 42,736 114,591 26.85%
Tralning / Travel 108,000 8,768 43,320 40.11%
Advertising 30,000 1,351 3,192 10.64%
Rentals / Leassas 576,000 39,666 186,126 32.27%
Insurance 265,000 175 23,706 9.30%
Utilitles 459,000 30,458 149,067 31.78%
Repalrs & Malntenance 887,400 ) 28,065 286,661 32,30%
Misc / Buas / Printing / Qther 165,388 17,784 58,020 36.62%
htergovernmantal Services 3,876 133 428 11.64%
Dther Charges & Services Subtotal: 6,003,464 298,311 1,338,461 26.75%
Tatal Operating Expendltures: 28,964,838 1,984,071 8,538,242 29.48%
Capltal Qutlay:
Bulldings / Non-Ownad 250,000 - 11,217 4.49%
Buildings / Ownedl 1,208,736 4,480 18,936 147%
Woodland (Grant Relmbursed) 2,038,525 330,194 1,397,276 68.54%
Yale " 40,400 - “ 0.00%
Machinery & Equipment 100,000 - n 0,00%
Capital Outlay Subtotal: 3,717,661 434,674 1,427,430 38.40%
Reserve Project Expenditures 4,000,000 441,382 595,861 14,90%
Total Capltalputlay: 7,117,661 776,088 - 2,023,281 26.22%
Grand Total Al Expendltures: $ 36,682,500 $ 2757127 $10,561,623 28.79%
Jan-Doe, 2024 Fiscal Year April Is the 4th montb of the fiscal year,

Year-to-clate budgel percentages
should be at 33%, reprogenting 4/12

months.
Page 56 of 98



Fort Vancouver Reglonal Library District

Statement of Cash
For the Month Ending May 2024 (With year-to-date totals)

December 31, 2023 Ending Cash Balance
Year-fo-date Revenus Received

Year-to-date Expenditures

Adjustment for accrued expenditures

Cash Balance May 31, 2024

Operational Reserve (Unasslgned)

Target: Opsrational Fund > 60 {o 90 days of annua
operalichal budget

Qb 1 - Caplta! rapairs and maintenance
Ohj 2 - Replacement Vehicles
Obj 3 - Capital Projects
Washougal
Woodland
Grand Blvd Remodel
Brush Prairle
Unassigned Capital
Obj 4 - Innovatien

Ob) & - Budget Stabillizatlon Fund

Cash Reserve Fund Expense Total

Overall Cash Balance

19,056,296
17,907,544
(13,656,157)
{207,401)

$ 23,100,283

Operaticnal Net Operational  Year-to-Data Operational
Reservices as of Activity May Totals thru May Reserves as of
January 1, 2024 2024 2024 May 31, 2024
$ 8,315,870 2,111,798 . 5107459 $ 13,423,329
Year-to-Date
Reserves as of May 2024 Totals thru-May  Cash Reserves at
April 1, 2024 Expandiiures 2024 May 31, 2024
$ 1,000,000 $ - 5 - 1.000.000
148,380 - - 148,380
4,482,678 - - 4,492,678
4,021,932 (487,621) {1,063,472) 2,958,460
677,436 - - 877,435
400,000 - - 400,000
$ 10,740,426 § (d67,621) $§  (1,063472) $ 9,676,964
Beginning Ending .
January 1, 2024 May 31, 2024

$ 19,056,296

$ 23,100,283

Page 57 of 98



Fort Vancouver Regional Library District

Slatemant Of Revenue - Calandar Year 2024
For the Month Ending May 2024 (With yearfo-date totals)

Year-lo-Date Year - to - Date

2024 Budget May 2024 Totels thru Annual Budget
(Adopted 12/2023) Revenuss May 2024 Percent
Property Taxes
Propetty Taxes - Clark 26,100,000 1,761,376 14,306,745 54.82%
Proparty Taxes - Skamanla 716,000 288,388 368,780 51.67%
Froperty Taxes - Klickital 1,360,000 576,476 789,085 58.82%
Properly Taxes - Cowlitz 325,000 127,261 153,182 47.12%
Total Proparty Taxes 28,500,000 2,743,491 15,628,643 54.84%
Other Taxes
Other Ganeral Tax 25,000 - 19,620 78.48%
Loasahold Exclae Tax 95,000 53,220 85,322 88.81%
Teotal Other Taxes 120,000 53,220 104,942 87.45%
Intergovernmental, Grants & Contracts
Federal In-lleu of Taxes 25,000 - 517 2.07%
State Forest Boards 50,000 1,688 10,436 20.87%
State Grants 26,000 - - -
Yale Valley Library Dist 185,000 - - 0.00%
Contracts - Clark County Jall 500 - - 0.00%
Total Intergovernmental, Grants & Gontracts 285,500 1,688 10,953 3.84%
Charges for Services
Equipment Use Fees 40,000 4,043 18,695 48.74%
Non-Resldent Borrower Fen 8,000 263 4,007 50.08%
Lost / Damsaged Material Fea 32,000 2,080 17,176 b3.B87%
Total Charges for Services 84,000 8,386 39,878 49.85%
Miscellangous
lnvestment interost 400,000 77,081 258,114 64,53%
Rental Income - 2,000 500 2,150 107.60%
Gifts/Contributions 10,000 5 58 0.55%
Library Friends Groups' Relmbursemants 600,000 5,384 6,009 1.15%
Library Foundatlen Reimbursements 50,460 26,685 26,766 53.05%
Foundation Reimbursements {Grants) 2,449 550 1,808,121 1,808,121 73.81%
Insurance Relmbursements 2,600 13,872 13,672 542.69%
Miscellanaous 2,500 2,547 4,123 164,93%
Private Grants 50,000 - - .00%
Cther Miscellaneous - E-Rate 120,000 - - 0.00%
SBale of Assels 10,000 131 3,319 33.19%
Total Misceltanecus 3,687,000 1,934,026 2,123,129 §7.43%
Total Operating Revenue $ 32,882,500 4,738,810 17,907,544 54.79%
Use of Cash Reseorvas & 4,000,004 467,621 1,063,472 26.59%
Total Revenues and Use of Cash Reserves $36,682,500 5,206,431 18,871,017 52%
Jan-Dec. 2024 Flscal Yoar May Is the 5th month of the fiscal year,

Year-to-date budget percentages
should be at 42%, representing 5/12
months.

Page 58 of 98



Fort Vancouver Regional Library District

Statemant of Expenses - Calendar Year 2024

Gparating Expendiiures:
Petsannel
Wages

Bensfit - Medical

Benefit - Dantal

Boneflt - Life, LTD, AD&D

Benaefli - PERS

Benefit - FICA

Benefit - | & I - Workers Cempensalion
Benefit - PFML

Unemployment Expense

Personnel Subtotal:

Supplles
Supplies

Small Equipment (FF&E)
Tachnology
Professional Collection { Tach

. 8upplies & Small Equipmt/Tach Subtotal;
Library Books / Materlale

Llbrary Books & Matarials
Electronle Resources
Library Materials Subtotal:

Othar Bervices / Charges
Profassional Services

Communications

Trainlng / Trave)

Adveartising

Rantals / Leasas

Insurancs

Utilities

Rapairs & Malntenance

Misc / Dues / Printing / Other
Intergovernmental Services

Othar Gharges & Services Subtotal:

Taotal Operating Expendlitures:

Capital Outlay:
Bulldings / Non-Owned
Buildings / Ownad
Woodland (Grant Relmbursed)
Yale
Machinery & Equipmant
Capital Outlay Subtotal:

Resorvs Projest Expenditures
Total Capltal Quilay:

Grand Total All Expenditures:

Jan,-Dec, 2024 Fiscal Yoar

Faor tha Month Ended May 2024

2024 Budget Yearfo-Date ' Year to Dale
(Adopted May 2024 Totals thru Annual Budget
1212023} Expendituras May 2024 Percantage

$13,323,780  § 1,017967  § 5134570 38.64%
2,622,000 193,789 984,038 37.63%
249,600 18,560 100,084 40.10%
78,750 12,224 61,574 78.19%
1,337,972 94,637 475,930 35.57%
1,019,267 76,234 384,447 a37.72%
101,000 6,766 31,437 31.13%
29,036 2,153 10,868 37.40%
10,001 831 1,740 17,40%
18,771,375 1,424,060 7,184,676 38.27%
468,000 28,424 138,634 30.27%
250,000 1,408 18,429 7.37%
462,000 27,354 125,536 27.17%
304,000 9,673 128,363 42.79%
1,470,060 £6,8568 410,962 27.96%
1,823,500 147,676 © G6F 418 36.680%
1,896,500 208,969 784,188 &41.36%
3,720,000 356,548 1,451,605 39.02%
2,080,000 102,697 674,563 27.62%
428,200 25,764 140,745 32.87%
108,000 15,162 58,482 54.15%
30,000 1,786 4,648 16.49%
475,800 48,039 234,167 40.60%
255,000 {2,746) 20,961 8.22%
458,000 36,320 185,377 39.53%
887,400 55,183 341,844 38.52%
165,388 13,718 72,738 43.98%
3,676 10 438 11.92%
5,003,464 295,793 1,634,254 32.86%
28,964,839 2,'14:3}__"2“5_:}= 10,681,497 36.88%
250,000 - 11,217 4,49%
1,288,736 16,137 35,073 2.72%
2,038,825 487 621 1,864,897 91,48%
40,400 - - 0.00%
100,000 - - 0,00%
3,717,661 483,758 1,911,187 51.41%
4,000,000 467,621 1,063,472 26.59%
7,717,661 951,379 2,474,680 88.69%

$ 36,682,500 $ 3,004,633 $13,666,167 37.23%

May ls the Sth month of the fiscal yoar.
Year-to-date budget parcentages
should be at 42%, representing 512
months.

Page 59 of 98



Fort Vancouver Regional Library District
Staff Report 2024-07
2024 Budget Amendment and Cash Reserve Allocation Adjustment

TO: FVRL Board of Trustees

FROM: Jennifer Giltrop, Executive Director and Catrina Galicz, Finance Director
DATE: 7/15/2024

SUBJECT: 2024 Budget Amendment and Cash Reserve Allocation Adjustment

Summary:

The proposed 2024 FVRL Budget Amendment including details for changes to revenue, expenditures and
annual reserves is included herein. This amendment is driven from a few overarching factors such as:

1. The development and adoption of the 2024 budget tock place during a FVRL Leadership
transition,

2. Increased perspective and analysis on historical revenue trends.
3. Two new Collective Bargaining Agreements approved/implemented in 2024,
4. Woodland Community Library building project budget finalized.

Overall, this adjustment:
¢ increases revenues by $268,288 and increases the use of reserves by $421,932 for a total
impact of $690,220 which is a 1.88% Increase over initial budget adoption.

e increases expenses by 5690,220 which is a 1.88% increase over initial budget adoption.

Additional amendment details are found below and correspond to the Amendment Notes referenced on
the budget spreadsheets attached.

2024 Revenue Amendment Notes:

Note 1: Property Taxes - Property Taxes were budgeted for 100% collection of the assessment.
Historically, FVRL has received slightly less than 100% of assessment. These revenues were adjusted
down by $22,213 to reflect this trend, representing less than a 1% change for this of the revenue
category.

Note 2: Other Taxes - A historical trend and YTD analysis indicates that Other Taxes revenue will be
received ahove expectations. These revenues were increased by $70,000 to reflect trend expectations,
and a 58% increase in this revenue category.

Note 3: Intergovernmental, Grants and Contracts - Overall this revenue category has been reduced by
10%, these decreases are from revenue sources/contracts that are not in place for 2024 and/or known
changes to existing contracts. Decreases were offset by adding known and unaccounted for revenue
sources and adjusting others based on current expectations.

Page 60 of 98



Note 4: Miscellaneous - Overall Miscellaneous Revenues budgeted for in 2024, including the use of
reserves, increased by $671,932.

+ The most significant changes here are reclassifying revenues to more accurately reflect the
source and purpose of them. Friends and Foundation Reimbursements were lumped together
and did not account for some known project reimbursements. These two budgets were split into
2 and 3 categories respectfully and overall increased by $235,000,

¢ In addition, actual investment income is trending higher than budget and expected to continue
in this trend; however, increased investment interest was offset by other revenue categories
budgeted for and not expected to be realized in 2024.

s  Additional use of reserves are expected to be $400k to cover one-time personnel stipend
expenses associated with collective bargaining agreements,

¢ Anincrease in the use of reserves for capital by $21,932 was adjusted to properly reflect the
amount of Reserves Allocation that was adopted by the Board in April 2024.

Overall, this budget adjustment for revenue results in a change of $690,220 or 1.88% increase.

2024 Expense Amendment Notes:

Note 5: Personnel - The Personnel budget is increased due to the new collective bargaining agreements
with FVRL’s labors unions, AFSCME and WPEA, Benefits were adjusted in line with wages, additionally,
Life-L.TD-AD&D was initially budgeted at about 50% of expected 2024 expense,

Note 6: Supplies - An analysis of supplies realized costs saving opportunities in 2024 from increased
knowledge of organizational needs and insight of historic spending. For example, all lines were budgeted
in line with 2023 and we were able to significantly reduce FFE where the Operations Center required a
significant ievel of FFE investment in 2023, that is not required for 2024,

Note: 7: Other Services/Charges - Overall we realized savings under Other Services / Charges.

» 7A: Professional Services - This category was decreased for professional services associated
with the Woodland Construction project in 2023 and costs budgeted under capital. This
category also increased for known costs associated with accounting services required to fill the
staffing gap in Finance from January to April. We aiso allocated additional funds to perform the
Strategic and Facilities Plans. The net result is a reduction of $480,364 in this line item.

e 7B: Communications - An in-depth analysis of historical activity as well as expected charges for
Communications assisted in an additional $55k or 13% savings in the communications line for
2024,

e 7C: Repairs & Maintenance - Repairs and Maintenance increased by $91k or 10% as a result of
necessary technology and building repairs / maintenance not adequately planned / budgeted for
and / or in some cases unexpected needs that arose.

¢ 7D: Misc./Dues/Printing/Other - An in-depth analysis of historical activity as well as expected
charges results an additional 516k or 10% savings in this budget line for 2024. Most savings were
in the printing categories and any increased costs were associated with facilities alarm
monitoring / testing.

Page 61 of 98



Note 8: Capital Outlay - Overall Capital outlay budgeted for in 2024, including the use of reserves line
item, decreased by $415k, or 5%. The most significant changes here are reclassifying costs to more
accurately reflect what is occurring with the FVRL's capital spending.
* Buildings Non-Owned and Buildings Owned were both decreased after a thorough analysis
of facility needs for those respective branch and operations locations.,
e Machinery & Equipment was reduced to $0 after verifying the organization does not have
any planned purchases under this budget line.
+ Finally, the reserved projects line was zeroed out and allocated funds from the reserved
projects line and savings from other lines to three Woodland Project lines to properly reflect
spending associations.

Overall, this budget adjustment for expenses results in a change of $690,220 or 1.88% increase,

2024 Cash Reserve Allocation Amendment Notes:

Note 9: FVRL negotiated two new collective bargaining agreements with the AFSCME and WPEA unions,
which has been implemented within the first half of 2024. In order to pay for those agreements, FVRL
needs to reduce $400,000 from one of its allocations in order to cover the one-time personnel stipend
expenses estimated at $400,000. The recommendation is to take the $400,000 from the Washougal
Community Library project. In 2024, FVRL added 51,500,000 to this project line. Therefore, if $400,000
is reduced from that project line, the net added for 2024 to the Washougal Community Library project
will be $1,100,000 with a total allocation of $4,092,678. The Washougal Community Library project total
need is estimated at $11 million.

Page 62 of 98



Property Taxes

Qther Taxes

Fort Vancouver Regional Library District

Revenhue Budget Amendment 2024 - July 15, 2024

Property Taxes - Clark
Preperty Taxes - Skamania
Property Taxes - Klickitat
Property Taxes - Cowlitz
Total Property Taxes

Other General Tax
Leasehold Excise Tax
Total Other Taxes

Intergovernmental, Grants & Contracts

Faderal in-tieu of Taxes
Grants through ESD 112
State Forest Boards

State Grants

Yale Valtey Library Dist
Contracts - Clark County Jall

Total Intergovernmental, Grants & Contracts

Charges for Services

Miscellaneous

Equipment Use Fees
Non-Resident Borrower Fee
Lost / Damaged Materiat Fee
Total Charges for Services

Investment Interest

Rental Income

Restricted Contribution - BG

Resfricted Contribution - GD

Restricted Contribution - WS
Gifts/Contributions

Library Friends Groups' Reimbursements
Woodland Friends Reimbursements - Project
Library Foundation Reimbursements
Foundaticn Reimbursements {Grants)
Foundation Reimbursements {Cther Project)
Insurance Reimbursements

Miscellaneous

Private Grants

Other Miscellaneous - E-Rate

Sale of Assets

Total Miscellaneous

Total Operating Revenue

Use of Reserves to Balance Operating Budget
Use of Reserves fo Balance Capital Budget

Total Revenues and Use of Reserves

Change §
Change %

2024
Budget 2024
{Adopted Budget Amended
1212023) Changes Budget
26,100,000 (13,0580) 26,086,950
715,000 {358} 714,643
1,360,000 (680} 1,359,320
325,000 {8,125) 316,875
28,500,000 {22,213) 28,477,788
25,000 50,000 75,000
95,000 20,000 115,000
120,000 70,000 190,000
25,000 20,000 45,000
6,000 6,000
50,000 (10,000) 40,000
25,000 (25,000} -
185,000 (20,000} 165,000
500 (500} -
285,500 (29,500) 266,000
40,000 40,000
8,000 8,000
32,000 32,000
80,000 - 80,000
400,000 75,000 475,000
2,000 2,000
10,000 (10,000} -
600,000 (580,000) 20,000
- 655,000 655,000
2,500,000 (2,464 550) 35,450
- 2,449,550 2,449,550
- 175,000 175,000
2,500 2,500
2,500 2,500
50,000 {50,000) -
120,000 120,000
10,000 10,000
3,697,000 250,000 3,947,000
32,682,500 268,238 32,950,788
400,000 400,000
4,000,000 21,932 4,021,932
36,682,500 690,220 37,372,720
690,220
1.88%

Amendment
Note

Reference

Note 1

Note 2

Note 3

Note 4

Note 4
Note 4

Page 63 of 98



Fort Vancouver Regional Library District

Expense Budget Amendment 2024 - July 15, 2024

2024 Budget 2024 Amendment
(Adopted Budget Amended Note
Operating Expenditures: 12/2023) Changes Budget Reference
Persennel
Wages $ 13,323,750 $ 1,059,857 $ 14,383,807
Benefit - Medical 2,622,000 549,347.00 3,171,347
Beneflf - Dental 249,600 (31,614.00) 217,986
Benefit - Life, LTD, AD&D 78,750 90,689.00 169,439
Benefit - PERS 1,337,872 (3,173,00) 1,334,700
Beneflt - FICA 1,019,267 81,079.00 1,100,345
Benefit - L & | - Workers Compensation 101,000 12,263.00 113,263
Benefit - PFML 29,035 1,375.00 30,410
Unemployment Expense 10,001 {1.00) 10,000
Personnel Subtotal: 18,771,375 1,759,822 20,531,197 Note 5
Supplies
Supplies + Fuel 8, Lubricants 458,000 -5,350 452,650
Small Equipment (FF&E) 250,000 -171,500 78,500
Technology 462,000 -51,000 411,000
Professional Collection / Tech 300,000 16,000 316,000
Supplies & Small EquipmtiTech Subtotal: 1,470,000 -211,850 1,258,150 Note §
Library Bocks / Materials
Library Books & Materials 1,823,500 0 1,823,500
Electronic Resources 1,896,500 0 1,896,500
Library Materials Subtotal: 3,720,000 0 3,720,000
Other Services / Charges
Professional Services 2,080,000 -480,364 1,668,636 Note 7: A
Communications 428,200 -55,829 372,371 Note 7: B
Training / Travel 108,000 -1,600 107,000
Advertising 30,000 -4,000 26,000
Rentals / Leases 576,800 5,475 682,275
insurance 255,000 7,700 262,700
Ufilities 469,000 10,000 479,600
Repairs & Maintenance 887,400 91,338 978,739 Note 7. C
Misc { Dues / Printing / Other 165,388 -15,963 149,425 Note 7: D
Intergovernmental Services 3,676 C 3,676
Other Charges & Services Subtotal: 5,003,464 -442,642 4,560,822
Total Operating Expenditures: —28,964,839 ___1,106,330 __ 30,070,169
Capital Outlay:
Buildings / Non-Owned 260,000 {180,000} 70,000 _
Buildings / Owned 3,327,261 (3,167,261) 160,000
Woedland (FVRL Reserves) 4,021,832 4,021,032
Woodland (Grant Reimbursed) 2,038,625 2,038,625
Woodland (Other Reimbursements) 971,894 971,604
Yale 40,400 - 40,400
Machinery & Equipment 100,000 (100,000) -
Capital Outlay Subtotal: 3,717,661 3,564,890 7,302,551
Total Resarved Projects 4,000,000 {4,000,000) -
Total Capital Cutlay: 7,717,661 {415,110} 7,302,551 Note 8
Grand Total All Expenditures: $ 36,682,500 $ 690,220 $ 37,372,720
Change § $ 890,220

Change % 1.88% Page 64 of 98



96295061 S - $ 962°950°61 S puny jeuonesadQ @ seAlassy 0L
69310N| 0/8'STL'S S | ooo'oov $ 1 0/8'GT1ES S (Astjod 2wByy 10254 434) saunypuadxs
joucnpiado jpnuuo fo sAbp 06 03 09 < pund [euonelado
6 210N| 9zZrote0r s [looo'00v) S | 9TPOPL0T S §-T senl192[q0 UBld aAJ952Y [B30
sapea3dn waisAs auoyqd/ ]| 404 Buluue|d| 000 00F S 000001 S sepesddn g wawaze|day ABojouyse] ¥ 'lqolsezss
8N |9pows uaisuedxe| 9spL/9 S 9gy /LG S s103(0.d Ysaafay Youeg
INALDS-11as 31e8nsaau] D} Fuuue|d ysauyay
yz0z uonaldwo) - 198png papalold| ce6'Teo Y S ZEG'TZOY S Adeig Auunwwo) pueipoom
INTTS - 1500 1efoud 153} 8/9°760'F s |{000"00%) - $ | 8/9'Z6YF < Aseigr Ajunuaioy [eSnousem
spafoid |euded - £ [g0 z9'v6S
SBIOWN00] 8TOZ -7 *| 0BE'BFL S 08€°8YT 3 S9|21YsA JuawWae|day - 7 '[q0|r9res
sJA g7 38 Bae fMm SBYIA ZT = 1934 Aseugn]
213 ‘suieday JO0Y J0IBAI[3 DYAH 000°000°T S - 000°000°T S SOUBUIIUIBIA B slleday |ende) - T -[00|SETLS
S310N SNOILLYDOTIY
: Vivd A3
IAY3SAY {LOvuLans)/aay mm_w m_,wu 202/ mﬁwwm NOLLdI¥DSIA sdva
HSVD 202

+20Z ‘ST Anr - Juswisnipy 198png
#2707 ‘ST Iudy pieog Aq paaosddy - SUCIIRI0||Y 2AIRS9Y USE) 707

PISIg Aeigi] [euo1Sey JoANCIUBA 104

Page 65 of 98



FORT VANCOUVER REGIONAL LIBRARY DISTRICT
2024 Budget and Reserve Allocation Amendment
Resolution 2024-07

RESOLUTION OF THE FORT VANCOUVER REGIONAL LIBRARY DISTRICT BOARD OF TRUSTEES
AUTHORIZING AN AMENDMENT TO THE 2024 BUDGET and RESERVE ALLOCATION

The regular meeting of the Fort Vancouver Regional Library District (FVRL) Board of Trustees was
held July 15, 2024, attended by a quorum of the Board for the conduct of such business; and,
after due consideration and deliberation, the following resolution was duly passed by a majority
vote of all Trustees then attending.

WHEREAS, FVRL’s Board of Trustees is responsible for the adoption and management of FVRL's
budget and finances per RCW 27.12.210 (4&5), as well as setting reserve allocations per the Fiscal
Management Policy, and

WHEREAS, FVRL was in a leadership transition during the 2024 budget process, two collective
bargaining agreements have been adopted in 2024, an increased perspective and analysis on
historical trends has been completed, and

WHEREAS, FVRL's budget should be updated during the year to reflect any unanticipated revenue
and expenses incurred during the year, and

WHEREAS, The FVRL Board approved a 2024 budget of $36,682,500 will be increased by
$690,220 to an amended 2024 budget total of $37,372,720

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that Fort Vancouver Regional Library District adopts
Resolution 2024-07 approving the amended 2024 budget of $37,372,720.

Adopted this 15th day of July, 2024.

E(/W("?oﬁ’ /)

Krlsty Morgan Ghair

/I.
_,; /r:
| & )\th Mllgléf’

Penny Léve Henslee Vice Chair

Page 66 of 98



Purchase Card Policy

(Includes Attachment A: Purchase Card User Agreement)

Introduction

The Fort Vancouver Regional Library District (FVRL) recognizes that the use of purchase
(credit) cards is a customary and economical business practice to improve cash management,
reduce costs, and increase efficiency. The Finance Director shall implement and administer the
following standards related to the use of purchase cards by FVRL employees.

Washington RCWs 43.09.2855 (as used in this section, purchase card means a card or device
issued under an arrangement pursuant to which the issuer gives a cardholder the privilege of
obtaining credit from the issuer) and 42.24.115 allow local governments to provide agency credit
cards for staff as long as there is a policy and procedure governing their distribution, limits,
usage, payments and any other necessary rules to ensure compliance. FVRL’s Executive Director
is authorized to adopt any additional rules necessary to implement the provisions of this policy.

The Finance Director is authorized to obtain purchase cards under this policy, which provides for
the distribution, authorization, control, purchase limits and payment of bills through the use of
the purchase cards by FVRL employees. The Finance Director shall implement accounting
controls to promote the proper use of purchase cards and reduce the risk of loss or misuse.

Purchase cards may be used by authorized employees for purchasing goods, services, supplies
and other items from vendors; incurring registration, and training or travel expenses in
connection with the performance of their duties or on behalf of FVRL (where such expenses

have been included and approved in the budget).

1. Issuance, use and control of purchase cards

Purchase cards may be directly issued to those employees who, in the opinion of their Division
Director and the Finance Director, have job responsibilities which could be more easily
facilitated by the use of a purchase card and the purchase card use would benefit FVRL.

» Assigned Purchase Cards: If an employee’s name appears on the face of the card, the
employee is responsible for all purchases made with the card and the only person
authorized to use the card. A purchase card should always be kept in a secure location.

* FVRL Purchase Cards: FVRL purchase cards may be provided to branch, department
or division employees for purchases or travel when it is advantageous or necessary for
FVRL to conduct its business and the employee does not have an assigned purchase card.
These cards may be checked out from Accounting a few days prior to need. While the
card is in an employee’s possession, they are responsible for all purchases made with the
card and are the only person authorized to use the card.

Before being issued a FVRL purchase card, each employee will be required to sign a FVRL
Purchase Card User Agreement (Attachment A) acknowledging that they have read and

Page 67 of 98



understand this policy, and that they understand violation of the policy will subject them to

disciplinary action.
All FVRL purchase card users must follow these general guidelines:

» Purchase only goods and services required to perform job-related tasks

» Keep expenditures within the purchase card’s limits

e Don’t use the card to purchase items on the exception list

»  When possible, obtain pricing and in-stock availability prior to purchase

» Ensure that the vendor immediately authorizes the purchase

» Obtain a detailed copy of the receipt showing the last four digits of the card number

« Retain all receipts, packing lists, emails and other substantiating documentation related to
the purchase

o—Fillouta-Purchase Card-Form-{Attnchment Bwith-the appropriate-accountnumber{(if

availablefand-atnehatdocumentation-to-form

Forward-Purehase-Card Formand receipisto-the- Accounting- Department

3

All purchase card receipts and other documents identifying purchase card expenditures in
detail must be delivered to the Accounting Department within foréy-eisht(48) hoursfive (5)
business days-efthe-transaetion-or-from-the-time-of returpfrom-travel_from the date
statement details are available to the card user,

Employees involved in any aspect of purchasing are acting as agents of FVRL and have a
responsibility to act in the best interest of the organization, which includes not personally
favoring a specific vendor at the expense of FVRL.

2. Authorization and Control

The Finance Director or their designee (Purchase Card Administrator) shall create and maintain
accounts with the credit issuer or purchase card company. The Purchase Card Administrator shall
maintain a ledger of individuals and departments using purchase cards, including the date the
card was received, and act as a liaison between the purchase card company and the individual

cardholders.

e Purchase card limits shall be set administratively for each card, depending on expected
purchases during a typical billing cycle. The Finance Director may approve additional
purchase capacity as needed on a temporary or on-going basis.

o Expenses related to authorized travel (hotel, airfare, ground transportation, registration,
fees and meals) may be charged to a FVRL purchase card provided the purchases are
preapproved by the Executive Director or their designee, and the employee returns from
travel with all receipts in accordance with the FVRL Travel and Subsistence Policy and
related procedures.

s—hr-seme-nstances—a-purchase-erder may-berequired-for purchases-madewith-a-purchase
eard—H-n-doubt—checkvith-the Purchase Card-Administratorfor-clarifieation:

o The purchaser is responsible for ensuring receipt of the materials or services ordered and
resolving any delivery problems, damaged goods issues, or other discrepancies with the

vendor.

Page 68 of 98



« Ifitem(s) purchased with a purchase card need to be returned to a vendor, the purchaser
should follow the vendor's return policy and ensure that proper credit is posted for any
returned item(s). Failure to provide detailed documentation as required by the policy may
result in the purchaser being responsible for the charge.

The Executive Director is authorized to revoke the use of any purchase card issued and
immediately require the surrender of a purchase card. Purchase cards must be returned to FVRL

immediately upon ending employment.

3. Unauthorized Charges

Any employee using a FVRL purchase card for unauthorized purchases or for personal use may
be subject to disciplinary action and shall be billed by FVRL for all such unauthorized charges.
Disallowed charges, or charges not properly identified, will be paid by the employee before the
purchase card bill is due. If a situation arises where an employee is responsible for charges and
the timing of the payment may result in interest and/or late fees, the Finance Director must be
informed immediately. Any employee with a demonstrated history of unauthorized charges may
be barred from obtaining or using a FVRL purchase card,

The following purchase card uses are NOT allowed:

« Charges made without pre-approval of the purchase card user’s direct supervisor,
department head, Division Director or Executive Director

« Payment for personal items and setvices

» Cash advances of any kind including money orders/travelers checks

+ Purchase of gift cards or cash cards

+ Purchase of alcoholic beverages

If certain charges are disallowed as a result of an internal audit or violation of current FVRL
policy, such charges rust be repaid. Misuse of a FVRL purchase card may result in disciplinary
action up to and including termination and legal action.

Lost or stolen cards

Employees will immediately notify the Purchase Card Administrator, Finance Director or
supervisor if their purchase card is lost or stolen as it is imperative that the card be frozen to
prevent unauthorized use. If the loss is the result of a robbery, please call the police and file a
report, Failure to report a lost or stolen card could result in the employee being held responsible
for any unauthorized charges.

Unauthorized charges by a third party

The Purchase Card Administrator will be responsible for tracking expenditures on the cards on a
monthly basis and identifying any fraudulent use not detected by the purchase card issuer.
Employees may be asked to assist with resolution of unauthorized use.

Page 69 of 98



4. Payment of Bills

Cardholders are required to have all purchase card receipt(s) and other documents identitying the
purchase card expenditure(s) in detail, delivered to the Accounting Department within forty-eight
R -heussfive (5) business days of the statement activity made available to card users.-efthe
transaeHon(slorfrom-the-Hime-efreturp-from-travel-or-at-least-by-the-end-ofthe-monthly-bitling
eyelemwhichever-comes{irst

Attachment A
See Printable PDF link at top of page.

Board approved.:
Original Policy 7/16/2018
Revised XN/XX/2024

Page 70 of 98



FORT VANCOUVER REGIONAL LIBRARY DISTRICT

PURCHASE CARD USER AGREEMENT

L. Tunderstand the Fort Vancouver Regional Libraries (FVRL) Purchase Card is intended to

facilitate the purchase of business-related goods and services for the conduct of FVRL

business and is not for personal use.

['understand that my card may be revoked at any time based on change of assignment or

location and that use of this card is not an entitlement nor reflective of title or position.

3. Tunderstand that if I am issued a card with my name specifically, I am the only person
authorized to use the card and [ am responsible for all charges made against the card. I also
understand that if T use a department card, I am responsible for all charges that are incurred

!‘d

while I possess the card.
4. Tunderstand that improper use of the card can be considered misappropriation of FVRL funds,
which may result in disciplinary action, up to and including termination.
I understand that I am [eaunred to be in comnhance wath the smnr"hase card policy.

LA

m@lumcﬂers‘{andl orill be reaws

teh mayiﬂelrud-e ben&'x asked to produce the purchase card to Venfy

1ts existence and assist dumlcr any #emal audit review concerning its use.
&-7.] understand that I am responsible for resolving any discrepancies that may occur by

contacting a vendor directly.

.1 will safeguard use of the issued purchase card and use appropriate security whenever I use
the card. If my card is lost or stolen, I agree to immediately notify the Purchase Card
Administrator and Accounting Department.

#=0.1 understand that the purchase card(s) are property of FVRL and must be surrendered upon
termination of employment or demand of surrender by the Finance Director and/or Executive
DLrector At that pomt no further use of the account will be authonzed

[ hereby acknowledge receipt of the purchase card ending in the last 4 digits of

As a Cardholder, I agree to comply with the terms and conditions of this Agreement, including the
FVRL Purchase Card Policy. Your signature below acknowledges that you have read, understand,

and agree to abide by the Purchase Card User Agreement.

Employee Name:

Signature:

I HAVE READ AND UNDERSTAND THE ABOVE CONDITIONS

Date:

Department:

Page 71 of 98



Fort Vancouver Regional Library District
Purchasing and Procurement Policy

PURPOSE

The Fort Vancouver Regional Library District’s (FVRL) Purchasing and Procurement Policy serves as a guideline
directive for staff when obtaining proposals, bids and quotes for public works projects, purchases of goods, and

procurement of professional services. The intent of the policy is to ensure that FVRL is in compliance with
applicable procurement laws and publiccentracts-are-managed-satisfactorily-and-efficiently, ensuring
responsible stewardship of public funds. at-the least-cost-to-the-public-and-the-graatestvalueto-FVRL

POLICY STATEMENT
FVRL will use a competitive process to solicit and evaluate proposals, guotes and bids based on relevant

procurement laws. when-undertaking-publicwerksprojectsasestablished-by-the-Revised-Code-of-Washington
(REW)-and-any-alewable-practices-undersuch-statutes-Bidding-contracting-purchasing-and-Pprocurement
procedures and guidelines will be established and maintained by the Executive Director or their designee to

assure a competitive, open, fair and compliant process.

PUBLIC WORK PROJECTS
Public work is defined (39.04.010 RCW) as all work, construction, alteration, repairs, or improvements+e
physical-property, other than ordinary maintenance, on any public building or property. {39-84-018 ROA]

PREVAILING WAGES

All public work projects require payment of prevailing wages under 39.12 RCW. Contractors must be
told in advance that prevailing wages must be paid to all employees who work on the contract, It is the
contractor’s responsibility to file a Statement of Intent to Pay Prevailing Wages and applicable affidavits

with the Industrial Statistician of the Department of Labor and Industrial Services. [t is FVRL's

responsibility to ensure compliance, as applicable, before payments are made to contractors.

SMALL WORKS ROSTER

By Resolution 2047-2-2024- 06ef-F\/Ai s Beard-ef Frusteas, public works projects of more than 150,000
and less than $350,000 may use a Small Works Roster (SWR) process to solicit bids [39.04.155 RCW].

FORMAL BIDDING ADVERTISING REQUIREMENTS
For public works projects that do not use the SWR or cost more than $350,000, FVRL will publish a

notice at least once in a local newspaper and no less than thirteen (13) days prior to the closing of the
bid period. If the advertising is for a public works project, it will include notification that the work is

subject to prevailing wages laws. [39.04.010/39.12.010-020 RCW]

ALTERNATIVE PURCHASING METHODS
Where the application of competitive procedures would lead to undesirable, uneconomical or

impractical results, FVRL may also use alternative procurement methods for public works projects,

such

as use of design-build or general contractor/construction manager procedures, sole source or turnkey

acquisition, or other alternative procurement methods permitted under Washington state law.

CHANGE ORDERS

A change order is an alteration to a project during construction that is not consistent with the proposal
specifications upon which the contract was awarded. Change orders are contractual requirements used

to manage new or unforeseen circumstances to a project. In the course of a project, bona fide

Page 72 of 98



emergencies may arise and incidental alterations may well be required. As a general rule, a change
order should not be used to remedy defective work or for the loss of a contractor from failure to
perform or bankruptcy. A competitive process should be used in such cases.

DAY LABOR
FVRL reserves the right to use library staff as day labor on projects with an estimated cost up to

$450,000 (single craft) or $65100,000 (multiple craft). [35.23.352 RCW]

EMERGENCIES

Emergency contracts for public works and purchasing is used only to avoid immediate hazard to life, to
preserve FVRL's property, or to prevent significant service disruptions per 39.04.280(3) RCW. In such a
situation, the Executive Director or their designee may declare that an emergency situation exists, waive
competitive proposal requirements, and award all necessary contracts on behalf of FVRL to address the
emergency. If a contract is awarded without competitive requirements due to an emergency, written
proof of the existence of an emergency must be provided to the Board of Trustees and entered into the
recorded minutes ae-laterthan-twe-weeksat the next Board of Trustees meeting following the contract’s

award.

ON-CALL SERVICES
FVRL uses on-call vendors/contractors to complete non-routine maintenance and small repair projects.

Frequently the work includes troubleshooting to determine the proper course of action to resolve a
building or equipment failure. Vendors and contractors may be selected from the appropriate SWR and
local vendors can be used as needed for emergency situations.

ORDMMARY-MAINTENANCE
Ordinary-maintenance-isany-maintenance-thatisperformed-on-any-public property-onaregularly
scheduled-basis{e-g-daily-weekly-monthlyetebutnotless thanonceayeartosepdeecheckor
replace-items thatare-not broken o work thatis-notregularly-scheduled but s required-to-maintain-an
assetse-thatrepairdoes-netbecome-necessary—{296-127-010{Z b} WAC]—Ordinary Ordinary
maintenance is defined (296-127-010 WAC) as maintenance work performed by the regular
employees of the political subdivision of the state. Maintenance is defined as keeping existing
facilities in good usable, operational condition. Ordinary-maintenance is defined as maintenance work
performed by the regular employees of the political subdivision.

Ordinary maintenance is not considered a public work and state law does not require a competitive
bidding process. This-werk-may-be-perfermed-undera-maintenance-contractorona-case-by-case
basis-Maintenance performed by contract and meeting the definition of public work will comply with
procurement requirements applicable based on contract amount. FVRlwill-bid-outeachceontractatne

lessthar-everythree (3)yearsto-identify-potentislvendorsforall-needed categoriesof-mainterance
SEndeag,

PERFORMANCE BONDS, RETAINAGE AND CLOSE OUT
One-hundred-pereeptperformance-bondsarerequired-on-all-publicwerks-projects-inexcess-ofone
hundred-fifty-thousand-dellars{$150,000) On-centracts underone hundred fifty thousand-dallars
{$150,000)-at-the-option-of the contractoras-definad-in-39.10.210- RCW,FVRL may-retainten-percent
{10%}-of the-contractameountfora-period-of-thirhy- (30} days afterdate of final-acceptanceoruntil
receiptof-all-necessaryreleasesfrem-the-deparimantofrevenue-the-employmentsecurity department;

Page 73 of 98



and-the-departmentoflaborandindustriesandsettlementefanyiensfiled underchapter 50,28 ROW.
whicheverislater—The-recovery-of-unpaid-wages-and-benefits- must be the first priority-forany-actions

filed againstretainage-held-by-FVRL

FVRL will require performance bonds and/or withhold retainage on public works projects as follows:

e Performance bonds will be required on all projects at or above $150,000.

e Retainage in the amount of 5% will be held on all non-maintenance public works contracts.
@ |If FVRL requires a bid bond, it will be stated in the bid documents.

e FVRL will consider a retainage bond in lieu of withholding of retainage as applicable.

PHASING
FVRL may not break a public works project into separate phases to avoid compliance with procurement

laws
25:22.620{3)RCW, which prohibits the division of a project into units of work or classes of work to keep
costs below the bidding threshold, even though those phases are performed at different intervals of

time.

RESPOMSIBLE BIDDERS CONTRACT AWARD
A-respensible-orrespensive-bidderisonewhe-is-deemed-to-be-capable-ofsupplying-the-gosds-or
servicesrequested-in-a-solicitation—Criteriaferrespensible-biddersforpublicworks-projectscan-be
foundin-39-04-350 RO and-must-be-adhered-toforall publicwerkscontracts-A-respensible bidder
must-net-be-disqualified-from-bidding-underREW-39.06.010-6r39.12.065(3) certify through-aswern
statement-oran-daswern-declaration-underpanaliyof perjurythat they are netawillfubvislatorof laber
lawsin-reference-to-REW-49:48:082and-have received-training-within-the past three years provided by
the-Department-of-kaberand-tndustrieson-the-requirements-related-to-publicworks-and-prevailing
wages-or-be-exempt-from-thisreguirement-through-priorcompliance [ESSHB 1673]

FVRL awards contracts to the lowest bidders deemed both responsive and responsible:

¢ Responsive —responded to all bid items and included all required elements
@ Responsible — one who meets a set of “responsibility criteria” as defined in state law. (39.04.350
RCW). The criteria typically include being properly licensed, registered, and insured.

FVRL will verify that the vendor is eligible to do wark in the state of Washington prior to awarding a

contract.

ARCHITECTS AND ENGINEERS
Chapter 39.80 RCW requires that any service that would be provided by a professional, such as a registered
architect, engineer, land surveyor or landscape architect must be procured through—gualificationsthrough
qualifications—based selection. Requests for qualifications (RFQ) ask proposers to submit qualifications, if not
already on file, for a proposed scope of services in response to FVRL's specific needs. Qualified consultants
may be used by FVRL for additional projects within three (3) years of qualification.

PURCHASES OF SUPPLIES, EQUIPMENT AND SERVICES
FVRL shall purchase and acquire supplies, equipment, and services pursuant to 39.34 RCW. Purchased goods
and services that meet FVRL's requirements should be sought for competitive prices and exclude sales tax,
shipping, and handling fees from total cost when considering bid limits. Competitive pricing is not required
for the acquisition of library materials and resources (books, magazines, media, electronic databases, etc.).

Page 74 of 98



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
This includes pProfessional and/or technical-servieesinelude expertise provided by a consultant to
accomplish a specific study, project, task, or other werk-statementscope of work, not including professional
architecture and engineering services. These services will be competitively solicited through a formal Request
for Proposal for projects/services needed by FVRL that are expected to exceed $75,000. For projects and
services over $10,000 and under $75,000, FVRL will obtain a minimum of three quotes. In addition, FVRL will
ensure professional services using federal funds will meet applicable competitive procurement reguirements.

DEFINIHONS-GENERAL PROVISIONS

CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No FVRL Trustee or employee may benefit, directly or indirectly, in whole or in part, from any FVRL
contract for goods or services nor accept any compensation, gratuity or gift in connection with such
contracts. [42.23.030 RCW]

GOVERNMENT CONTRACTS & PIGGYBACKING

FVRi-Hs-autherized-te-purchase-equipmentsupplies-furnishings-and-etherproperty-without

advertising-giving-Reticeorinviting-propesalsthrough federalstate orlocal governmentcontracts to
—abtainthe-best-price-{29:32.070-090-ROW -

FVRL is authorized:

= To purchase equipment, supplies, furnishings, and other property through federal government
contracts to obtain the best possible price which are exempt from bidding requirements [39.32.070-
D90 RCWI.

» To use contracts offered through Washington State DES, once establishing a Master Use Agreement
[39.26.050 and 39.26.060 RCW].

e To rely on the contract award of another government contract, Pigeybacking. FVRL will follow
piggybacking compliance requirements [39.34 RCW].

These options allow pricing to be extended to FVRL from other governments and may provide other
efficiencies. FVRL will ensure compliance with all applicable requirements when utilizing contracts
awarded by others.

SALES TAX

Sales tax applies to nearly every sale of tangible personal property and some services. For solicitation
purposes, the tax must be included when determining the cost of a public work, or when calculating the
cost of materials, supplies, and equipment purchased separately from a public work.

SMALL, MINORITY, WOMEN AND VETERAN OWNED FIRMS

FVRL encourages small, minarity, women and veteran owned firms to hid on our public works projects,
services and purchases. However, FVRL does not discriminate against or give preferential treatment to
any business.

Page 75 of 98



SOLE SOURCE PROVIDERS

Sole source exceptions to procurementpurehasing is used when, due to unique characteristics of the
requested product/service there is only one product or service capable of fulfilling FVRL's requirement
and only one vendor that selis-provides that product or service. Validation of a vendor as a sole source
provider and pre-approval by the Executive Director is required prior to any sole source purchase or
acceptance of bid.

TRANSPARENCY AND REPORTING
FVRL will maintain and annually produce for the Board of Trustees a list of all public works contracts

awarded.fellowing-the-RecordsRetention-Policy-{39:04.200-RGW]

WARRANTIES
FVRL requires warranties on all public works projects and repairs for a minimum of one year. Longer

warranties may be negotiated for specific projects.

ADMINISTRATION
The Executive Director or designee is responsible for the administration of this policy, for establishing
administrative procedures for its implementation and for making the policy available for the public at-each
branch-and-via the Library’'s web site.

SEVERABILITY
The Board of Trustees hereby declares its intention that the provisions of this policy are declared to be
separate and severable. The invalidity of any clause, sentence, paragraph, subdivision, section, chapter, title
or other portion of this policy, or the invalidity of the application thereof to any person or circumstance shall
not affect the validity of the remainder of the policy, or the validity of its application to other persons or
circumstances.

CONTINUANCE
The Board of Trustees hereby declares its intention that the provisions of this policy shall be construed and

applied as a continuation of the praovisions of the policy, as amended, insofar as applicable, and the repeal of
any part of this policy shall not be construed as affecting such continuous application.

Relevant policies: Fiscal Management Policy, Asset Management Policy

Applicable-law: Chapters-18.27.39.04,39.04.010,-39.04.155, 39.04.200,-39.04-280(3),39-04.350,
39.06.010,-39.08.010-39.10.210,39.-12 30,12 .010-020,39-12.065(3)35.22 620(3}. 35.23.352.
39.32.070-080-696,39.34,42 1 7A- 15542 23.030. 60.28 RCW--206-127-010(7 b )i} WAC, ESSHB-1673-

Approved and adopted by the Board of Trustees: Original Policy 5/15/2017; Revised — 3/19/2018,
5/18/2020, XX/XX/2024

Page 76 of 98



FORT VANCOUVER REGIONAL LIBRARY DISTRICT
Resolution 2024-06

MRSC ROSTERS: SMALL PUBLIC WORKS, CONSULTANT AND VENDOR ROSTERS RESOLUTION

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF FORT VANCQUVER REGIONAL LIBRARY DISTRICT {FVRL)
ON THE SUBJECTS OF ESTABLISHING A SMALL PUBLIC WORKS ROSTER AND THE AUTHORITY TO USE THE
ROSTER PROCESS TO AWARD SMALL PUBLIC WORKS CONTRACTS, A CONSULTANT SERVICES RQSTER
FOR GENERAL CONSULTING AND OTHER PROFESSIONAL SERVICES, AND A VENDOR ROSTER FOR GOODS

AND SERVICES,

WHEREAS, RCW 38,04.151-154 and other laws regarding contracting for public works by
authorized local governments, allow certain contracts to be awarded by a small works roster process;

and

WHEREAS to be able to implement a small works roster and process, the FVRL is required 1o
adopt a resolution, establish reporting procedures that are publicly available, and commit to providing
the most practicable opportunities for smal) businesses when using Direct Contracting; and

WHEREAS to be able to use Direct Contraciing on occasion, FYRL is required to define this
process in procedure; and

WHEREAS, chapter 39.80 RCW and other laws regarding contracting for consulting services by
municipalities allow certain contracts to be awarded by a consultant roster process; and

WHEREAS, RCW 39.04.150, regarding purchase of materials, supplies, or equipment not
connected to a public works project, allows certain purchasing contracts to be awarded using a vendor

list,

NOW, THEREFORE, FGRT VANCOUVER REGIONAL LIBRARY DISTRICT HEREBY RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS:
Section 1. Resolution 2024-06 Is hereby repealed and replaced with this Resolution.

~ Section 2, MRSC Rosters. FVRL hereby elects 1o use the statewide small works roster established
under RCW 39.04.151(2) and administered by the Municipal Research Services Center of

Washington (MRSC)

Section 3. Small Works Roster. FVRL adopts the following to use in the management and awards
of small public works projects as allowed under RCW 39.04,152. FVRL will maintain
separate procedures and contracting templates for small works roster contracts.

A, Small Works, as defined by RCW 39.04.152 are public works projects estimated to cost
$350,000 or less, excluding sales tax, for the construction, renovation, remodeling,
repair, or improvement of real property.

B.  ASmall Works Roster is a pre-established list of properly licensed contractors, registered
to do business with FVRL under selected project types and (work} categories.

Page 77 of 98



The Small Works Roster process s an alternative to publicly advertising public work
projects.

Every small works contract is subject to the same public works bidding, award, and
compliance requirements of chapter 39.04 RCW unlass specifically included in RCW
39.04.151-154, this resolution, or the incorporated policies or procedures.

Small Work Roster contract procurements will be bid electronically through the FYRL's
procurement processes, except as may be used in small works roster direct contracting

process. (RCW 39,04.152{4)}

Only those contractors registered with MRSC Rosters will be invited to bid on small
works roster projects.

Invitations for bid or direct contracting negotiations shall include an estimate of the
scope and nature of the work to be performed as well as materials and equipment to be
furnished. However, detailed plans and specifications need not be included in the

invitation.

Smail Works contracts will be awarded to a responsible contractor (RCW 39,04,350}
submitting the lowest responsive bid, unless using direct contracting where a contract
will be awarded to a responsible contractor submitting a competitive bid or negotiated
bid.

Small Works bidding and award information will be entered by FVRL into the statewide
small works roster platform immediately upon conclusion of each small works roster

award,

Small Works bidding and award data will be part of the FVRL's procurement files and
records and all documents will be available far review with the FYRL'S public records

officer.

Annual Notification and Invitation. At least once a year, MRSC shall, on behalf of the
FVRL, publish in a newspaper of general circulation within the municipality's jurisdiction
a hotice of the existence of the small works roster and invite contractors to register on
the statewlde small works roster. Additionally, as required by RCW 39,04,151{1){c),
MRSC will notify the Office of Minority and Women’s Business Enterprise {OMWBE)
directory of certified firms and invite small businesses to apply to the roster,

MREC shall add responsible contractors to the small works roster at any time thata
contractor compietes the online application provided by MRSC and mzets minlmum
State requirements for roster listing.

Direct Contracting,

Page 78 of 98



FVRL intends to use the direct contracting option (RCW 39,04,152(4)) whenever
practicable for Small Works projects estimated to cost $150,000 or less, excluding sales
tax. FVRL has developed additional policies and procedures to ensure the FVRL uses
Direct Contracting with the spirit and intent of the statute

FVRL delegates authority to oversee and manage the use and outcomes of the small works
roster to the Finance Director or designee. As the delegated authority, the Small Works Roster
Program Manager will be responsible for ensuring all necessary policles, procedures, templates,
contracts or similar are developed and used in accordance with the applicable statutes and

guidance provided by MRSC,

Further, the Small Works Roster Program Manager will be responsible for establishing and
implementing FVRL's Business Utilization Plan and reporting annually on the utilization and
improvements needed to the policy or contracting processes 1o meet or excead the established
goals for small business utilization through the Direct Contracting opportunities,

The Small Works Roster Program Manager will also be responsible for data collection, reporting,
and similar on all activities, uses, and awards for small works and will ensure all information is
provided to MRSC, the state, or the public as required or requested.

Section 4. Consultant Services Roster, FVRL adopts the use of the MRSC Rosters Consultant
Roster (vendor list) to be used for the procurement and award of consultant services.

A.  Consultant Services. Consultant services can be “personal services” such as technical
expertise, studies, project management, planning, or similar, or “architecture and
engineering services” or “professional services” services as defined by chapter 39.80
RCW. For all services, FVYRL reserves the right to procure using methods other than
formal sealed bidding (low bid) as afforded under RCW 39.04.190.

B.  Soliciting to join the Consultant Roster. MRSC Raosters, as provided as part of their
membership service, will publish twice a year, in a newspaper of general circulation
within the FYRL’s counties, a notice of the existence of the Consultant Roster and solicit
consultants to joln on our behalf, (RCW 39.04.190{2))

C.  Procuring Consultants. FVRL adopts the following as policies, pracedures or similar
when contracting for consultant services:

1. Personal Services.
a, Personal consultants, firms and individuals that provide subject maiter

expertise, or services more intellectual in nature such as studies,
accounting, legal, project management, or similar shall be procured using a
Request for Proposal (RFP). Selection should be based on the best value
provided to FVRL and include scoring on experience and expertise in the
field ar industry needed, a proposed approach to completing services,
capabilities of the businesses staff, time, and cost to complete the work.

Page 79 of 98



2, Professicnal Services.

a. Professional architecture and engineering services shail be procured under
the requirements of chapter 39,80 RCW, using the MRSC Consultant Roster,
Procuring professionals will be through a Request for Qualification (RFQ)
and/or Request for Proposals {RFP) with Qualifications. Price and/or the
cost of the professional services will be 10% or less of the overall score.
Selection criteria should clearly define the scope of services and the details
on how the FVRL will determine the most gualified professional {or firm),
which will be different depending on FVRL’s neads. Further, selection
criteria shall include a plan, as approptiate, to include minority and women-
owned firms, small business, and veteran-owned firms to the maximum
extent practicable.

3. Electronic Submisslens. As required by RCW 39.04.190(2), FVRL establishad the
following procedure for securing written proposals or submittals for consultant
services.

a.  Unless otherwise adopted, through establishment of an e-procurement
tool, FVRL will use emall communications to request and receive
submissions.

h.  An RFQor RFP shail be developed that will Include at a minimum a
description of the services needed, the time of performance, the
scoring criteria with descriptions and relative welghting, the schedule
with due dates, and any othar relevant information. Attached to each
RFQ or RFP shall be the intended contract to be signed, as applicable.

¢ Aselection committee will be formed with at least 3 staff members to
review and score the submissions. The selection commitiee will sign
statements attesting they have no conflicts of interest in the matter
and all proceedings will be confidential until Award,

d. A list of business will be pulled from the MRSC Rosters consultant
roster under the category of need, and an email request will be sent
only to the businasses on the roster list of businesses.

e.  Once submlitals are received, the selection committee will review,
score, and recommend award 1o the consultant scored the highest,

f.  Records. The original request, responses, scoring, and award

documentation will he keptin the FVRL's records and will be available
upon request.

Award of Consuitant Contracts. }
Thera may be two methods for awarding consultant services contracts.

Page 80 of 98



Section 5.

a, FVRL reviews and scores all proposal(s) or statements of qualifications
received, negotiates or similar and then awards the contract; or

b, Ifthe FVRL Board of Trustees delegates the authority to award contracts to
the Executive Director for consuiting services costing less than or equal to
5350,000, the Executive Director shall have the autherity to award contracts
for cansulting services without the Board of Trustees approval, provided
that the Board of Trustees shall ratify the Executive Director’s signature and
delegation of authority through FVRL’s standard process for such matters.
For consulting services anticipated with an anticipated value more than
$350,000, the Board of Trustees shall review, score, and award all contracts
for cansulting services.

Posting of Awards. In accordance with RCW 39.04.200, all consultant/services contract
awards will be posted to the FVRL's website at least every other month.

Vendor Roster. FVRL adopts the use of the MRSC Rosters Vendor Roster (vendor list) to
be used for the procurement and award of materlals, supplies, equipment or similar.
The following vendor list roster praceduses are established for use by the FVRL pursuant

to RCW 35,04.190.

Purchase of materials, supplies, or eguipment not connected to a public works
project. FVRL is not required 10 use formal sealed bidding procedures to purchase
materfals, supplies, ar equipment not connected to a public works project where the
cost will not exceed the statutory threshold of FVRL. The FVRL will attempt to obtain the
lowest practical price for such goods and services.

Publication. At Jeast twice per year, MRSC shall, on behalf of the FVRL, publishin a
newspaper of general circulation within the municipality’s jurisdiction a notice of the
existence of the vendor list roster and solicit the names of vendors for the vendor list
roster. MRSC shall add vendars licensed to do business in the State of Washington to
the Vendor Roster at any time when a vendor completes the online application and
meets and minimum requirements.

Electronic Quotations. FVRL shall use the following process to abtain written
fquetations from vendors for the purchase of materials, supplies, or equipment not
connected to a public works project;

1. Awritten Invitation (io Bid or Quote) with description shall be drafted for the
specific materials, supplies, or equipment 1o be purchased, including the number,
quantity, qualily, and type desired, the proposed delivery date, together with any
evaluatlon criterfa and any relevant information of the purchase. The contract
intended to be signed by the successful vendor is also to be Included in with the
invitation.

Page 81 of 98



2. The Executive Director or their designee, shall make a good faith effort to contact at
least three {3) of the vendors on the roster to obtain written quotations from the
vendors for the required materlals, supplies, or eguipment;

3, The Executive Director or their designee, shall not share written quotations recelved
from one vendor with other vendors soliciting for the bid to provide the materials,

supplies, or equipment;

4. A written record shall be made by the Executive Director or their designee, of each
vendor's bid on the material, supplies, or aguipment, and of any conditions imposed
on the bid by such vendor;

D.  Determining the Lowest Responsible Bidder. FVRL shall purchase the materials,
supplies, or equipment from the lowest responsible bidder, provided that whenever
there is reason to believe that the lowest acceptable bid is not the best price obtainable,
all bids may be rejected, and FVRL may call for new bids,

E.  Award. All of the bids or quotations shall be collected by the Finance Director or their
designee. The Executlive Director, or their designee, shall create a written record of all
hids or quotations received, which shall be made avallable by request after the award of

the contract.

1. The Executive Director, or their deslgnee, shall then present all bids or quotations
and thelr recommendation for award of the contract to the Board of Trustees. The
Board of Trustees shall consider alt bids or guotations received, determine the
lowest responsible bidder, and award the contract; or

2. I the Board of Trustees delegates the authotity to award bids to the Executive
Director of the FVRL for materials, supplies, or equipment costing less than or equal
to the policy threshold of the agency, the Executive Diractar shall have the authority
1o award public works contracts without Board of Trustee appraval, provided that
the Board of Trustee shall ratify the Executive Director’s approval at the next
scheduled Board of Trustee meeting by means of the consent agenda. For
materials, supplies or equipment costihg more than the policy threshold of the FVRL
the Board of Trustees shall award all vendor contracts.

F. Posting of Awards. In accordance with RCW 39.04.200, all vendor contract awards will
be postad to the FVRL's website at least every other month. The posting will include the
vendor awarded the contract, the amount of the contract, a brief description of the
items purchased, and the date it was awarded.

Page 82 of 98



PASSED this __ day of , 20

Kristy Moigan, Chair

Penny Love-Henslee, Vice-Chalr

Page 83 of 98



FORT VANCOUVER REGIONAL LIBRARIES Woodland and Yale Precinct in Cowlitz County

L] L |
g \\ FVRLibraries
x Serving Clark, Skamania and Klickitat Counties, and

Proposed Changes - July 15, 2024
2024 FVRL Regular Board Meeting Dates and Locations

Meetings are generally held at 6:00 pm unless atherwise noted. Questions can be directed to
the Executive Director’s office at 360-906-5011

DATE Location

January 16 (Tuesday) Cascade Park
[Cancelled due to Inclement Weather]
February 20 (Tuesday) Vancouver
March 18 (Monday) Three Creeks
April 15 (Monday) Washougal
May 20 (Monday) Stevenson
June 17 (Monday) [Cancelled due to lack of Goldendale
quorum]
July 15 (Monday) White Salmon Valley
August 19 (Monday) Ridgefield Goldendale
September 21 (Saturday) Battle Ground

Board Retreat 9:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m.

Board Meeting 4:00 p.m. to 6:00 p.m.
October 21 (Monday) +a-Center Ridgefield
November 18 (Monday) Woodland
December 16 (Monday) Vancouver

2018 Grand Blvd, Vancouver Washington 98661 ¢ 360-906-5000 e fvrl.org

Library location

Battle Ground, Cascade Park, Goldendala, LLa Cenfer, Marth Bonneville, Ridgsfield, Stevenson,

ks, Vanroaver, Yancouver Mall, Washougal, White Salmon Valley, Woodiand, Yacolt

Three Cr

Page 84 of 98



MAY 22, 2024

The Reflector A7

La Center Community Library
celebrates 20th anniversary

| 4 B Ve

Visitars at the 20th anniversary celeoration of the La Center

Cornmuity Library feed and hug a “Classy Camelid™ during the

festivities on Tuesday, May 14.

CADE BARKER

cutedevt Hreceflec tor

The 1z
brary celebmted s 20th
sary last week with the soothing
sounds ol sz, fanghier, halloons
andd cven o alpaca and ether wan
ey om esday, My 4

The day of celehiaton meant
ador o branch mager s
swinginber She has been o parcof
the Lo Center Conmunity Library
e ity g iy 2004

“Iowas the Arst porson 10 do
storstimes i thes blding, and |
thought was a0 gorgeons Lty
then when they opened  and |
itk sull s and P thinlled ©
ager”” Swingrm

Center Communis 1

be here as the
Fersaid

Hie bt Vaneower Regonal
iy (EVRE bamchin FaCen
tr lis served as a public gathering
s The

space T the Bast 203
libeary rontinely hodde anduele st
south ek discussions v veneal
reup i wrting sroup abo

ber sl

iz the space, Sw
She 15 keoking forsard 10 the nest
20 wears at the Ta Center library
i,

hranch opening
i Waoodtnd ths Ll se Dbk ihe
funre of the hbniries focoks groa

amd Pincvers Bopeful” Swonarnber
il
IVRE Fsecnive Daeetor Ten

aifer Ciltrop is pleased wirh how
hibiznies have rebotded from ihe

rad the padenne
Who Knewvs swhar ar
lolds i
s retlect on that, we were just
stanting o really tanstorm librar
Calirng wanld

lwenty sens )

el why e

rics ! il

niead |

librries are busier than ever W
really e comimg ol st on
the vther side of the pandemie, and
what we'ne seamng s s it
Busth s il contmee o be vnline il
Lhut the m person communi
l! |“t||$l'l| [‘l’!),'ll'-llll“v and servces

are exsential

Giltrop belicves there is some
thing for everyone i alibany | he
FantCenter location allees compiiter
aecess, the abiliny w0 print, copy.
e il By documents alony with
A0 prasters ad libed scanmers,
alsoaffer vsed books lor pur

amd whedchmir accessibily
We leamued thae people feh

very isolated dunng the paklenne.

aml whene else e yon meet sour

s than it the Ty ™ Cal

for

g sl T here s something
e lere neo matter what aoe

Fa Cemer Commmanity
Library is open Trom 10 am, o 6
o Mondiy ozl Saurday .
ar BT S L ockwood € ek Road
L Center Contact the Tibrary at
TR (BT W Y

Building histary

sl the

The corrent libe
wechnology mstalled i the latest
e the evelunon ol the banlding,
which was bl over o comury

f
Lhe Duildi
ware it Jog

e an 19035,
A Lt Fonrth
Streer and served as o hospital
e Call THepola, wha was
w1917 had
il preser
o' istory

Boen an the Tespit
A passion for his
Jeimne L

vihen
projecton the Latenter Commu

ity Labraes stated, The building

was later
and e applianee repane shop
T 1 Ly Cerveny. Hob Ol

thzed as i store

Amy Johnson designs her awn bockmark during tha La Canter Community Library 20tn anniversary
celebration on Tuasday, May 14,

Jackson Parman cuts out bis
bookmark prior ta havirg it
lamnated durng the La Center
Community Library 2Cth anni-
versary celebration on Tuesday,
May 14,

son and Robert Call purchased
the properny with the idea 1 de
velop e Ol occson, the line
department wonld e the aban
doned building e Lest smoke
cquipment \ rumor coenlated
thionghoue [a Cener thar the
bl
e burn for the lire depuariment.

2 may be msad as a prac-

The La Center Community Library celebrates its 20th anniver-
sary on Tuesday, May 14 with numerous festivilizs taking place in
nd araund the facility, builtin 1905,

the hivtory projeet seated was maved Loy present sue
Coll Hepela, with Ter son

Rebert Caoll combined therr e

restored 1o be s lestorically ae
curate as possible s new and
conttmmng hile as a4 medern b
brary over the Last 20 years

spect for history i an ellort w
wive the builifing  Fhe halding

It's time to hit:the high seas, thet
full of e)s‘citemen‘tTBut y

motor

le, ATV, or wave

Page 85 of 98



719124, 9:02 AM FVR Libraries Host Teen 5-Minute Film Festival — Columbia Community Connection News Mid-Columbia Region

FVR Libraries Host Teen 5-Minute Film Festlval

{p columbiacommunityconnection.com/the- da][esfSluLi?xmthws35snpeﬂ5x}rp8qw9twu
June 21, 2024

Jun 21
Columbia Community Connection

* TEEN ™y
5-MINUTE FILM
FESTIVAL

[N FYRUbraries

White Salmon, WA, June 20, 2024 — Attention teens! Fort Vancouver Regional Libraries
(FVLR) are having a festival of teen-created films! Submissions will be accepted June 15 -
August 15, 2024. And a film premiere will be held September 20, 2024 at 6 p.m. at Cascade
Park Community Library and online.

Who can participate?

« All films must be written, directed, and edited by persons in or entering grades 6—12
AND 19 years of age or younger.

» All films must be teen-produced, and may be either a group project or individual work.
However, teens cannot submit multiple entries as writer, director, or editor.

* Adult guidance and instruction are allowed, except in the roles of writing, directing,
and editing. However, adults are permitted to act in films.

« All participants and contributors under 18 must have parent/guardian permission.

Reqmrements for Film Contents.

« Films should be around 3-7 minutes in length, including credits.

https://columbiacommunityconnection.com/the-dalles/9uu2xmyh2ws35snpen5xjrp8qw2twu Page 86 of 98 116



71924, 9:02 AM

FVR Libraries Host Toen 5-Minute Fllm Festlval — Columbla Community Connectlon News Mid-Columbia Reglon

Flims must be G- or PG-rated in language and subject matter or they will be
disqualified,

Flims will be previewed for content.

Title pages and credits should be included in each entry but should be no longer than
1 minute of the film's entirety.

Bloopers are not permitted unless relevant to the film’s plot. Filmmakers are solely
responsible for their film production.

Filmmakers are rasponsible for obtaining permission from copyright and trademark
owners for the use of sound or video clips as well as use of trademarked characters,

Entries that include these slements without permission will be disqualified.

Filmmakers must obtain permission to use copyrighted music in their films. Teens can
also use their own original music or copyright-free, public domain, trade-friendly or

Creative Commons licensed music,

After Submission:

« FVRLibaries is under no obligation to use or exhibit the submitted film(s} in any

manner.

+ FVRLibraries retains the right to accept or decline any entry, for whatever reasaon,

without notice or explanation.

« Library staff and the teen council will preview the films for content prior to debut at the

festival. However, final judging and awards will be up to the audience.

To submit your film vislt; https:/fwww.fvrl.org/teémﬂlm.

hitps:ffeolumblacommunityconnection.comithe-dalles/uu2xmyh2wsdBsnpen SxlrpSogw2twu

Page 87 of 98

216



7/9/24, 9:03 AM Local Art Chat groups bring artistic community together | The Reflector

Local Art Chat groups brlng artlstlc commumty together

@ thereflector com.’stones/loca! art-chat-groups brmg -artistic- cornmumty logelher 342198

Norman Helgason / norman@thereflector.com

The Reflector

JoyLynn Woodart, a founding member of Art Chat and current member of the Battle Ground
Art Associates, shows her acrylic painting progress at Art Chat's June Ridgefield meeting.

Photo by Norman Helgason

hittps:/Awanw.thereflector.com/stories/local-art-chat-groups-bring-artistic-community-together, 342196 Page 88 of 98 113



7/9/24, 9:03 AM Local Art Chat groups bring artistic community together | The Reflector

Posted Monday, June 17, 2024 11:33 pm
Norman Helgason / norman@thereflector.com

Clark County's artistic community events took a sharp decline after the COVID-19 pandemic.
Art Chat, a show-and-tell gathering, provides the means for artists to connect and show their

work once again.

Art Chat meets at 10:30 a.m. to 12:30 p.m. the first Tuesday of every month at the Ridgefield
Community Library, 210 N. Main Ave., and from 1 p.m. to 3 p.m. the second Wednesday of
every month at the Battle Ground Community Library, 1207 SE Eighth Way.

Art Chat began in Battle Ground in March last year and has since grown from nine members
to over 40. Cheryl Herndon, a founding member of Art Chat, pushed to start the program
because many local artists did not know where to show their art. The founding members
chose Ridgefield and Battle Ground’s community libraries to provide a space free for entry.

“We found that a lot of artists were in their homes and did art while COVID was going on, but
they quit showing their work and going out in public,” Herndon said.

Attendees showcase their current projects following a 20-minute presentation by an invited
main speaker, who explains a unique project or art history. At Art Chat’s first June meeting in
Ridgefield, Herndon showed her great-grandmother’s oil paintings, preserved from over a
century ago. Her grandmother painted over a cardboard cereal box and framed it in the early

1920s.

Over 20 Art Chat members from across the county showed their work at the meeting. Pieces
ranged from paintings, clay art and poetry. Kirt Minnich from Ridgefield showed his
mountain-themed clay art piece, which took over a week to mold and dry. He provided the
group with advice during his presentation, recommending that clay artists use ‘Loctite glue'
from Amazon to hold individual clay pieces together after they are dried.

https:/fiwww.thereflector.com/stories/local-art-chat-groups-bring-artistic-community-together, 342196 Page 89 of 98 2/13



7i9/24, 9:03 AM Loocal Art Chat groups bring artistic community logether | The Reflector

Vickey Schell, one of Art Chat's original members, displayed her basket weaved from beach
wood and honeysuckle vines, by passing snacks to guests,

Schell is shy about her work but sees Art Chat as a way to help aspiring artists step into the
spotlight,

“The [heart} of Art Chat is networking and getting [artists] out and not being shy about their
artwork like me,” Schell said.

Art Chat welcomas new members, with no registration or fees required, Water and snacks
are provided. Artists from all levels are welcome and encouraged to bring friends.

https:fwwwithereflecter.com/fstorlesflocal-art-chat-groups-bring-aristiz-community-together, 342196 Page 90 of 98 3/3



719124, 9:05 AM Newly formed jazz band makes inaugural appearance - The Columbian

Newly formed jazz band makes inaugural appearance

= columbian.com/news/2024/jun/29/newly-formed-jazz-band-makes-inaugural-appearance

At ) N > T S =
B, T NG 1 _) - ‘1";,, i g€ 3 ¥

The Vancouver Community Jazz Band had its first public paerformance on May 14 at the La Center Library's 20th
Anniversary Party.

https://www.columbian.com/news/2024/jun/29/newly-formed-jazz-band-makes-inaugural-appearance/ Page 91 of 98 1/2



19024, 005 AM Newly formead Jazz band makes inaugural appearance - The Columbian

LA CENTER ~ The Vancouver Community Jazz Band offered its first public performance

May 14 at the L.a Center Community Library's 20th Anniversary Party. Started by members of
the Vancouver Community Concert Band, the 25-piece ensemble is directed by Nell Huss.
The band plays a wide variety of jazz styles, with a muitigenerational roster of musicians.

The band performed at Arnada Park on June 26,

ADVERTISING

Related Stories

TAGS  North County

https:fwww.columblan.corm/news/2024/un/29/newly-formed-lazz-band-makes-inaugural-appearance/ Page 92 of 98 2/2



7/9/24, 9:06 AM Leather stamping workshop a smash for local youth | The Reflector

Leather stampmg workshop a smash for local youth

@ therefiector com.’stonesfleather stampmg workshop~a -smash- for-Iocai~youth 342826

Norman Helgason / norman@thereflector.com

The Reflecto

L) e | Bl

Yacolt business owner MacKenzie Krumhauer's first leatherworking workshop was an
engaging experience for teens at the Battle Ground Public Library last week. Krumhauer
taught attendees how to carve patterns using metal stamps by encouraging them to make

their own designs.

Photo by Norman Helgason

https:/iwww.thereflector.com/staries/leather-stamping-workshop-a-smash-for-local-youth,342826#google_vignette Page 93 of 98

1/3



719124, 8:06 AM Leather stamping workshop a smash for local youth | The Reflector

Posted Monday, July 1, 2024 9:25 am
Norman Helgason / norman@thereflector.com

The Battle Ground Community Library was unusually loud as the sound of hammers echoed
throughout the building.

Rather than construction, teens were engaged in the first leatherwork workshop hosted by
MAK Leather Goods last week.

Yacolt business owner MacKenzie Krumhauer began the company two years ago. She
learned to carve and stamp patterns on leather materials at age 12 from her neighbor and
turned it into a career. Krumhauer said she was lucky to receive first-hand experience in
leather making and wanted to share her knowledge with those interested.

“A lot of times, especially these days, with especially trades like that, there's not a lot of
opportunity for mentorship in that way. A lot of folks that | know had to teach themselves on
YouTube or find the information themselves,” Krumhauer said.

During last week's workshop, Krumhauer introduced “leather stamping” to teenagers who
signed up from across Clark County. The process involves wetting and softening vegetable-
tanned leather to imprint designs through metal stamps. The youth were thoroughly engaged
in the process, using the opportunity to make special patterns.

Carolyn Curtain, 15, from Battle Ground used a cowhide hammer to stamp a fish pattern
onto the material. Curtain found it relaxing to design patterns and may turn it into a hobby.

“If you have a lot of anger issues, it's nice to hammer them out on the leather,” Curtain
laughed. *Just make sure you're careful.”

Krumhauer said the art of leather making could be a difficult process to begin. Battle Ground
fifth grader Sigurd Meuser quickly made a beach pattern using an assortment of metal
stamps. Meuser recommends the pattern-making process for those interested.

https:/iww.thereflector.com/staries/leather-stamping-workshop-a-smash-for-local-youth, 342826#google_vignette Page 94 of 98 2/3



719124, 9:06 AM Leather stamplhg workshop & amash for local youth | The Reflectar

“It's kind of relaxing. A little bit loud, but it's fun because it really puts your mind to be
creative,” Meuser said, '

Reverie Cruz, a sixth grader from Yacolt, has worked with leather before and wants to turn it
Into a career. She took a creatlve approach by combining three separate stamps to create an
eye pattern during the workshop. Kids who are interested in drawing or artwork will enjoy the
process, Cruz said.

“And | think this would be like another fun way to make art. My friend really likes to draw...
s0 | think she would like this, She could [carve] it on leather and make it last longer,” Gruz

said.

Krumhauer plans to hosts more leather pattermn-making workshops in the future. People can
follow makleathergoods.com/events for more information about the workshops.,

“I'm hoping | can at least open the door for people. For them to at least have a safe space to
feel familiar with some of the tools and techniques, they can take that for themseives and
start to discover where their true interests lie,” Krumhauer said.

hitpa:ifwvww. thoroflector.com/stories/leather-stamplng -worlkshop-a-smaah-fordocal-yalith,342826#g0agle_vignette Page 95 of 98 a3



New Woodland Community Library nears completion

? columbian.comnaws: & 1240l 0% nsw -y oodland-commanty -l

Brianna Murschel

Mews / Clark County News

$8.6 million facility scheduled to open to public in the fall

4 Photos

o - = 2oey
-~ ' p 3 et

The Woodland Community Library nears completion (Phota contribuied by FYELibraries) [Photo Galle

The new Woodland Community Library is taking shape and is slated to open this fall.

Page 96 0f98 1/3



“It's going to be a beautiful setting whether you want 1o sit outside or inside,” FVRLibraties
Executive Director Jennifer Giltrop said in a phone interview. “(I's) a place to study, to read,
to enjoy neighbors (and) also a place to lsarn new skills.”

The library posted a weekend update to its Facebook page on the construction. The first
painting phase is finished inside, parts of the concrete floor are polished and work on the
wood-slat celling has started, On the outside, the siding is almost complete, the driveway is
paved, and the sidewalks and courtyard concrete is poured.

FVRLibraries broke ground in June 2023 on the 7,580-square-foot library at 411 Lakeshore
Drive, near downtown Woodland.

The project costs $8.6 million. Funding came from FVRLibraries, Friends of Woodland
Community Library, FVRL. Foundation and Friends, Washington State Department of
Commaerce and Alfrusa International.

The current library resides in a 2,300-square-foot hoi‘ne théat is 100 years old.

“It's not serving the needs of a 21st century library,” Giltrop sald. “(The new library) will have
many maore features, like a community meeting space, separate areas for teens, children and

adults, two study rooms, an outdoor courtyard.”

Other features wiil include accessible power and laptop tables with comfortable seating. The
Friends Bookstore will offer gently used books and other materials for sale. The main space
will have self-checkouts and a copy center. Patrons can use four desktop computers in the
technology area. The community room will have local art and a projector and audio and

visual system.
Once completed, FVRLibraries will host a grand opening event.

“Everyone from donors to community leaders and the public will be Invited to cut the ribbon,
and there will be lots of activities for children and families to participate (in),” Giltrop said.

The Woodland Community Library isn't the only project FVRLibraries is focusing on.

Fundraising for a new $11 million, 13,000-square-foot library in Washougal Is underway to
replace the current 2,300-square-foot space in the city of Washougal's administrative

complex,
“We are about $6 million short of our target,” Giltrop said.

FVRLibraries plans to enhance Washougal's library services by increasing space and
Investing in projects, such as adding a splash park, dog park and public parking.

Page 97 of 98

213



The project’s next steps Include developing a full budget for the project and working out a
fundraising plan with the FVRL Foundation and the Friends of Washougal Community
L.ibrary.

Page 98 of 98 /3





